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. CALL TO ORDER
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean was called to order on August 17, 2022
at 4:00 PM, Room 119, County Administration Building, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, Ocean County, New
Jersey, with Director Kelly presiding. Members Crea, Haines, Quinn and Vicari were present at the call of the roll.

. ROLL CALL
. STATEMENT Compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act
John P. Kelly, Director, read the following statement of compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act:
"In compliance with the provisions of the 'Open Public Meetings Act', adequate notice of this meeting of the Board of
Commissioners has been advertised in the manner prescribed by law."
. THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND PRAYER
PRESENTATION

1. New Jersey State Association of Chiefs of Police to Ocean County Prosecutor Bradley D. Billhimer - Police
Agency Re-Accreditation.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, we’re going to start today with several presentations. Is the Prosecutor here?”
DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Yes there he is.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, we’re going to start with the Prosecutor who is going to make a presentation regarding
the New Jersey State Association of Chiefs of Police to Ocean County Prosecutor Brad Billhimer regarding Police
Agency Re-accreditation. Gary, do you have anything to say before the Prosecutor comes up?”

COMMISSIONER QUINN: “I just want to say briefly, Brad it’s great to see you here today. You know, Brad, since
he took over the department, has done a phenomenal job, not only himself as our leader, but the entire staff that we
have over there - our top people here today supporting Brad. This is a big thing because it’s something that we do on
a pretty regular basis and I think the accreditation is a process that’s not that easy to get through, but the way the
department is run it’s second to none throughout the entire State of New Jersey and Brad and his people are so well
respected throughout the entire State of New Jersey. So it’s an honor to be able to be here today to see this
presentation and it certainly is, without a doubt, very well deserved.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay.”

COMMISSIONER QUINN: “It’s your show Brad.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “You look like you’re getting married. You’re coming up the aisle.” (Laughter)
PROSECUTOR BILLHIMER: “Thank you for those kind words. I appreciate it. And it is an honor of my
professional career, really, to have this position and to work with all of you. Harry Delgado, who is supposed to

present us with this plaque...”

HARRY DELGADO, ACCREDITATION PROGRAM DIRECTOR AT THE NJ ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF
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POLICE: “Yes.”

PROSECUTOR BILLHIMER: “Oh there he is.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “See, he thought he was the jilted bride for a second.”

HARRY DELGADO: “Yeah, I was hiding. But I appreciate the opportunity to present this certificate to Prosecutor
Billthimer. But if you allow me and indulge me for a couple of minutes I really want to key on something that the
Commissioner said before. He’s so exceptional. This is for the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office. So, typically,
agencies try the first time. They’re so rigorous, some make it, some don’t. So in the case of the Ocean County
Prosecutor’s Office. . .this is their fourth go-around. So they passed the iitial accreditation and they’ve been re-
accredited twice. So, whereas, about 44% of all the law enforcement agencies in the State of New Jersey are
accredited, less than 12% have achieved the longevity that the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office has. So that’s truly
remarkable.

So I just wanted to say that the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office has truly made a commitment to adhering to best
practices at the state and national level in a highly regarded statewide law enforcement accreditation program. That
almost sounds self-serving but it is. This program, administered through the New Jersey State Association of Chiefs
of Police and the New Jersey Law Enforcement Accreditation Commission has helped to transparently demonstrate
the professionalism and preparedness of State’s law enforcement agencies. The New Jersey State Association of
Chiefs of Police Law Enforcement Accreditation Program is purposefully designed to enhance the professionalism
and transparency in the state’s public safety system.

During these unique challenging times, I think we would all agree that the threat to our health and safety encouraging
law enforcement agencies to follow standardized practices and policies is a potentially lifesaving, and cost-effective
mvestment of time and resources. So accreditation gives an agency a preparedness plan and verification of excellence.
Accreditation status represents a significant professional achievement.

And I’'ll be brief but I want to make sure that I mention that at the end of this rigorous process, in this case it was the
last few years, there’s an assessment that is made on-site and there is a report that is generated from that and I just
wanted to simply paraphrase just a few things from that report because I believe that they’re important and they
simply exemplify the quality of the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office. So the accreditation process has become the
culture in the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office. Of course it has been up to 11 years I’ve been involved in the
accreditation process. Prosecutor Billthimer and his team exemplify best practices especially in the fields of
community outreach and technology and the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office Digital Forensic Laboratory is also
accredited which is truly exceptional.

Under the leadership of Prosecutor Billhimer, the high level of competence, leadership and professionalism is evident
within the agency. Leadership, rank and file are forward-thinking and engaged in self-improvement. It is the opinion
of the assessment team that the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office is a highly professional and committed agency
which exemplifies all the tenets of Law Enforcement Accreditation. This is the agency’s fourth accreditation cycle. So
this 1s truly a very exclusive group.

So it is indeed my honor, I’ve been here before, and I hope to come back again, on behalf of the New Jersey State
Association of Chiefs of Police and the New Jersey Law Enforcement Commission, congratulate Prosecutor Bradley
D. Billhimer, First Prosecutor, Michael Nolan, Chief Anthony Carrington, Captain Kenneth Hess, Sergeant Geoffrey
Memmelaar, Lieutenant Brian Haggerty, Accreditation Manager, Carmen Gagliano, the Commissioners, the staff at
the Prosecutor’s Office and those law enforcement agencies and citizens that this Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office
so proudly serve for achieving reaccreditation joining a very exclusive group of law enforcement agencies that have
made this important commitment to excellence in policing.

So to all, indeed, congratulations! And now I’d like to present to the Prosecutor...”

(Applause)

PROSECUTOR BILLHIMER: “Would you like to...at the last accreditation cycle we took a picture.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Yes, would you like to come up here and we’ll do that?”

PROSECUTOR BILLHIMER: “Yes, if you don’t mind we’ll come up here.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “We would like you to come up here.”

PROSECUTOR BILLHIMER: “I don’t want to hold up the meeting.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “No, you’re not holding up the meeting. You can have all the time you need.”

Pictures Taken

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you sir. Thank you for your presentation. It was very nice.”
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***Next presentation is E-3. Please see comments under E-3.%**

2. Honoring Administrator Carl W. Block's 35 years of dedicated service to the County of Ocean.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001156
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

DIRECTOR KELLY: “The next presentation is going to be honoring our current County Administrator, Carl Block
whose 35 years of dedicated service to the County of Ocean is today being recognized. Carl was appointed first as the
Deputy County Clerk in 1987. Then in 2003, and again in 2008, Carl was elected as the County Clerk. Now in 2010,
then Freeholder, John Bartlett, and myself, called Carl and asked him to come over and meet with us and we asked
him to consider leaving that elected position and coming to work for the county. And Carl had some reservations
about doing it, but I explained to him that it was the most powerful position in County Government. And when he was
the mayor in Stafford Township he was always really the acting administrator in Stafford Township. He loves the
nuts and bolts of government and has always worked hard in it. In fact, he is the longest serving administrator in
Ocean County’s history having served the county for more than 12 years. As I said he was Mayor of Stafford
Township for 26 years serving from 1983 to 2009. As our Administrator he has overseen numerous projects including
the construction of a new county jail — many new parks — upgrading the county’s Technology Department, and most
recently working on the new Social Service Building and now the new Courthouse Annex.

He has helped formulate the county budget every year with Julie Tarrant, myself, John Bartlett and the entire Board.
And he’s been a big part of bringing that budget in and making sure that we’ve lowered our county tax rate year after
year and maintaining our AAA bond rating, something we’re always very proud to say this Board can’t do it by itself.
Julie and Carl Block give us all the advice that we need to keep this county on a firm, financial standing. Carl has
always worked for all of our residents whether we’re talking about our seniors, our veterans, or our younger families
ensuring that Ocean County remains a great place to live, work and retire. Carl truly excelled during Superstorm
Sandy when he led our professional staff in dealing with the aftermath of the county’s worst disaster. He helped
provide the relief to all of our 33 communities, but especially to the shore towns which were most impacted by the
devastating storm. And then after that with the COVID epidemic, Carl and his staff working...I see the Board of
Health is here, working with the Board of Health and others has made sure that we put together vaccination sites.
Where they were today, vaccinations sites are less necessary because the vaccine is more available to all of us through
our doctors or in the different pharmacies and the like. But when that was unavailable anywhere ¢lse this county
stepped forward with the help and assistance of the County Board of Health and Carl Block oversaw all of that.

So we are extremely proud of Carl and I’m going to ask that you read the resolution into the record. And this time
before we move forward we’ll take the motion and a second and vote on the resolution and then I’ll accept comments
from the Board.”

Clerk Gunther reads the resolution into the record.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Michelle. And Carl we haven’t voted on this yet but we’ve all signed it.”
ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “I was just waiting to see if it passed.” (Laughter)

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Do we have a motion to adopt the resolution?”

On motion duly made by Commissioner Vicari, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, Presentation E-2 honoring Carl
Block was passed on final reading.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, so...
CLERK GUNTHER: “Can I take a roll call vote?”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “I’'m going to now go...now we also...I’'m going to get to the County Clerk’s former position
as County Clerk and ask Scott Colabella to introduce his staff and take any comments from you before we go to the
public. But first 'm going to go to the Commissioners starting with Commissioner Quinn.”

COMMISSIONER QUINN: “Thank you Jack. I think the comment in the resolution itself that Carl has left a mark
on every public office that he has held is just so true. I remember back in the day when Carl was the Mayor down in
Stafford how Stafford was such a sleepy little town. And with his hard work and his foresight into what the town
could become it’s just grown into such a tremendous asset to the county as far as the overall town itself goes. And
that was all, for the majority of that was because of Carl, the seeds he planted and the direction he put the town in.
Carl has done a great job for us as the County Clerk and Scott took over and Scott has taken and run with it from
there and Scott was mentored by Carl. And Carl has done that with so many different people. When I came onboard
here as a...well it was a Freeholder originally, now Commissioner, Carl welcomed me with open arms and he has
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been a tremendous asset to me in teaching me about County Government and kind of directing me in different areas
where I was kind of green. I didn’t really know what I was doing or which direction I should be going in. But, you
know, he has certainly done his job. He’s done it very well and his legacy is going to carry on for many, many years
to come. Just like Scott was mentored by Carl, now we have Mike Fiure coming up behind who was also mentored by
Carl. So he’s always taken and gone that extra step to make sure that things were put in place so that when the day
came the transition would be pretty smooth. I know he’s not going to just go off into the sunset and do nothing
because he still has so much to offer and I think that Carl is going to still play a role in a certain way.

But I certainly, like I said to Steve (Scaturro) I wish him the very best. I know the grandchildren are very important to
Carl just like the rest of us that are grandparents. And moving forward I wish you the very best Carl. Certainly take
the time...I see Sally is in the back there. Enjoy your life with your family. Enjoy your grandchildren. And certainly
take care of your health because as we get older your health and your family are the only two things that matter. The
rest of this is all great but it’s all secondary. I congratulate you. I thank you. And I wish you the very best.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Commissioner.”
COMMISSIONER QUINN: “Thank you Director.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Commissioner Crea.”

COMMISSIONER CREA: “Thank you Director. I remember Carl from many years ago because we worked together
as Mayors in almost neighboring towns. But just recently, and of course that had separated when Carl probably came
to the county. But I want to thank you Carl when I came to the county for your assistance when I first came onboard.
It was quite a transition going from a Municipal Government to County Government and [ want to thank you for the
time you took with me. I just want to wish you the best and [ want you to enjoy your family. And just congratulations
on your leaving.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you. And now the senior member of the Board.”

COMMISSIONER VICARI: “Thank you. You know I remember thinking back when we had a decision to make and
who is going to be in the Administrator's position, and we wanted a couple of things. And we sat down and we said,
‘What are the traits that we are looking for?” We wanted someone that was a leader — a state leader. We wanted
someone that could stand up by themselves and sometimes tell the Frecholders at that time, you know you’re going in
the wrong direction but here’s the alternative and to explain the thinking process before a decision was made. And
that was extremely important. And so we understood the needs of all 33 towns. Ocean County, as far as land and
water, is the largest county in the State of New Jersey. And it’s very diverse as far as the thinking goes in the small
towns and the big towns. How do we treat it equally? But we have to take care of the needs of the people and they
came first. Carl Block understood that. He came with a great deal of not only experience, but dealing with leaders
throughout the State of New Jersey. So he was able to pick up the phone and talk to any county, talk to people in the
State Legislature because of that experience that was so needed. And I think it showed up the most, I think if there
was one thing, during the Superstorm. We took a devastating hit as far as the ratable base - as far as houses - as far
as people suffering — families being displaced. And that was a very, very difficult time for all of us. And one

thing meant a great deal for us it’s the personal relationships that Carl Block had with other parts of the State of New
Jersey — different cabinet positions. But most of all with the different individual towns as far as making sure that we
left no one behind. There were a lot of people that were suffering during that time. And the waterfront people were
just absolutely devastated. It was one of the worst storms that we had in the history of Ocean County. They said it
comes once every 500 years. Well it came that once in 500 years and we had to deal with it. And we dealt withitin a
very logical way with experience. We said there’s nothing we can do to change the course of what took place but
we’re going to make it easier for every single person that we can. And it was very, very difficult to do. So I think if
there’s one thing, Carl, I think you should be proud of it's bringing Ocean County together again. Our ratable base
came up. Most of Ocean County is being rebuilt. The economy is thriving today. And it came because of, not only
your leadership, but the energy you put into it. But most of all that you cared about the people — the average common
person. And that’s what we’re here today for — the Board of Commissioners. The average working guy that’s in
Ocean County. The average working man and woman. And we look forward... and we all have...most of us have
grandchildren. Some have great-grandchildren. We want to make sure we give them the same opportunities that we’ve
had. We’ve been very fortunate in Ocean County. But I think our legacy is going to be someday if we can give them
the same opportunities, the same benefits, the same quality of life that we have today.

So Carl, thank you for being our friends, but most of all the people of Ocean County even those that are not here, they
appreciate what you have given them — the legacy you have given them, not only for yourself but the future of new
administrators that will take your place in the future. Thank you very much and God bless you and your family.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Commissioner. Deputy Director.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Thank you Mr. Director. I guess I probably have known Carl. . it goes back to
when my ex-husband who was the County Clerk...it goes back to when we lived in Barnegat. Of course we did a lot
of things in Stafford Township and then when Carl became Mayor... yet there were a lot of trials and tribulations that
you had to go through when you were running for office. If you remember with one particular individual who had a
very bad habit of putting up big billboards and things like that when you were running for office. If anyone
remembers Wesley Bell from Manahawkin. But I mean Carl has dedicated his time and his energy and his service to
the people of Ocean County. And he’s done an exemplary job of it. As I said I've known Carl for a long time and |
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just have nothing but.. .to go along with what everybody has echoed. .. all of your comments today of what you have
said about Carl. And I just want to wish him and Sally and of course your grandchildren...I just want to wish you all
the best for whatever amount of time that you just sit and relax for a while or whatever you’re going to be doing in the
future but just nothing but the best for you. And to thank you for the job well done and for all that you did for the
people of Ocean County. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Commissioner. On April 6, 1984 Carl and I had a meeting in the hospital at
Southern (Regional Medical Center) because our wives just had baby daughters. Now my wife had to wait to go in
for her c-section until Carl’s wife had her c-section. Why? Because Eagleswood where I was Mayor was smaller than
Stafford where Carl was Mayor. So, I read in the beginning about all the great things Carl did for County
Government but very early in both of our careers we met each other there and as our wives were suffering from the
surgery they just had Carl and [ were talking about local politics because we are super sensitive guys. So now 'll
mvite the entire Board to come up. And would you please join us too (Scott Colabella) with the Deputy County Clerk
and your administrative staff?”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “And his wife. And his wife.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “I'm getting there. I'm getting there. Guys, I can’t say everything at the same second. And
Carl if you’ll invite Sally up. And Jeff (Moran) I know that you’ve worked very closely in the Surrogate’s Office with
Carl if you would please come up. Now I’d invite everybody else but there’s only so much room up here. Okay, so
we’ll all go forward and make this presentation. Now, wait a minute. The Clerk of the Board doesn’t like that I said,
“All in favor, say aye.” She wants to do a roll call vote. So if you’ll call the roll to vote on the motion.”

CLERK GUNTHER: “Thank you Director.”

Roll call vote was taken.

CLERK GUNTHER: "Thank you."

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you. Alright guys, come right up.”
Pictures taken

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, now before we all sit down I’'m going to ask.. first of all, Sally, do you have anything
to say before we call on all these people? You sure? You're such a quiet girl. Alright let’s start with the County
Clerk. Would you introduce the Deputy Clerk and your staff?”

SCOTT COLABELLA: “I will do it. The Commissioner doesn’t know I have a four hour (inaudible).”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “I know how to cut you off though.” (Laughter)

SCOTT COLABELLA: “Best to Steve from the County Clerk’s Office. Congratulations, prematurely, to Ed
(McBride) and early congrats to Mike Fiure if he’s anywhere around. And now Carl. So two of what the
Commissioner Director and Carl have something in common - they both worked in the County Clerk’s Office along
with me, but after Jack left when Commissioner Kelly was elected, I went over to the office.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Took my job.”

SCOTT COLABELLA: “Took his job. I took out the word took. But in any event...and so that’s when I really got to
know Carl. He was the Deputy Clerk at that point. And our boss was Dean Haines, the County Clerk. So I look and [
go, ‘Oh my God, 18 years ago Carl was elected and it was 29 years ago that Jack was elected and I’ve been the clerk
for 12 years. So the three of us have some history here together. And by the way, our former boss does say all the
best to you Carl. He says come visit him in Florida. See how nice it is.

So, I brought over with me two veteran staff members that were actually.. .they’re still with us, believe it or not. 1
think they were there when Dean was the Clerk so they survived three Clerks. But they came over to wish Carl the
best — Trish Misura who is a Supervisor, Kim Saviet, of course, Barbara Lanuto, my Deputy and the Surrogate, Jeff
Moran, who had a few campaigns with Carl. In fact, Commissioner Vicari and Surrogate Moran and Carl all ran, if [
got this right, in 2008, was 1t? And you never lived until you drove the three of those around on a Sunday afternoon.
(Laughter) Carl on the phone, of course, and Jeff and Joe go back and forth, ‘Look at that Carl. Does he ever get off
the phone?” You know, oh my goodness. Great times, so...”

SURROGATE MORAN: “I think that was 2003. Scotty that was 2003.”
SCOTT COLABELLA: “2003, okay.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: "I was saying 2003."

SCOTT COLABELLA: “No, no that was 2008. 2003 you ran...”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “That was (John) Bartlett and (Jim) Mancini.”
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SCOTT COLABELLA: “Okay. So Carl, you know, I appreciate all you’ve done for me — wisdom, advice, all the
good things the Commissioners said.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you for your remarks.” (Laughter)
SCOTT COLABELLA: “And everybody’s mentioned (Superstorm) Sandy and COVID.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Everybody clap. He might sit down.” (Laughter)

SCOTT COLABELLA: “Guess who helped us out as a former Clerk in both of those situations? I mean, we had to
leave the Courthouse and we took over the Administration Building and he helped us through that, that whole awful
time. And then COVID we were over at the Library because we had to mail out 400,000 vote-by-mail ballots.
So...my goodness. While he was there at the office as I said, we both were always interested in technology. When
Carl first started to get there you know how election results came in? Over the phone. Then we went to the fax
machine. Great technology and now today, electronic transmission — electronic recording. It was a pleasure. I'm so
glad I was able to come here. We’re all so proud of what you’ve done. We wish you the best bringing you a fuzzy
photo of the last time you were sworn in as County Clerk with your daughter and Governor Christie in Courtroom
One.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “My youngest daughter, Lauren, she currently or is in this picture a brunette. She was
born a natural blonde. She changed her hair color at least every other quarter. It was the most expensive...expense
with my daughter but she’s a good one. And Governor Christie. (Laughter) And that’s the order I like them in.”

SCOTT COLABELLA: “And Kathy didn’t make it that day because your car broke down.”
ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Well, you didn't have to bring that one up.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Surrogate, would you like to say a few words?”

SURROGATE MORAN: “Other than Joe Vicari [ probably served the longest time with Carl in the Legislature. Carl
was our Mayor in Stafford and we dealt with Carl all the time and Len (Connors) always used to say that watch Carl
because he’s going to be somebody someday and we always knew.

But before I say anything else I just want to say, Brad, [ didn’t get up to say a few words. Brad Billhimer and I go
back a hundred years, dear friends, when he used to play in my yard. And he was always a good kid always took good
care of his toys. And I know he does a great job. And Steve (Scaturro) I go back with Steve...before I became the
Surrogate I was the Chairman of Regulated Professions when Brian took over for me when I left the Legislature. And
one of things we did was we created the Division of Consumer Affairs' and Steve was very instrumental in
coordinating that and making it happen. And I remember one year that [ was honored as the 'Distinguished Scholar'
for the Consumer Affairs and I remember Kenny Leake saying to me that years later that it was Steve that really
made the division in the business and it worked out. And it showed when I became the Surrogate and we had
problems and Steve was always there with the Prosecutor’s Office helping us out.

But Carl Block, I will never forget the great times we had on the campaign trail. And nobody talks like Carl Block.
We would get down to the island to a community affair and something and we’d all have it worked out with Jim
Mancini, John Bartlett and [ and we’d go in there, we’d say our peace and Carl would go on, and on and on and on.
And one year we were down in Beach Haven and we brought the wrong sponges and they were Carl Block sponges in
Stafford. And I remember (John) Bartlett going to hand them out and I told him and he said, ‘Oh people don’t know
the difference out here anyway. They think we’re all (inaudible). (Laughter)

But Carl it was a pleasure working with you. And I know, personally, [ will miss you and thank you again for letting
me say a few words.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Mr. Surrogate. Carl, you’re on.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: "Well some of the stories...we’re not going to go into very much detail but let me
say the 2008 campaign with Joe Vicari and Jeff Moran. ..they had, let’s say, nominal resistance where I had an ass
kicking candidate who beat us up. And what would happen? We’d go into a senior village to speak, Jeff gets up and
says, ‘I’m the Surrogate. I know you all love me and thank you very much.” Sit down. Joe Vicari, ‘I’'m Joe Vicari.
Everyone loves me - so I'm going to sit down.! Now Carl Block is going to get up and get into a debate with my
opponent. And I go back and forth and beat up... I get in the car and said, ‘Thanks you guys. You were a big help.’
(Laughter) And Vicari goes, ‘That’s fine. Let’s go for pizza.’

John Bartlett and Jim Mancini, God rest their souls - great people. I love them both. But that was my first county-
wide campaign and the sponges. Jim Mancini, ‘Hand out more sponges. Stop talking and hand out sponges.” John
Bartlett, ‘It’s a big county. Let’s go. Let’s move.” I'm just answering their question. ‘It’s a big county. We have
another place. Let’s go.’

DIRECTOR KELLY: “You should have learned from Vicari and the Surrogate.”
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ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Yeah.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Just tell everybody to love you and sit down.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Yeah, well when you have an opponent that doesn’t do that it’s hard. But what [ have
learned over the years in a couple of positions I've had... and I worked for Shop-Rite and [ worked for Foodtown.
That was a job. I collected a check. I did my job and I think I did it well for those companies. But the Mayor, the
Clerk and the Administrator to me was part of a career. Part of what I think I’d hoped to do with my life is to be able
to improve things for people. And as much as a Mayor or a Clerk or an Administrator make it accolades. It’s only as
good. . .they’re only as good, whoever they may be, as the people who work for them, support them, help them, and in
all those jobs I was blessed to have a great staff. In Stafford Township, for 26 years building that town and it was a
hard goodbye but I lost an election. And in politics sometimes that happens — the only one I ever lost. But it was a
great career for 26 years. But it was a hard goodbye to say. And when, then Frecholder, now Commissioner Kelly,
and then Freeholder Bartlett came over and we talked about the Administrator’s job. I just won re-clection for a five-
year term. Constitutional Officers can virtually run for life. Why would I give that up? Jack Kelly gave me some
bullshit about...the next thing you know ['m sitting over on the third floor. But saying goodbye to the Clerk
employees was hard. We had been through very hard times and challenging times. And again, it was hard to do
because the staff was so good. And I thankfully thank the two representatives here today and the staff that remains.

And now is a goodbye to the entire county staff. At the PreBoard meeting we had and the senior staff meeting I said a
little bit and [ mean it when [ say you cannot do this without people who are dedicated. And to anyone who says that
well it’s that guy or that woman. That’s a crock. It’s several people helping them.

And so, I'm going to speed read through most of them. And all of them if you're in the room please thank you, I'm
saying thank you for all that help you gave me over the years. Thank you for being good at what you do and did. If
you’re not here I'll get to the ones at the end. B&G — Joe Meyers — oh my God. Tourism, going back to Bobbie
Steele, who I might add when you went out to libraries for Ocean County Day it was fine until she started using her
bullhorn. I was at the doctor the other day. I do have a deficit hearing loss. I blame it on Bobbie Steele. I think it’s
Workman’s Comp. Jeanne DiPaola went on, Dana Lancellotti and now Sandra Lazzaro — all fabulous people. All did
a great job. Clerk of the Board — who was here when I got here? Betty Vasil. Who doesn’t love Betty Vasil? But when
she retired Mary Ann Cilento or MAC. . .she actually was my secretary at the time. She went over to Clerk of the
Board to the Board Secretary. And now we have Michelle Gunther, who by the way is perfect for this job. She is
OCD. (Laughter) But that’s a good thing as you see tonight she keeps everyone on their toes. County Counsel, Jack
Sahradnik and Laura Benson, always great legal advice and great friends. Consumer Affairs, Steve Scaturro — we’re
going out together September 1. Love you Steve. Thank you for all you’ve done and I’ll be presumptive and assume,
congratulations Ed (McBride). Scott (Colabella) who is here. Now, again, no long stories, I'll say Scott is an
absolutely fabulous worker — fabulous Clerk. Only one thing bad I can say about him and I'm between two of them.
They both root for teams that wear green jerseys. And they’re not the Jets. I’'m a Giants fan. What can I say? First
Aid Center, Hal Morris. Brian Gabriel, who just came onboard, doing a great job of coming up. Dan Mulligan who’s
been a Fire Marshal the whole time. Dan Regenye who’s in the room I think, the Board of Health. Human Services,
Jill Perez was here when I got here, now Tracy Maksel. Information Technology, Howard Asay. For those of you
who don’t know Howard is a different person outside this building. I know most people don’t believe it but he is. And
a great guy. And then from there, John Vollmann and Mary Lou (Mycoff) who has now got her hands around the I'T
Department which is surging and doing a great job.

The Warden just retired, Sandra Mueller but we have Joe Valenti who was, again, the Deputy Warden, doing a great
job. Juvenile Services, Jon Carmen, in the back. Jon is able to single-handedly take care of the entire Juvenile Shelter
because he used to play offensive lineman for the Vikings and that’s no joke. Stand up John. Stand up.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Who says little guys (inaudible) I can still take him on." (Laughter)

ANONOMYOUS: “This is my friend Carmen if you don’t know.” (Laughter)

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Library, Susan Quinn here has actually been here the whole time. And Management
and Budget - I inherited Ralph Patterson. Ralph is a nice guy. And I’'m going to talk about his replacement in a
minute. Parks and Recreation, Mike Mangum, he’ll probably tell you the story too. Planning Department was Dave
McKeon who still is active but now Tony Agliata is doing a great job. Mark Villinger has potential as well there."
DIRECTOR KELLY: “What about Dave McKeon?”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “I did say Dave McKeon.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Yeah.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Go ahead. I’'m not listening to you really.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Same thing when we were outside in the hallways with our babies, [ mean. Which by
the way the other part of the hospital story is I was also on the Board of the hospital so they made sure to get my ex-

wife right in. Jack Kelly — I didn’t know he was waiting until we passed in the hallway. Then he goes, ‘Oh it was
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you.’ I said, ‘Of course it was not me, it was her.””
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Now you know why [ talked you into leaving the County Clerk.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Paybacks are...Printing and Graphics, Carmen Amato. Great Mayor of Berkeley,
great Printing and Graphics and a great friend. Prosecutor’s Office. . .alright, Brad, sitting back there. But [ started
with Marlene Lynch Ford, who I knew from a previous life in politics. But I knew her as a judge, a prosecutor and a
judge again. And she is good at all of them - yielded to Joe Coronato and then Brad Billhimer. Thank you Brad for
your cooperation and he’s been an excellent Prosecutor in my eyes to date.

Public Information, Donna Flynn. You know we have Rich (Peterson) who is...I don’t want to say who is taking
Donna’s place but has certainly served the information...”

RICH PETERSON: “Filling in. That’s all. Filling in.”
ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “What’s that?”
RICH PETERSON: “Filling in.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Filling in. Filling in. I like that. Risk Management, MaryAnn Noto who is retired —
Toni DiPaolo — still here. The Road Department, Tom Curcio and Scott Waters. Scott Waters...now I will say
this...Scott’s a young guy — still — he’s still a young guy. But I remember because I used to run an election in
Stafford Township and there was this guy who showed up every election with a pick-up truck and he would put out
signs for me. His name was Fred Waters. He was a teacher at the school. A great friend and he’s still having a great
time in Florida and there was this kid in the truck helping him and I never knew, and to this day, don’t know whether
that was forced labor or volunteerism. (Laughter) But thank you Scott. He’s doing a great job with the Road
Department.

Ron Roma, Security — thank you so much for all the help. The Sheriff’s Office...I actually started when Sheriff
Polhemus was here - God rest his soul. But when Mike Mastronardy came in things changed. He is nonstop. Goes a
million miles an hour. He’s everywhere. 1 forget what cartoon it is that has the saying, ‘He’s everywhere. He’s
everywhere.” Wherever it is.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Chicken man.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Surrogate, Jeff Moran, again, part of the Constitutional Officer’s Group with Scott
and the Sheriff and myself. And we went to many a meeting and many a conference in Cape May. And I wish we still
had them. Board of Social Services, Linda Murtagh just retired — Meredith (Sheehan) is taking over there again. It’s a
tough office to handle but is doing a great job. Senior Services - | go way back when Jane Maloney was first there.
Jane, actually, I knew her from the St. Francis Center. Jackie Rohan took over. Maria LaFace is now there. Again, a
good job. I hate to say it but several of these people are lawyers. | won’t identify but...” (Laughter)

Transportation, Kathy Edmond who actually, her husband worked for me in Shop-Rite of all things. I came in, I said,
Edmond, Edmond, I know that name. Her husband Tommy worked for me in Shop-Rite many, many years ago. But
now, Dave Fitzgerald, doing a great job out there and if anyone knows any good software you might talk to Dave.
He’s in search of some.

Veterans Services, John Dorrity who just retired and Phil (Zimmerman), again, picked up the ball and is doing a great
job and I think you’ll see great things out of the Veterans Office real soon. Vehicle Services, currently Brian
McCarthy. Prior to that it was Jim Pine. If you’re following this family tree it goes back to... he was a
Committeeman and former Mayor of Eagleswood.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “I wonder who brought him in.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “I wonder.” (Laughter) Now I think I got most of you but then you start saying, okay,
everybody thank you. So far, thank you. But then at the end you have to say an extra thank you. So first Employee
Relations. I'm sorry Rob’s (Greitz) not here. I mean, since he’s not I can talk about him more. (Laughter) Keith
Goetting — great guy. And there’s just no way am I going to be able to thank the help he was to me navigating the
personnel matters of the county and a great friend. And he said make sure you pick somebody good and recommend
someone for a replacement and that was Rob. And Rob has picked up the ball very well. One of the common allies
between the two is they both like beer. Keith likes real beer. Rob likes root beer. Not any root beer - only Barq’s root
beer. But doing a great job and I have to thank him. Julie Tarrant — been here the whole time. The person with the
money. The person, however, who has institutional knowledge - who has the acumen and the work ethic and one of
the things with Julie is at times she’s too good because she wants to do everything just right. And that’s what makes
her good. And that doesn’t make her good it makes her great. She is a great CFO. And I hope a good friend, still.

Last of it was the Management and Budget I mentioned Ralph (Patterson) was here when I got here and I see you
hiding in the back. When Ralph retired [ went to the Board. | went to John Bartlett first. And the potential in the
Management and Budget office was there to do more. Purchasing was a part of it. And Jen Bowens, thank you, and
took the Purchasing portion and we split the office. It was still under the eventual Department Head which was Mike
(Fiure). Mike has come in, taking classes. Has done a great job of growing and learning and learning to lead. He is
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someone who will do everyone proud who voted for him for Administrator. And [ know that if he makes a mistake
I’'m coming back. I’'m going to stand there and I’m going to point it out to you so you better not make one. But he’s a
great guy and a great friend.

Then you come in to work every day and you see all these other people and some of them you see more often than not.
And they’re the last two on the list which originally was “MAC” MaryAnn Cilento and Debbie Gries who is sitting
over there. Debbie took...I asked her to be the secretary for John Bartlett, then unfortunately John passed. Debbie
came back and MAC went over to be the Clerk of the Board. So we had to find a second, another person in between
all that. And Scott mentioned the chaos, the melee, the storm.. . what it had done. This whole building was full of
people. There were computers set up everywhere issuing ballots — doing the right thing. And right out in that hallway
in the middle of that hallway was a folding table — someone sitting at that table issuing. . half the time you couldn’t
see as you walk by. So I would every once in a while walk through and say, ‘You okay?” And it was Christine
(Allen). And she was issuing ballots. She was a T-120 for Scott.”

SCOTT COLABELLA: “I got her from the Holiday Inn, right Christine?”
CHRISTINE ALLEN: “Yes, that’s right.”
SCOTT COLABELLA: “Didn’t you work at the Holiday Inn? Yes?”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: It doesn’t seem to faze her. This whole chaos thing. So when we were looking for
another person when Debbie left MAC says, ‘You know, how about that person that was in the lobby?” And I said,
“You know, [ was thinking about that myself. I said maybe we’ll give her a shot.” And between Debbie and Christine
they have put up with my moods, my grumpiness, my ‘Don’t poke the bear’ moments and all this through the entire
ten years that they have been with me. I thank you for all of the work you’ve done but I thank you for being good
friends and for taking care of me even when [ was in the hospital making sure you were texting with Sally to see just
is he okay today. I wasn’t sure if that was you wanted me to get better or you didn’t want to know when I was coming
back. I thank you, truly, very much for that.

And then. . .is TJ (Collins) here?”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Yeah, he’s hiding near Phil.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “TJ is...Mike is going to take my place. TJ will take Mike’s place. I worked with him
now for the month. He certainly seems to have the acumen and the ability to do it. But since [ haven’t worked with
you in a long time I can’t tell any stories about you. And I would be careful since you’re a retired State Police. But |
would say good luck. You have a great team to work with. They will do the best for you and I know you’ll help Mike
a lot. And good tuck.

I think that’s about everybody.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Did you mention John Ernst?”
ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Oh John Ernst. Oh, I'm sorry.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “He spends more money than anybody.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “I know. Okay, well you know what? And John you are on here and I skipped over.
And Tim Hart. Tim Hart is not here but thank you to Tim. When I first got here it was Frank Scarantino. And Frank
just ran a good shop. But John was there and when Frank retired here comes John Ernst. Well I knew John from the
outside because as a Mayor [ also sat on the Planning Board. So for 26 years | was Mayor- 26 years on the Planning
Board. And there was this firm, Ernst, Ernst & Lissenden. And I knew John before this but he is a great County
Engineer. We have navigated many a problem although I can’t stop him from spending money Commissioner, I'm
sorry. But he has rose to the occasion every time. And John, thank you very much — good friend. And you remember
those days in private industry but I think he likes it better where he is.

Is there anyone I forgot? Oh Trish. I see Trish here. Hi Trish. You want to still (inaudible) you got her. Anyone else
that I missed, I’'m sorry, and thank you all. And it is the harsh goodbye because it is one that I’ll be saying once and |
will not be at the next meeting so thank you all.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you.”
(Applause)

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “That’s all the employees. I have to thank the Commissioners because without them I
would have never been appointed throughout the years. I apologize for leaving you for last. Thank you very much.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, thank you all.

Now when we all sit down what I want to do is invite all the employees up first, one at a time. If there’s anything you
want to say about your former boss. No, seriously, I’m not joking about that. You may have something you want to
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say to Carl. Just line up behind each other right here and whatever comments you want to make we’re going to listen
to them.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “I make a motion to adjourn.” (Laughter)
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Bobbi Jo, did your leg hold up?”
COMMISSIONER CREA: “Talk fast.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Well now you’re sitting down. You’ll be fine.”
COMMISSIONER CREA: “I’'m okay. Thank you for your patience.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Are there any members of the staff that want to say anything to Carl before he leaves? This is
his last meeting so you won’t get the opportunity again. That’s smart because we didn’t vote on you yet.”

ED MCBRIDE, 21 TOLEDO DRIVE, BRICK: “Can I have five minutes?”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Take all the time you need.”

ED MCBRIDE: “I'm kidding. Carl, I want to thank you very much. When I got transferred into the Veterans Bureau
I really didn’t know you even though I've been here 21 years and you were just absolutely wonderful to me in the
transition and tough time and I want to thank you. And I want to thank my good friend, Steve Scaturro, I didn’t get to
say anything. It’s going to be tough not working with Steve. We’ve been together a long time and it’s going to be
tough. I’'m going to miss him. Thank you both.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Ed. Anyone else? Okay, everybody...come right up. The Librarians are always
used to giving speeches.”

SUSAN QUINN, DIRECTOR, OCEAN COUNTY LIBRARY: “I would just like to say on behalf of the Ocean
County Library and the Ocean County Library Commission to thank Carl Block for his advice and to say he was a
core member of the team to win the grant for the new Stafford Library. So thank you very much for that and we look
forward to seeing you at the grand opening.”

RUTHANNE SCATURRO: “Just thank you Carl...I appreciate everything you’ve done for the Library. I'm
speaking as a Library Chair now.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Oh good.”

RUTHANNE SCATURRO: “My different hat. So thank you for everything you’ve done to help with the library in
Stafford and thank all of you for your support for the library because the library is certainly more than just books.
And I think every time [ look at the statistics of everything that goes on in the library it’s all because of you, so thank

23

you.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you. Anyone ¢lse? Okay, seeing no one else we’re going to move on with the agenda.
And we’re going to go on to adoption of several ordinances. I will tell you that we have already held the Public
Hearing on these ordinances. So they’re going to be read into the record. We’re going to have a motion to adopt and a
second and before I take the roll call vote I will accept any comments anybody wants to make, but understand, the
official record is already in place. All these had their Public Hearing at our last meeting. So Madam Clerk, if you
will.”

Clerk Gunther continues with the reading of the Ordinances.

3. Honoring Stephen Scaturro as he retires from 16 years of dedicated service to the Ocean County Department
of Consumer Affairs.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001157
PRESENT: ‘John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Virginia E. Haines

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, the next presentation we’re going to do is listed as E-3 honoring Stephen Scaturro as
he retires from 16 years of dedicated service to the Ocean County Department of Consumer Affairs. I’'m going to turn
the mike over to Commissioner Vicari.”

COMMISSIONER VICARI: “And please for the record read the proclamation and then I'll present it to Steve and his
family and the Board.”
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Clerk Gunther reads the proclamation into the record.

COMMISSIONER VICARI: “I’d just like to say on behalf of the Board of Commissioners and also the employees of
Ocean County, of course, everyone that he served, you know, Steve served 16 years - is a legacy, showed great
leadership. And he served as an example, not only for the residents of Ocean County as far as protecting the
consumers, but also with helping small businesses thrive. If there was a problem the first thing that we said, “‘How can
we help you?” Not a violation. He said, ‘What can we do to make it right?” Because in most times when it was a
violation, it was an innocent violation. It’s something that could have been corrected. But Steve has a long legacy in
Brick Township and in Ocean County of being a leader. And at the age of 17 he decided upon himself as the first-
generation, [talian-American, to get involved and joined the United States Army. He served as a veteran, you know,
disabled veteran and wanted to do more in his last years serving in his last 16 years, he wanted to work for the County
of Ocean. And one of the things he did and served for the county according to the Attorney General and according to
every county that has a Department of Consumer Affairs, he was a leader. He changed the way in which they
operated. You know, Ocean County serves more people as far as getting money back and giving subpoenas than
virtually the entire State of New Jersey that has a Department of Consumer Affairs. We are not told or given by law
to have a Department of Consumer Affairs. Many years ago the department decided that the Board of Chosen
Freeholders, at that time, decided we wanted to do more to protect our residents to give them information and to help
businesses. And that’s one of the reasons why a lot of the counties do not have a Department of Consumer Affairs.
They have a Department of Weights and Measures which is mandated but this is not mandated.

But Steve brought the Department of Consumer Affairs to a new level in the State of New Jersey. Every single
county, the other 20 counties, use Ocean County as a model to follow. When the State Attorney General comes in
several times a year, he always commends us for the things that we have done in Ocean County. Things that we are
not mandated to do, but it’s the right thing to do. But Steve does it because it’s his job. He takes it personally. He
comes in every day - works seven days a week — gets phone calls on weekends - deals with the 200,000 senior citizens
that we have - have many different unusual problems. But something else. . .before he became Director of Consumer
Affairs he served his community, not only as a police officer but also as a volunteer in different agencies and different
departments whether it be the Chamber of Commerce or different business communities.

But today he’s here to say not only is he going to a different way but most of all he wants to devote more time to his
family that’s over here today. His lovely wife Ruthanne and his son. And his children could not make it, some of
them. But he just wants to say, you know something? I'm still part of the county family. Whatever Ocean County
needs he will still continue to serve on the Ocean County Vocational School as the Vice President.

So we’re proud to say, Steve that you worked for us. You led by example not only the people in your department and
most of those have a background in law enforcement that work there as a Civil Service Department but also the
mmpression and the work ethic that you impressed on the over 1600 employees of Ocean County. So we’re here to say
thank you for all you have done. You served as an example and you showed great leadership, but most of all it’s the
friendships you had to every single person that’s a department head.

So if you could come up with your family and the Board of Commissioners would like not only to take a picture, to
shake your hand and say welcome back to our next meeting and we’re going to save that seat in the back so you can
come to every meeting. You have an assigned seat.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Steve, just before you come up for that picture you can work your way up but I’'m going to
allow each Commissioner that wants to say something to you to say that starting with Commissioner Quinn.”

COMMISSIONER QUINN: “Thank you very much. Steve, it’s hard to believe this day has gotten here because
reading your resume, reading the proclamation, you have accomplished so many things in your lifetime, probably 10
times more than most normal people would. Your legacy is going to carry on for years and years. | would suggest if it
was me retiring [ don’t think I’d be at every meeting sitting in that back row but we will keep that seat available. But
go out and start enjoying yourself. Enjoy yourself and everything— get to do things but you’re always on the schedule.
You’re always restricted on what you can do, when you can do it because you always put your job first. And you’ve
done a fantastic job working for us. You came through so many difficult times. You were here for (Superstorm)
Sandy. You were here for a lot of difficult things that the county has had to deal with. And certainly during those
years your hard work and your dedication really helped out a tremendous amount of people that otherwise would have
been just pushed to the wayside. You deserve all the happiness you can have in your future and [ certainly wish you
and your family the best. But take a breath, you know, take a little time to just relax. And, you know, the schools
will still be in your everyday involvement, but make your number one priority yourself, your family and your health. |
wish you the best. I really do.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Very good.”

COMMISSIONER QUINN: “Thanks Steve.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Commissioner Crea.”

COMMISSIONER CREA: “Thank you. God bless you. It’s really an enjoyment to be able to have worked and retire
and take the time as Commissioner Quinn said, take the time to relax. And I know that Ruthanne will probably have a

whole lot of things for you to do. You’ll have the 'honey do list' like everybody else does. But regardless, thank you
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for your work with the county. I wasn’t here for the longest time to work with you but God bless you, stay well and
enjoy your days. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Commissioner. Deputy Director.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Thank you Mr. Director. Well Steve I can’t even think of the number of years that
I’ve known you but your department has helped me. So it is one of the most outstanding. . .it is the most outstanding
Consumer Affairs Department in the State of New Jersey. | had an issue with a department store and it went on for
like four or five months and it finally get rectified. But it just shows the dedication that your team that you have put
together there at the Consumer Affairs has done. I know you’re looking forward to retirement. I know Ruthanne is
looking forward to your retirement because [ know she has said that at least the times you’re going to be able to get
away to go to your vacation home and things like that. But you deserve, you know, a very, very long, happy
retirement. Just go and relax. And I know I'll probably be seeing you at the Vocational School Board meetings which
we have tomorrow.”

STEPHEN SCATURRO: “Tomorrow.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Yes, I will see you. But I just want to wish you and Ruthanne the best. Just enjoy
your life. Just enjoy it. And think of us once in a while. But thank you, really, for all that you’ve done, for not just
myself in rectifying a situation, but also for the residents of Ocean County for what you have done. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you Ginny. If I learned anything Steve from our last meeting is that your new priority
is to be a chauffeur for Ruthanne. She let us all know that. It’s not to spend time with the grandchildren. It is to be
your wife’s chauffeur. You are not only an outstanding leader of the Consumer Affairs Department, you sir, are an
outstanding person. I am glad to have known you for all these many years and I’'m going to continue to know you for
many more. | just want to say we appreciate you and we thank you for your years of service.

And now I'm going to ask the entire Board to join with Commissioner Vicari in presenting that plaque to you.”
COMMISSIONER VICARI: "So Steve, I think it's appropriate that your family come up also for the picture."
Pictures taken.

COMMISSIONER VICARI: "So Steve, would you like to say a few words to our family? And everyone is a family
over here.”

STEPHEN SCATURRO: “I don’t know if I need it (the microphone). I think everybody can hear me. Chief, can you
hear me? First of all I’d like to thank the Frecholders, now Commissioners, for having the faith and trust to support
my goals and objectives to make this department the very best in the State of New Jersey. We have accomplished that
with your support and guidance. There are so many people in this room that I want to thank and recognize that have
been there - Carl Block, who was our Administrator, Mike Fiure, the Assistant Administrator, Alan Avery, prior to
that, Keith Goetting, Rob Greitz - all of our Department Heads. Our affiliation with the Prosecutor’s Office -
Prosecutor Brad Billhimer, Chief Anthony Carrington, First Assistant (Prosecutor) Mike Nolan. Thank you for all
your support and guidance over the years to help us to enforce the laws of Ocean County. All our Department Heads
here that I’ve worked so closely with. . .every one of you. All I had to do was to pick up the phone and any support we
needed. .. Joe Meyers, you were phenomenal. During (Superstorm) Sandy and the pandemic we never missed a day of
work. Our team was always in there. I have to recognize Eddiec McBride, my Deputy. Eddie and I with our
backgrounds were very similar growing up from the military, Military Police Sergeants right through the current day,
police officers. And going forward we built this department together. We staffed it with the most experienced people.
Last year we had over 9,000 cases that we processed through Consumer Affairs. Consumer Affairs Department, we
have Weights and Measures, and in the very beginning we had Construction Inspections where we were responsible
for every township in the county to do all their inspections — electrical, plumbing, etc., etc. And eventually this county
gave it back to the municipalities. And beyond that, and most importantly, was my family who supported me through
the time...Ruthanne and I have six children, eleven grandchildren and two great-grandchildren on the way in January
and March. I have my daughter Suzanne here and my son Stephen, my son-in-law Dennis on the side. The rest of our
gang is out of state or working and can’t be here today. But to all of you I want to say thank you very much for
supporting me. Our Constitutional Officers...I’m looking around the room. Thank you very much, Jeff (Moran),
you’ve all been very...right. God I could name everybody in the room here and I want to. And I want to shake all
your hands and thank you for your support over the years. Thank you very much.”

(Applause)

DIRECTOR KELLY: “I’m going to have the Clerk of the Board accept a motion and a second on that resolution.
We’ve already presented it but we haven’t voted on it yet.”

STEPHEN SCATURRO: “You going to take it back?” (Laughter)

On Motion made by Commissioner Vicari, seconded by Commissioner Haines, Presentation E-3 honoring Stephen
Scaturro as he retires was adopted on final reading.

(Applause)
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DIRECTOR KELLY: “Prosecutor, I'm getting so you can leave now.” (Laughter)

PROSECUTOR BILLHIMER: “T appreciate it.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “We’ll do one more for the Administrator and then you can go.”

Now, just before I go to the next presentation I want to explain why we’re doing all of these presentations today. This
is our last meeting this month and these are people who are retiring, leaving County Government, so we wanted to
recognize them because at the next meeting they’re not going to be here. We wanted to do that today and recognize
their service."

***Next presentation is E-2. Please see comments under E-2,***
ORDINANCE - ADOPTION

1. ORDINANCE #2022-25 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $500,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of Renovations, Replacements and Upgrades at Various Health Department
Facilities, all in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

RESULT ADOPTED  Official Resolution #: 2022001185
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read Ordinance #2022-25 by title, which was scheduled for final adoption at this time.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, before I do the roll call vote would anyone like to have any comments on this? Seeing
none, roll call vote.”

Roll call vote was taken.
On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, Ordinance #2022-25 was adopted
on final reading.

2. ORDINANCE #2022-26 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $5,000,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of the Design of the Courthouse Annex located in Toms River
Township, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001186
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read Ordinance #2022-26 by title, which was scheduled for final adoption at this time.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Anybody like to be heard on this Ordinance? I'm saying seeing none, but [ don’t have my
glasses on so. Okay, I don’t see any comments so roll call vote.”

Roll call vote was taken.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, Ordinance #2022-26 was adopted
on final reading.

3. ORDINANCE #2022-27 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $4,000,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of Renovations and Upgrades to the Northern Resource Building located in
Lakewood Township, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001187
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Virginia E. Haines
SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read Ordinance #2022-27 by title, which was scheduled for final adoption at this time.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Does anyone have any comments on this Ordinance before we vote? Seeing none, roll call

vote.”

Roll call vote was taken.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, Ordinance #2022-27 was adopted

on final reading.

4. ORDINANCE #2022-28 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $250,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of Generator Installation and Upgrades for the County Mosquito
Commission, located in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001188
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Barbara Jo Crea

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read Ordinance #2022-28 by title, which was scheduled for final adoption at this time.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Would anyone like to have any comments on this Ordinance? Seeing no comments, roll call

vote.”

Roll call vote was taken.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, Ordinance #2022-28 was adopted
on final reading.

5. ORDINANCE #2022-29 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $1,500,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of the Construction of a Salt Dome to be located in Lacey Township, County

of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001189
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read Ordinance #2022-29 by title, which was scheduled for final adoption at this time.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Anybody like to be heard on this Ordinance? Seeing no comment, roll call vote.”

Roll call vote was taken.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, Ordinance #2022-29 was adopted
on final reading.

6.  ORDINANCE #2022-30 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $1,000,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of Upgrades to the Northern Recycling Center located in Lakewood
Township, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001190
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read Ordinance #2022-30 by title, which was scheduled for final adoption at this time.
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Anyone like to be heard on this Ordinance? Seeing no public comment, roll call vote.”

Roll call vote was taken.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, Ordinance #2022-30 was adopted
on final reading.

7. ORDINANCE #2022-31 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $1,500,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of Renovations, Replacements and Upgrades at the Brick Township Location
of the County Vocational Technical School, all in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001191
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read Ordinance #2022-31 by title, which was scheduled for final adoption at this time.
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Anybody like to be heard on this Ordinance? Seeing none, roll call vote.”

Roll call vote was taken.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Vicari, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, Ordinance #2022-31 was adopted
on final reading.

RESOLUTION - PUBLIC HEARING

CLERK GUNTHER: “The next items on the agenda are Resolutions for Public Hearing. We have three of them
today”

1. Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to acquire property
identified as Block 394, Lot 13.05, Township of Toms River, totaling approximately 1.03 acres located on
Church Road, in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00, plus up to $550.00 for property tax adjustments.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001166
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A
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Clerk Gunther read the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution by
title, which was scheduled for Public Hearing at this time.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Commissioner Haines, any comments?”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Thank you very much. If you can look up at the screen the property is...I don’t
know if you can really...it’s the yellow...its right up in the corner there. It’s really hard to see. But this property as
was stated is on Church Road in Toms River. It’s adjacent to the Ocean County College and over 200 acres of
existing county open space. The property contains a tributary of Silver Bay and the property owner accepted our
negotiated offer of $150,000.00. And the township has supported this acquisition by resolution.”

Director Kelly opened the Public Hearing on the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
recommendation resolution to the public for comments.

No comments were received, therefore, the Public Hearing was declared closed.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, the Ocean County Natural Lands
Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution was adopted on final reading.

2. Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to acquire property
identified as Block 50, Lot 14 & Block 63, Lots 10, 10.05, 10.08 and 10.09, Borough of Tuckerton, totaling
approximately 48.21 acres located on Route 9, in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00, plus up to $3,200.00
for property tax adjustments.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001167
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution by
title, which was scheduled for Public Hearing at this time.

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Commissioner.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Okay, thank you Mr. Director. As was stated the property is in Tuckerton. And as
you can see up on the map it’s the yellow section where it says Main Street, Tuckerton. And it’s adjacent to over 200
acres of US Fish and Wildlife owned land known as the Edwin B. Forsythe Refuge. The property owner, as was
stated, accepted the negotiated offer of $450,000.00 and the borough has supported the acquisition by resolution
which all of our Natural Lands. . .the towns that we...any of the places that we are purchasing the property it has to
be supported by the towns or else we will not purchase it.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “One more.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Well I'm going to do the Public Hearing on this one first.”
DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Yes.”

Director Kelly opened the Public Hearing on the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
recommendation resolution to the public for comments.

No comments were received, therefore, the Public Hearing was declared closed.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, the Ocean County Natural Lands
Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution was adopted on final reading.

3. Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to accept the
donation of property identified as Block 4320, Lot 6, Township of Lacey, totaling approximately 0.98 acres
located near Lacey Road.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001168
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Clerk Gunther read the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution by
title, which was scheduled for Public Hearing at this time.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Thank you Michelle. As you can see if you can see there’s that little yellow dot in
there but everything you see in green is all preserved property. It is an inholding within 1200 acres of county-owned
Natural Lands property which was acquired from Structural Management in 2014. The acquisition would allow us to
vacate the surrounding paper streets which all of that land in there is...there is a lot of those paper streets that are
there. And the property, as was said, is being offered as a donation. And of course the township has supported this
acquisition.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you.”

Director Kelly opened the Public Hearing on the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
recommendation resolution to the public for comments.

No comments were received, therefore, the Public Hearing was declared closed.

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, the Ocean County Natural Lands
Trust Fund Advisory Committee recommendation resolution was adopted on final reading.

H. AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF BILLS IN BILL COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 16.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001147
PRESENT: ‘John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

CLERK GUNTHER: “The next item on the agenda is Authorizing the Payment of Bills in Bill Committee Report No.
1 6.7’

Abstentions:

Mr. Vicari, except on the Vouchers listed on the Bill Summary Report which is part of the Bill Committee Report No.
16 record.

Mr. Quinn, except on the Vouchers listed on the Bill Summary Report which is part of the Bill Committee Report No.
16 record.

Ms. Haines, except on the Vouchers listed on the Bill Summary Report which is part of the Bill Committee Report
No. 16 record.

I. APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS IN BILL
COMMITTEE REPORT NO. ERA2-5.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001148
PRESENT: ‘John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

CLERK GUNTHER: “The next item on the agenda is Approving and Ratifying the Emergency Rental Assistance
Payments in Bill Committee Report No. ERA2-5.”

J. AUTHORIZING ENGINEERING PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTORS AS LISTED BELOW:
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CLERK GUNTHER: “The next items on the agenda are Authorizing Engineering Payments to Contractors, Items J-1

through J-6.”

1. EARLE ASPHALT COMPANY - Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Shorrock Street from Route 70 to
Beaverson Boulevard, Brick and Lakewood Townships - Change Order #1, E-$367.50, R-$0.00. (B2021-

07E)
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001150
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Virginia E. Haines
SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

2. MIDLANTIC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Replacement of Bamber Bridge (Structure No. 1512-008), Lacey

Road (C.R. 614) over the Middle Branch of Cedar Creek, Township of Lacey - Partial Estimate #6,

$392,015.67. (B2021-114E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001151
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. J.C. CONTRACTING, INC. - Reconstruction of the South Hope Chapel Road (C.R. 547) and Ridgeway
Boulevard Signalized Intersection, Township of Manchester - Partial Estimate #1, $117,124.43. (B2021-

171E)
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001152
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Virginia E. Haines
SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

4. J.C. CONTRACTING, INC. - Construction of Traffic Signal at West County Line Road (C.R. 526) and

Teaberry Court, Lakewood Township - Partial Estimate #1, $111,073.71. (B2021-169E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001153
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. BLACK ROCK ENTERPRISES, LLC - Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Portions of Certain County

Roads, Contract 2019C, No. II - Partial Estimate #4, $583,497.66. (B2021-198E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001154
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A
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6. SEACOAST CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Stormwater Management Contract 2020C, Various Townships -
Change Order #1, E-$79,840.99, R-$18,298.73. (B2021-48E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001155
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

RESOLUTIONS

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, we’re going to move on to Resolutions but I ask you to hold K-24 to after some
comments.”

CLERK GUNTHER: “Okay.”

CLERK GUNTHER: “The next items on the agenda are Resolutions. So we’ll do K-1 through K-23 and K-25."
Roll call vote was taken.

CLERK GUNTHER: "Director, you’re going to move now to K-247”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “I’m going to ask Commissioner Quinn if he has comments on that before we vote on it.”

COMMISSIONER QUINN: “Which one is that Jack?" You're going to speak on that right?" (motions to
Commissioner Haines)

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Yes.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Oh you are? Okay.”

***See comments under K-24***

1. Authorizing the Personnel Resolution.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001215
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

Abstentions:

Mr. Kelly, except on Resolution, K-1, number 20.

**PLEASE NOTE: Mr. Kelly amended his abstention to include number 97 at the Board Meeting on 9-7-
2022 %%

2. Supporting Ducks Unlimited in their application to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
(NOAA) for the Transformational Habitat Restoration and Coastal Resilience Grant program for the
restoration and enhancement of the shoreline and interior marshes in and around Cattus Island County Park.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001169
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Accepting funding from the National Opioid Settlement Program.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001163
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Authorizing a Grant Application to the State of New Jersey, Department of Law and Public Safety, Office of
the Attorney General for the SFY2022 Governor Phil Murphy Budget - Operation Helping Hand Grant

Program.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001158
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Virginia E. Haines
SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Authorizing a Grant Application to NJ TRANSIT for the FY2023 Senior Citizen and Disabled Resident
Transportation Assistance Program.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001159
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6. Authorizing renewal of the Title IV-D Reimbursement Grant Agreement with the State of New
Jersey, Division of Family Development, for the period of 10/1/2019 through 9/30/2020.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001160
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Amending a Resolution adopted on 6/1/2022 to reflect the application and acceptance of the Edward Byrne
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program FY 19 funding as being from the State of New Jersey,
Department of Law and Public Safety, Office of the Attorney General, Division of Administration.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001161
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Authorizing the County to submit grant application materials to New Jersey Transit Corporation, for
submission on the County's behalf to the Federal Transit Administration for the FY22 Passenger Ferry Grant
Program for improvement and expansion of the existing service at the Tuckerton Seaport / Beach Haven
Water Ferry.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001162
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

9. Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Borough of Beachwood to provide Schedule "C" Road
Department services in an amount not to exceed $122,000.00, Schedule "C" Engineering Department services
in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00, and Schedule "C" Vehicle Services Department services in an amount
not to exceed $1,000.00, for the period of 1/1/2022 through 12/31/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001204
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

10. Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Borough of South Toms River to provide Schedule "C"
Road Department services in an amount not to exceed $20,000.00, Schedule "C" Engineering Department
services in an amount not to exceed $5,000.00, and Schedule "C" Vehicle Services Department services in an
amount not to exceed $1,000.00, for the period of 1/1/2022 through 12/31/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001205
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

11. Amending an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Township of Stafford to provide additional Schedule "C"
Road Department services, an increase to the agreement in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001206
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

12, Authorizing an Agreement with the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service to provide services necessary to address an
urgent flooding issue in an area that includes the Federally threatened Swamp Pink, in the Township of Toms
River, at no cost to the County.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001125
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

13. Rescinding a Resolution adopted on 6/16/2021 authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding between the
New Jersey Department of the Community Affairs and the County for sharing information concerning
COVID - Emergency Rental Assistance.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001126
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

14. Authorizing a modification to the OC First Time Homebuyer Program, to include a new participant, as
recommended by the Planning Director. (CC2022-85)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001170
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

15. Amending a resolution adopted on 7/20/2022 due to a scrivener's error.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001171
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

16.  Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of the County of Ocean's General Improvement Bonds, Series 2022
authorized by Bond Ordinances heretofore adopted to finance various general improvements in the County of
Ocean, and providing for the form, maturity dates and other details of said bonds.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001164
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of the County of Ocean’s College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022
authorized by a Bond Ordinance heretofore adopted to finance the Fiscal Year 2022 Capital Renewal and
Replacement Facilities Project at Ocean County College in the County of Ocean, and providing for the form,
maturity dates and other details of said bonds and designating a Paying Agent for said bonds.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001165
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

18.  Authorizing the sale of a vehicle, no longer needed for public use by the County of Ocean, to the Borough of
South Toms River.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001172
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

19. Adopting the amended OC Housing Rehabilitation Program Policy and Procedural Manual for the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Housing Rehabilitation Program, to reflect the
increased grant subsidy to the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001173
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

20.  Authorizing the revised Fee Schedule for "Out of County" participants of the OC Police Academy.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001174
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

21.  Authorizing the County Administrator to execute a Site Work Agreement with the New Jersey Department of
Transportation for the proposed improvements to U.S. Route 9, Township of Toms River.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001127
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

22, Authorizing the execution of a Sidebar Agreement with Office and Professional Employees International
Union, Local 32, regarding Vehicle Services Supervisors.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001128
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

23, Authorizing the execution of a Collective Negotiations Agreement with the OC Office of the Fire Marshal
Local #98 F.M.B.A., for the period of 4/1/2022 through 3/31/2025.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001129
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

24. Opposing New Jersey Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control's Special Conditions on Limited Brewery

Licenses.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001175
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Virginia E. Haines
SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Yes, what that is I'll just read it, is Opposing New Jersey Division of Alcoholic
Beverage Control’s Special Conditions on Limited Brewery Licenses. What this was is that there was a decision that
came down that will only allow your breweries to have no more than 12 events at the brewery which means it could
be a craft show. It could be having a musician play one night. It could be someone having a group there — whatever.
We are opposed to this because we don’t think that is fair. Number one — we’re trying to build up our businesses.
We’re not trying to limit our businesses and these are small business owners that are here. And I know there is a
gentleman from the downtown brewery that is here in Toms River. If you haven’t been to it make sure you please go
because it’s a great place. And Gary, if you would just like to come up and say a few words.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Oh that Gary. That’s why I got mixed up. She told me that Gary wants to talk about the...”
COMMISSIONER QUINN: “I'm looking at you like, uh.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “I got the wrong Gary.”

GARY MORRISON, BATTLE RIVER BREWERY, TOMS RIVER: “Thanks Commissioners. How are you guys
today?”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Hello sir. You’re welcome to comment on this.”

GARY MORRISON: “Good. Thanks for letting me comment. I'll take up just a few minutes because you did touch
on it Commissioner Haines especially the ruling that the ABC (Alcoholic Beverage Control) did put in — restricts a lot
of things that we can do as an operator of a limited brewery. We all want it to be fair and equitable across the
businesses. And I'll touch on that in a little bit. But there’s a lot more that goes into these rulings than people see.
Number one is the impact to the local economy. Just very recently on Friday we had a very successful fundraiser for
the Toms River Education Foundation. We raised a lot of money for kids in school. With these restrictions that are
put in place we’re going to have to pick and choose what events we can do and that’s going to impact a lot of different
foundations, a lot of different non-profits. We’re going to have to select things based on a business perspective as
opposed to trying to help out the economy. You’re not only limiting our business, now you’re limiting other
businesses as well. Like you said, musicians, artists, they find homes in many breweries. They play every week. They
sell their wares. Now where are they going to do that? So you’re not only limiting breweries you’re going to be
limiting other industries as well.

And then, you know, number three is really our business. We’ve all had this in small business across the country.
Inflation is at record levels. Supply chain issues. Everything is getting more expensive. If you limit our revenue
opportunities it can be the difference between shutting down and not shutting down. So it’s really important that the
County Commissioners, you guys, are really supportive of us and are pushing back on this.

Now if we want to talk about fair and equitable, you know they seem to single out breweries by themselves.
Distilleries can still have every single event. Wineries — they can have musicians and food trucks there every night.
Even bring your own restaurants. Right. They didn’t buy the expensive liquor license and they are still allowed to do
whatever they want. They can show the Super Bowl on TV. That would be counted as an event. They can have
musicians every day. And they didn’t shell out the money that, supposedly, that these conditions were put in place for.

And then if you really want to talk about that fair and equitable that’s where they come up with this ruling. It is that
liquor license businesses paid extensive money for their liquor license. But what they discount is that they don’t
compare it apple to apples. We have bought about $300,000.00 to $400,000.00 worth of equipment to be able to
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produce and manufacture on site. And we’re only allowed to sell what we do manufacture on site. So while we didn’t
put it out for a liquor license we did put it out for the equipment used to manufacture that product. And, you know,
let’s be honest, those liquor licenses are an asset. Almost nobody has sold it for less than what they purchased it for.
If I, two years later, want to go sell my equipment it’s probably fifty percent worth what I paid for it. So, you know, |
don’t know if they came up with this without the input of all stakeholders but if we’re giving someone a good
experience coming to our brewery, or we’re part of the community and they want to come there, then it shouldn’t be
seen as competition to restaurants. They’re allowed to do everything that we can and more.

So we appreciate the time. | appreciate the support of the community. Many faces in this room have patronized our
business and they continue to do so and we thank you for your support tonight.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Gary, thank you very much for coming.”
DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “I just want to say a few more things.”
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Sure.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “I forgot. I just want to say...in Ocean County we have 12 breweries in Ocean
County. So that’s 12 businesses being affected. Just some of things that they’re not allowed to do — they may not sell
or serve food beyond for trivial quantities of water and the single-serve prepackaged crackers, chips, nuts and similar
snacks. A brewery may not partner with one or more food trucks, which if anybody doesn’t know, Gary is also part of
the group and they’ve worked with John Ernst when we close off part of Washington Street to Main Street on Friday
and Saturday nights. Because what they’re doing is they’re trying to get people to come downtown and he is part of
that group. And they put in a lot of their own money for the entertainment and everything else that goes on. They may
not offer either free drinks as a gesture of good will. They may not sell mixed drinks containing beer on the premises.
A brewery may not brew or sell coffee or may not sell any soda that is not produced at the brewery. And a brewery
may not host pop-up shops, bazaars or craft shows. And there’s many other things that they can do but to me this is
an absolutely ridiculous thing that the ABC has come up with. I don’t understand why they’re doing it. Some of the
things that Gary had mentioned. .. why isn’t everybody else having to have to follow these rules and regulations? Why
are they picking on breweries? So [ will say that Senator Testa who covers...I know it’s Cumberland, Cape May and
another town, he has put in legislation to go against this to try and get this changed. So hopefully Senator Testa will
be...hopefully all the Legislators will be hearing from the people in their counties and towns so that their Legislators
know so they will also go... and just this legislation will get passed and hopefully will get signed by the Governor. Or
that ABC will reverse its decision to do what they’re doing against the breweries. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you. Would anybody else like to comment on this before we take a motion? If not do
we have a motion to adopt the resolution?”

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, resolution opposing New Jersey
Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control’s Special Conditions on Limited Brewery Licenses was adopted on final
reading.

25.  Authorizing the Release of Bonds for Road Opening Permits.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001149
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

MOTIONS

CLERK GUNTHER: “The next items on the agenda are Motions, L-1 through L-9. In regards to L-2, L.-3 and L-4,
Commissioner Vicari was not present. In regards to item number L-5, all members were present and L-6,
Commissioner Quinn was not present.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you.”

1. Authorizing the Clerk of the Board to accept and/or record legal instruments.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001176
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A
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Deed of Dedication:

PKN Development LLC — Block 646; P/O Lot 31 — Brick Twp.
Ocean First Bank N.A. — Block 315; P/O Lot 10.01 — Pomnt Pleasant
Sight Right Easement:

Ocean First Bank N.A. — Block 315; P/O Lot 10.01 — Pomt Pleasant
647 Park LLC — Block 548; P/O Lot 1 — Lakewood Twp.

LEGAL INSTRUMENTS RECEIVED FOR 8-17-2022

Deed:

Evelyn M. Doherty, Travis Logan — Block 55; Lot 192, 207.01 & 207.02 — Plumsted Twp.
BK18989PG52

Deed of Easement:

Hauge, John A. and Susan T. — Block 255; P/O Lot 6 — Little Egg Harbor Twp.
BK19118PG878

Babych, Mykhailo — Block 309; P/O Lot 1 & 2 — Berkeley Twp.
BK19121PG368
Mortgage/Note:

Foulks, Allyson — Block 44.149; Lot 4 — Stafford Twp.
BK19111PG1704

2. Approving the Pre-Board Meeting Minutes of 6/29/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001177
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn

NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: Joseph H. Vicari

3. Approving the Board Meeting Minutes of 7/6/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001178
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn

NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED:  Joseph H. Vicari

4. Approving the Pre-Board Meeting Minutes of 7/13/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001179
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn

NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: Joseph H. Vicari
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5. Approving the Board Meeting Minutes of 7/20/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001180
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6. Approving the Pre-Board Meeting Minutes of 7/27/2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001181
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Joseph H. Vicari

NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: Gary Quinn

7. Approving the distribution of Requests for Qualifications and/or Requests for Proposals as follows: 1) Nikon
D5 Camera Upgrade for Existing DCS5 Alternative Light System.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001182
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: ‘Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Approving the plans and specifications and authorizing the County Engineer to advertise for the receipt of
bids for the Improvements to Castlebuono Avenue from Hooper Avenue to Salerno Drive, Township of Toms

River.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001183
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Virginia E. Haines
SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

9. Approving the Master Payroll paid on 8/17/2022 for the payroll period of 7/21/2022 through 8/3/2022 and
for the payroll period of 8/4/2022 through 8/17/2022, in the amount of $6,195,763.56.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001184
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Barbara Jo Crea

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

. TRAFFIC SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

CLERK GUNTHER: “Moving on to Traffic Safety Improvements, items M-1 through M-8.”

1. Authorizing the installation of safety measures at the intersection of County Road #50 (East Bay Avenue) and
Marsha Drive, Township of Stafford.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001207
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Authorizing the installation of safety measures at the intersection of County Road #16 (Route 622/01d
Freehold Road/Cox Cro Road) and White Oak Bottom Road, Township of Toms River.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001208
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Authorizing a revision of the Traffic Signal at the intersection of County Road #8 (Commonwealth
Boulevard) and Northhampton Boulevard (MAN-11), Township of Manchester.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001209
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Altering the establishment of No Passing Zones along County Road #8 (Princeton Avenue), Township of

Brick.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001210
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari
SECOND: Gary Quinn
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Authorizing the alteration of Speed Zones along County Road #21 (Ocean Gate Drive), Borough of Ocean

Gate.
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001211
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari
SECOND: Gary Quinn
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

6. Authorizing the alteration of Speed Zones along County Road #2 (Ocean Gate Avenue), Borough of Ocean
Gate.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001212
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Authorizing the alteration of Speed Zones along County Road #13 (West Bayview Avenue, East Bayview
Avenue and Chelsea Avenue), Borough of Ocean Gate.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001213
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Authorizing the alteration of Speed Zones along County Road #4 (West Long Branch Avenue and East Long
Branch Avenue); County Road #6 (West Cape May Avenue and East Cape May Avenue); County Road #8
(Red Bank Avenue, Averne Avenue and Narragansett Avenue); County Road #10 (Avalon Avenue); County
Road #12 (Asbury Avenue); County Road #14 (West Longport Avenue and East Longport Avenue); County
Road #16 (West Atlantic Avenue and East Atlantic Avenue); County Road #18 (West Point Pleasant Avenue

and East Point Pleasant Avenue); County Road #20 (Barnegat Avenue); County Road #22 (Anglesea

Avenue) and County Road #24 (Lakewood Avenue), Borough of Ocean Gate.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001214
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

BID AWARDS

CLERK GUNTHER: “The next items are Bid Awards, N-1 through N-13.”

1. Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE

RETENTION OF CALEA STATE ASSOCIATION OF CHIEFS OF POLICE ACCREDITATION to The
Rodgers Group, LLC, the sole qualified bidder. (B2022-98)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001134
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Awarding Contracts for the furnishing and delivery of FIXED HAMMERS, INSERTS, AND WEAR
PARTS to Eagle Truck Equipment, Inc. and Komptech Americas, LLC, the lowest qualified bidders. No bids
were received on Item Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4. All no bid items will be rebid. (B2022-100)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001135
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A
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3. Awarding Contracts for the furnishing and delivery of UNPAINTED SNOW FENCE AND DUNE GRASS
to Chemung Supply Corp. and Coastal Transplants, Inc., the lowest qualified bidders. (B2022-101)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001136
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Awarding Contracts for the furnishing and delivery of TRAFFIC MARKING SUPPLIES AND GLASS
BEADS to Ennis-Flint, Inc.; Garden State Highway Products, Inc.; Potters Industries, LLC; and Crown USA,
Inc., the lowest qualified bidders. No bids were received on Item Nos. 1, 2, 3,4, 13, 14, 17, 18, 19 and 20.
All no bid items will be rebid. (B2022-103)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001137
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Awarding Contracts for the furnishing and delivery of VEHICLE LIFTING SYSTEM to First Choice
Automotive Parts & Equipment, Inc. and Stertil-Koni USA, Inc., the lowest qualified bidders. (B2022-106)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001138
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6.  Awarding a Contract for the furnishing and delivery of MAINTENANCE, PARTS, REPAIRS AND
UPGRADES OF FUEL SYSTEMS to DeMaio's Incorporated, the lowest qualified bidder. (B2022-110)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001139
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Awarding Contracts for the furnishing and delivery of SOLAR POWERED MESSAGE SIGNS AND
PORTABLE LIGHT TOWERS to Garden State Highway Products, Inc. and K. Moorea Co. LLC, the lowest
qualified bidders. (B2022-111)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001140
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Awarding Contracts for the furnishing and delivery of CATCH BASIN BLOCKS to Extech Building
Materials dba Liberty Building Products and Continental Hardware, Inc., the lowest qualified bidders.
(B2022-116)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001141
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

9. Amending a Resolution adopted on 6/15/2022 for the furnishing and delivery of SPECIALTY PAPER AND
PAPER PRODUCTS NO. II, to reflect the County Purchasing Agent's authority to enter into a negotiated
contract for Item No. 124.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001142
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

10.  Rescinding JANITORIAL SUPPLIES Item No. 64 from Quill, LLC, as the vendor is unable to honor their
contract pricing. It will not be rebid. (B2022-81)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001143
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

11. Awarding a Contract for the REPLACEMENT OF CURB AND SIDEWALK AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS
IN OCEAN COUNTY, CONTRACT 2022 to A. Takton Concrete Corporation, the lowest qualified bidder,
in the amount of $781,325.00. (B2022-118E)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001144
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED:  N/A

12, Amending a Resolution adopted on 7/20/2022 awarding the project entitted RECONSTRUCTION AND
RESURFACING OF BROOKSIDE DRIVE FROM NJ STATE HIGHWAY NO. 37 EAST TO CEDAR
GROVE ROAD, TOWNSHIP OF TOMS RIVER, NO. 11, to reflect amended funding sources. (B2022-

107E)
RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001145
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari
SECOND: Gary Quinn
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

13, Amending a Resolution adopted on 6/1/2022 awarding the project entitted RECONSTRUCTION AND
RESURFACING OF PORTIONS OF CERTAIN COUNTY ROADS, CONTRACT 2020C, to reflect
amended funding sources. (B2022-82E)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001146
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Joseph H. Vicari

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

CONTRACTS
CLERK GUNTHER: “The next items are Contracts, O-1 through O-12.”

1. Approving the designation of PFM Asset Management, LLC to provide Banking and Investment Services for
the $2,749,000.00 College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001192
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Approving the designation of OceanFirst Bank to provide Banking and Investment Services for the
$47,974,195.00 General Improvement Bonds, Series 2022.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001193
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Amending the award of an Extraordinary, Unspecifiable Services Contract with Engineering Systems, Inc. to
provide additional expert witness consultation and reporting for the OC Prosecutor's Office, an increase to the
contract in the amount of $1,449.50. (P2022-80)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001194
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Authorizing a four (4) month extension to the Competitive Contract award with Ocean Partnership for
Children, Inc., to provide Innovative Disability Services, for the period of 9/1/2022 through 12/31/2022.
(CC2021-97)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001195
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

5. Authorizing a one (1) year extension to the Competitive Contract award with GolfNow, LLC to provide the
Ocean County Golf Course Online Tee Time Booking/Integrated Tee Sheet Service System, for the period of
9/4/2022 through 9/3/2023. (CC2019-120)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001196
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

6. Awarding a Purchase Order to Owen, Little & Associates, Inc. to provide Land Surveying Services for the
OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $875.00. (QP2022-71)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001197
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

7. Awarding a Purchase Order to Owen, Little & Associates, Inc. to provide Land Surveying Services for the
OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $875.00. (QP2022-71)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001198
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

8. Awarding a Purchase Order to T&M Associates to provide Environmental Consulting Services to the OC
Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $2,000.00. (QP2022-111)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001199
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

9. Awarding a Purchase Order to T&M Associates to provide Environmental Consulting Services to the OC
Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $7,400.00. (QP2022-111)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001200
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

10.  Awarding a Purchase Order to T&M Associates to provide Environmental Consulting Services to the OC
Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $2,000.00. (QP2022-111)
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001201
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

11. Awarding a Purchase Order to T&M Associates to provide Environmental Consulting Services to the OC
Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, in an amount not to exceed $4,000.00. (QP2022-111)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001202
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

12, Amending the award of a Purchase Order to Remington & Vernick Engineers to provide additional
Engineering Design Services for the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Program, an increase to the contract in an
amount not to exceed $24,500.00. (QP2020-110)

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001203
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Joseph H. Vicari

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS
CLERK GUNTHER: “The next items are Appointments and Reappointments, P-1 through P-4.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “I just want to point out before we take...that P-4 is appointing Ed McBride to the position of
Director of Consumer Affairs for a three year term to expire 8/31/2025. That being said do we have a motion on the
Appointments and Reappointments?"

On motion duly made by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, Appointments and
Reappointments was adopted on final reading.

***See Commissioner Vicari's comments under P-4."

1. Appointing Mitch Bernstein, Waretown as a new member of the OC TOURISM BUSINESS ADVISORY
COUNCIL, for an initial term to expire 9/30/2024.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001130
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

2. Appointing Steven R. DelMaestro, M.D. to the position of Assistant OC Medical Examiner for a term of one
(1) year, commencing on 8/1/2022 through 7/31/2023.
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RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001131
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A
MOVE: Virginia E. Haines
SECOND: Gary Quinn
AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A
ABSTAINED: N/A

3. Reappointing David L. Fitzgerald to the position of Director of Transportation Services, for a term of three

(3) years, term to expire 8/31/2025.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001132
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

4. Appointing Edward J. McBride, Jr. to the position of Director of Consumer Affairs, for a term of three (3)

years, terms to expire 8/31/2025.

RESULT ADOPTED Official Resolution #: 2022001133
PRESENT: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
ABSENT: N/A

MOVE: Virginia E. Haines

SECOND: Gary Quinn

AYE: John P. Kelly, Virginia E. Haines, Barbara Jo Crea, Gary Quinn, Joseph H. Vicari
NAY: N/A

ABSTAINED: N/A

COMMISSIONER VICARI: “Yes I’d just like to comment on number four with Ed McBride being promoted to the
Director of Consumer Affairs. And again state what we said before with Steve Scaturro, when Ed McBride came he
passed the Civil Service test. He was there because of his status. He welcomed Steve Scaturro. They worked together.
And I believe the legacy...I know the legacy will continue more in the next three years. But your appointment, on
behalf of everyone that you serve, we want to thank you and your promotion is well deserved. And you were number
one, of course, with the screening process. And when I found out today [ was very pleased that you were on the
agenda in a unanimous vote. Good huck.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay.”

. RECEIVED ITEMS

CLERK GUNTHER: “The balance of the agenda are Received Items which include Resolutions from Governing
Bodies, Minutes and Meeting Notices and Correspondence, all received in the Clerk’s Office since the last Regular
Meeting of the Board.”

R. RESOLUTIONS FROM GOVERNING BODIES

1. OC Board of Health, Resolution No. 187(22) authorizing the Public Health Coordinator to waive the fee for
the seasonal flu vaccinations for the 2022/2023 seasonal flu season.

2. OC Board of Health, Resolution No. 189(22) approving participation in the Clear the Shelter event,
from 8/27/2022 through 8/31/2022.

3. OC Board of Health, Resolution No. 190(22) proclaiming the month of September 2022 as "National Alcohol
and Drug Addiction Recovery Month - "Recovery is for Everyone: Every Person, Every Family, Every
Community" in Ocean County.

4. OC Board of Health, Resolution No. 191(22) recognizing September 2022 as "National Preparedness Month"
i Ocean County.

5. OC Board of Health, Resolution No. 192(22) proclaiming the month of September 2022 as "National
Childhood Cancer Awareness Month".

6. OC Board of Health, Resolution No. 193(22) proclaiming the month of September 2022 as "National
Childhood Obesity Awareness Month" in Ocean County.

7. OC Board of Health, Resolution No. 194(22) proclaiming the month of September 2022 as "Fruits and
Veggies Month" in Ocean County.
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OC Board of Social Services, Resolution No. 2022-07-02 declaring September 2022 as "Board and Care
Recognition Month".

Cape May County, Resolution No. 479-22 supporting Assembly Concurrent Resolution No. 31 increasing the
property tax deduction for veterans to $1,000.00 and base future deductions on annual consumer price index
mereases.

Cape May County, Resolution No. 492-22 supporting the adoption of a Parent's Bill of Rights concerning the
protection and education of our children.

Township of Toms River, Resolution L-July 27, 2022-19 supporting the acquisition of property designated as
Block 394, Lot 13.05, in the Township of Toms River, by the OC Natural Lands Program for Open Space
preservation.

Township of Plumsted, Resolution No. 2022-237 supporting Assembly Bill No. A3436, sponsored by
Assemblyman Dancer, District 12.

Township of Plumsted, Resolution No. 2022-238 opposing Governor Murphy's proposed funding cuts to
schools across the State.

Township of Plumsted, Resolution No. 2022-248 supporting Assembly Bill No. A2315, sponsored by
Assemblyman Dancer, District 12.

Township of Plumsted, Resolution No. 2022-250 supporting Assembly Bill No. A3487, sponsored by
Assemblyman Dancer, District 12.

Township of Mount Olive, Resolution No. 256-2022 opposing the New Jersey Division of Alcoholic
Beverage Control's Special Conditions on Limited Brewery Licenses.

S. MINUTES AND MEETING NOTICES

1.
2.
3.
4.

5.

OC Board of Health Meeting Minutes of 7/13/2022.

OC Planning Board Meeting Minutes of 7/20/2022.

OC Youth Services Commission Meeting Minutes of 4/7/2022.

OC Department of Transportation Services, 9/15/2022 Public Hearing Notice.

OC Mosquito Extermination Commission Meeting Minutes of 7/18/2022.

T. CORRESPONDENCE

1.

Notice of Filing and Public Hearings, in the matter of the petition of Atlantic City Electric Company for
approval of electric base rate adjustments pursuant to the PowerAhead Program (5/2022), BPU Docket No.
ER22050323.

U. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS
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DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay we will move on to Commissioner’s Comments starting with Commissioner Crea.”
At 5:33 PM, Director Kelly received the following comments from members of the Board.

COMMISSIONER CREA: “T have nothing. Thank you Director.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Commissioner Quinn.”

COMMISSIONER QUINN: “Longest meeting of the year but well worth it — believe me. Congratulations again,
Steve, you know, Carl, you know all your service. We truly appreciate it. Ed, [ want to congratulate you and thank
you for your years of service up until now. I know it was mentioned before when, I think it was Carl, when he was
talking about how last year you stepped in when we needed somebody in the Veterans Services and you did a
phenomenal job there. So there’s no doubt in my mind that you’re going to continue with Steve’s legacy continuing to
do a great job and make sure Consumer Affairs continues where they re at and continues to get better under your
reign over there. But I congratulate you and wish you the very best.”

ED MCBRIDE: “Thank you.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you. Deputy Director.”

DEPUTY DIRECTOR HAINES: “Just to say that, you know, also to Carl, good luck to you. And also to Steve,
good tuck to you. I know you’re going to be enjoying your retirement and just traveling and just doing whatever you
want to do. And also congratulations to Ed. I’'m very, very grateful that you’re going to be at the helm of the
Consumer Affairs. Thank you.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Looking forward to working with you as Director.”

ED MCBRIDE: “Thank you sir.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Joe, any further comments?”

COMMISSIONER VICARI: “Just briefly and no comments just...it was the longest meeting of the year. Drive
safely. Enjoy your dinner. And thank you for staying — keeping us company.”

. PUBLIC COMMENTS - "Comments from members of the audience are invited at this time with a limit of five

(5) minutes per speaker."
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, now we’ll open up to Public Comment. Anyone wishing to be heard please come to the
microphone, identify yourself by name and address and limit your comments to five minutes. Good afternoon.”

At 5:34 PM, Director Kelly opened the meeting to receive comments from members of the public.

MARC VAZQUEZ, 440 LONNA COURT, BRICK: “Good evening. First off, Stephen Scaturro, thank you for the
years of service. Administrator Carl Block, thank you. And congratulations to Ed. Thank you very much. One thing I
just would like to ask if the Commissioners would consider is...these meetings are at 4 o’clock and small business
owners like myself...and Gary I'm sure it’s hard to step away at times and it’s important that we hear the things that
you guys are working on so I’m requesting that the Board would livestream their meetings starting in the near future.
And if you need help facilitating that I’m here for that as well. So thank you. Appreciate it.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay. Thank you. Yes ma’am, please come forward, name and address.”

NAN COLL, 18 GREENBRIAR BLVD, BRICK: “I stand before you an 80 year old woman with increasing
mfirmities which has caused me not to be able to attend a lot of meetings that [ once did. And I second Marc’s
request. Livestream it which might help a little bit. But there is so much that I feel needs to be addressed. We have
grown beyond belief in Ocean County as the state has grown. And we are too big to be governed by the current
situation. There are people in townships that don’t have anybody representing them here. There’s very few that are
here. We have a seven member board council in Brick Township where I live and seven members who do nothing.
They don’t listen to us. They don’t really allow us to speak as the Public Meetings Act says. They limit all our
comments. And apparently they hold the pre-meeting, which they, among themselves, discuss everything that will be
on the agenda for a Tuesday night meeting with outside of the ability of us to hear or see anything. So we don’t know
why they are voting — aye, nay. Almost never do they not vote as a block of just aye, yes, yes, yes, yes, yes, yes. And
we, as a people in the State of New Jersey, in the counties, in the towns, have to think about having, maybe, a
Constitutional Convention. Maybe some of you know that was held in 1947. Yes, I remember the year. My sister was
born. And she was expected to be born dead. My mother was rushed to the hospital for emergency surgery because
she was hemorrhaging. Fifteen months before when she hemorrhaged, at home with my father Jack in attendance, she
delivered a baby. And I didn’t find out until many years afier my mother died, when we went out to the cemetery for
the burial of her father because my parents didn’t have a plot so my grandparents told him he could utilize theirs, and
he got very emotional. He wasn’t as tall as Commissioner Kelly but he was known by 'Jack' and I just realized today,
I believe his Godfather was a John Kelly. I know it was a Kelly. Anyway, he delivered the baby, the one before in
1945, and he got so emotional at the gravesite, turned to me because he was never emotional. He was a rock. And he
said, “You know 1t’s not just your mother, it is your sister that’s here.” And I knew the story so I indicated, yes, and
going home he told me the emotions that flooded in on him trying to keep my mother from knowing something was
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wrong and she’s asking what is it. And he kept it from her. She died very young. And he kept from her the fact that
the doctor who was a GP in those days told him the baby had been dead a week. There was something on the history
channel yesterday about the Rh factor that I have to look into. It wasn’t the Rh. It is another factor that mimics it and
it is called a hemorrhagic factor in the Rh system. It’s Du. And they said that most Rh babies didn’t survive. Well 1
know about the injections and what have you. But I know more now about the Du also. So they rushed her, in 1947,
Constitution Day, September 17th to a dinky little hospital in Brooklyn and three doctors were there. The GP, who
had recommended an OBGYN. My father retained the one who became for many years THE man in Brooklyn to go
to, Dr. O’Leary, and a resident. The two biggies said they didn’t have a heartbeat — the baby didn’t have a heartbeat.
The resident said I think I hear it but they, two smarties, brushed it to the side as, no, you’re hearing the mothers
because the baby is lying crossways to whatever they thought — whichever. Well, my mother had a spinal. She was so
farsighted that she would not be able to see me from here to there and know that it was me or my sister — just the
shape. And she was sorry she didn’t have a...make them.. let her keep her glasses because it was a spinal and she
wanted to see everything that was going on but she didn’t. And what she heard but couldn’t decipher was, “The
baby’s alive!” So they rushed it... 3 Ibs. 12 ounces in 1947. And they rushed, put her in an incubator, and her own
incubator, not a room full so she thrived. She was always a 'skinny malinks' as my grandmother would say but she
thrived. And that’s why I’'m very anti-abortion. What you do to save the life of the mother is what Dr. O'Leary did.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “I have to ask you to...”

NAN COLL: “A c-section. And I'm going to end it with we really need to think about having another Constitutional
Convention bigger than what we had in 1947 here in New Jersey out of which came the 1947 Constitution of New
Jersey because this is not functioning. The people don’t know what’s going on. They used to say in my job, the young
men that [ loved, ‘It ain’t what you don’t know, it’s what you don’t know, you don’t know. And there’s a lot on that
agenda I don’t know.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you for your comments.”
NAN COLL: “But thank you. God bless you. And I know everyone now, I think."
DIRECTOR KELLY: "Yeah, there you go."

NAN COLL: "A little bit of Bobbi Crea. Sorry, Commissioner Crea. Ginny, I know a little longer. Everybody else
you all know me going back so you may not want to remember me but God bless you and I know you work hard for

23

us.
DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, thank you. Anyone else like to be heard at this time?”

MARYLOU POWNER, BRICK TOWNSHIP: “Good afternoon. I just want to congratulate Stephen Scaturro on his
retirement. And he’s probably going to be busier in retirement than he is even working, so with everything that
Ruthanne has planned. Everything he has planned and us growing our organization. I want to commend Carl on his
many, many, many, many years of service. | won’t want to call it retirement because it’s kind of being forced but 1
want to actually urge you to use...you are a foremost, by everybody’s account, you are a foremost expert in local
government, right. Municipal, county — you are an expert. We have seen a degradation in New Jersey and nationwide,
but New Jersey which was always the historically strong home-ruled state. We’ve seen a degradation in that home
rule, okay - over these last couple of decades. Constantly, whether it’s state regulations, federal regulations, you
know, if you don’t take this money this way and do what we tell you to do you’re not going to get the money. Well we
have to start either growing a backbone as elected officials, right, and public officials and public administrators and
saying, ‘Well we’re not going to take your money then.” Right. I think you should do a podcast. And I think you
should write. I think you should start to educate other elected officials, particularly our State Legislature who is doing
nothing but sitting there collecting their paychecks and taking away more rights, more rights from people, more rights
from local governments. We need to return along with Nan...Nan kind of lost her.. because she likes telling us about
herself. Right. She lost her plot in a way - the Constitutional Convention. Ordinary people do not feel connected to
government today — at all. We have consent agendas at the county level. We have consent agendas at the municipal
level. You vote through them. People don’t know. They don’t know what you’re voting on. And yes, you can get up
and ask, but it’s usually after you’ve taken a vote on something. Right.

So, please, please, use your expertise. Stay engaged somewhere. Go, go retire. Take a little vacation or something but
come back and either become a lobbyist, become a paid consultant. Do something. Have the League of
Municipalities, have the County Association of Counties hire you to fight in Trenton to return rights to local
government which in turn returns rights to us. That’s it. Congratulations Carl.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Thank you.”

ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK: “Thank you Mary.”

DIRECTOR KELLY: “Okay, anyone else like to address the Commissioners at this time? Seeing no further
comments [ ask for a motion to adjourn.”

W. ADJOURNMENT
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There being no additional comments received, Director Kelly called for a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5:46 PM.

ROLL CALL: (Offered by Commissioner Vicari, seconded by Commissioner Quinn)
Ayes: Ms. Crea, Mr. Vicari, Ms. Haines, Mr. Kelly, Mr. Quinn
Nays: None

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle 1. Gunther
Clerk of the Board
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Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE

Res-Pg:e.2-1

101 Hooper Avenue

Toms River, New Jersey

08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building

Room 119

10

Toms River, NJ 08754

1 Hooper Avenue

Agenda: Honoring Administrator Carl W. Block's 35 years of dedicated service to the County of Ocean.

Official Resolution# [2022001156
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem e-2

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted

COUNTY I =3 P P N~
COMMISSIONER g @ g ?&; Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v
Crea v M
Quinn v V1Y
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

Michatte \. Guaknor”

REFERENCED THEREON

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:e.2-2

Resolution
Qounty of Ocean

(o7 - -~
Board of Commizsioners
Administration Building
Cams Riwer, Nefw Jersey

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS CARL W. BLOCK has humbly and trelessly served the re51dents of Stafford Township and
Ocean County begmmng his career in public service representing Stafford Township as Councilman and then
Mayor for over 26 years; and

WHEREAS, in 2002, CARL BLOCK served as Prcsident of the NJ Lcague of Municipalities, acting as a
forceful advocate for New Jersey’s municipalities. In 1995 and 2004, he was inducted into their Mayors’ Hall of
Fame as well as their Elected Officials Hall of Fame in 2005 as Mayor of Stafford Township; and

WHEREAS, CARL BLOCK also served as the Ocean County Deputy County Clerk and then County
Clerk from 2003 to 2010 successfully overseeing the Presidential elections of 2003 and 2007; and

WHEREAS, in 2010, CARL began his service as Ocean County’s longest serving Administrator, playing an

integral role in advancing the policies and the beneficial programs and services of the Ocean County Board of
Commissioners; and throughout his 12 years of service, ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK with the support of the
‘Board of Commissioners navigated numerous challenges impacting Ocean County government; and

WHEREAS, with his proven leadership, ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK oversaw the monumental cleanup
of Ocean County following the 2012 devastation from Superstorm Sandy which destroyed homes and infrastructure
by working with federal, state and local agencies to rebuild; and

WHEREAS, ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK worked closely with the Commissioners, federal and state
“agencies during the coronavirus pandemic providing the needed resources o assist in assuring County services
continued, including the availability and access to testing and vaccines; and

WHEREAS, ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK, tasked with leading almost 2,000 employees and overseeing a
$470 million budget in the second largest County in the state, has been instrumental in updating technology in the
workplace, constructing a new jail, planning and constructing a new socnl services building, a courthouse annex and
various upgrades to other County facilities; 'md

WHEREAS, ADMINISTRATOR BLOCK, from his time spent in the military through his position as
County Administrator, has served the public proudly w1th integrity and dedication leaving an indelible mark on each
public position he has held.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY '
OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY hereby extends its deepest appreciation to CARL W. BLOCK for his
35 years of exemplary public service to the people of Ocean County and further offers best wishes in all his future

endeavors.

Attest:
\. 4
Michelle I. Gunther @
Clerk of the Board “%
/W/e/&,/(lommissioner
Gary Quinn, Commissioner
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17,2022 .

Official Resolution#: 2022001156

. Vicari, Commissioner



Res-Pg:e.3-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Honoring Stephen Scaturro as he retires from 16 years of dedicated service to the Ocean County
Department of Consumer Affairs.

Official Resolution# |2022001157
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem e-3

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ 0 = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v |v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatte \. Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:e.3-2

Resolution
Qounty of Grean

51} —

Board 3 Qommissioners
" Abministration Building
Toms Risrer, Nefr Jersey

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS STEPHEN SCATURRO has brought dedxcated and experlenced leadershlp to the county
for 16 years as the Director of Consumer Affairs; and

WHEREAS, he has devoted his entire adult life to public service, joining the United States Army when he
was only 17 years old and becoming a founding member of the Brick Township Police Department in 1966; and

. WHEREAS, STEPHEN SCATURRO formally led the Brick Township Police Department’s Detective
Bureau, served 27 Yedrs as a legislative aide to state Senators Andrew Ciesla and J"nmes Holzapfel and is a veteran
‘of both the United States Army and the United States Air Force; and -

WHEREAS, he served his community in various posts, including President of the Brick Township
Chamber of Commerce and President of the Brick Township Rotary, where he was named Rotarian of the Year
in 1997 and Brick Citizen of the Year in 2002; and o

WHEREAS STEPHEN SCATURRO was appomted Director of the Ocean County Department of
Consumer Affairs in 2006, transforming the department from a small county agency to the leading County
Consumer Affairs office in the state;and _ .

WHEREAS he has worked closely with local police departments, the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Ofﬁce
and the State Attorney General on numerous anti-fraud initiatives and worked with the Ocean County Office of
Senior Services to protect the County’s 200,000 older adults. He was recently recognized by the Attorney
General of the State of New Jersey for his decades of dedicated service to the people of Ocean County; and

WHEREAS, STEPHEN SCATURRO worked tirelessly with small businesses, protecling the economy of
Ocean . County and helping Mom & Pop businesses thrive in all 33 municipalities and also recognized the
importance of tourism, ensuring that seasonal businesses: prospered; and

WHEREAS he currently serves as the Vice President of the Ocean County Vocational Technical Schools
Board of Education, is 2 member of the state Motor Vehicle Commission and prewously served as Vice President
of the New Jersey County and Municipal Consumer Affairs Agencies.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the
COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, extends its deepest appreciation and gratitude to
STEPHEN SCATURRO for his dedication, leadership and years of service to the people of Ocean County; and

- further "offers best wishes in his future endeavors as he retires after 16 years of service to Ocean County
governmenL

Attest:

\. LY
Michelle I. Gunther alnes, Deputy Dyrector
Clerk of the Board O .

. <) &
}4{; /f]o Cr ommissioner
Gary (5u1n{ Cornrmssmner
" Introduced on: August 17, 2022 -_(A Add&“
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001157 Vlcarl Commissioner
. - . )




Res-Pg:f.1-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: ORDINANCE #2022-25 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $500,000.00 from the Capital

Improvement Fund for the Cost of Renovations, Replacements and
Facilities, all in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

Upgrades at Various Health Department

Official Resolution# [2022001185
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem -1

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatier”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolution#

'~ MEMBERS THEREOF AFFIRMATIVELY CONCURRING), as folloWs:

Res-Pg:f.1-2

ORDINANCE #2022-25
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $5 00,000
FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND FOR: THE
COST OF RENOVATIONS, REPLACEMENTS AND:
UPGRADES AT VARIOUS HEALTH DEPARTMENT
FACILITIES, ALL IN THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF
NEW JERSEY.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean recognizes the need for
renovations, replacements and upgrades at various Health Department facilities, all in the County of Ocean,
State of New Jersey; and

* WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the County that funds be available for this purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the

COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY (NOT LESS THAN TWO THIRDS OF ALL

SECTION 1: $500,000 is hereby appropriated from the Capital Improvement Fund for the cost of|
renovations, replace,mgnté and upgrades at varjous Health Department facilities, all in the Counﬁ of Ocean,
which sum shall also cover fees: and contingéncieé.

SECTION 2: The capital budget of the. County of Ocean is hereby amended to conform with th§
-provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inéonsistelncy herewith. The resolution in the form
prdmulgated by the Local Finance Board shbwing full detail 'of the amended: capital budget and capital
prograﬁl as a_ppro_ved by the Director of Local Government Services is on file with the Clerk and is available
there for public inspection. | '

‘ SECTION 3: After paséage uﬁon first reading of this Ordinance, the Cierk of the Board of
Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full text of the Ordinance, together with the notice set forth
below entitled: “NOTICE OF PENDING ORDINANCE” (with apﬁropriate completions, insertioﬁs and
corrections), at least once in a,névyspaper qualified under N.J SA 40A: 2-19, at least seven days prior to the
date set for public hearing and ﬁﬁher considefation for final passage.(\;hich date shall be at least ten days aﬁer
infroduction and first reading). The Clerk of the Board of Comunissioners is fux‘chef directed to cdrnply with all
provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-17(b) regarding postings, publications, and the p:rovision of copies of this
Ordinance. - |

SECTION 4: After final adoption of this Ordinance by the Board of Commissioners, thé Clerk of
the Board of Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full text of this Ordinance, as finally
adop’;ed, together with the notice.set forth below entitled: -"NOTI'CE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE"
twith appropriate completions, insertions and corrections), at least onéé in a newspapet qualified undef
N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19. |

SECTION 5: This Ox;dinance shall take effect twenty (20) days aﬁer the first publicatioﬁ thereof
after final passage. ' | |

August 17,2022

August 17, 2022 . ) L -
2022001185 o N ’ :

~




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resoluti

Res-Pg:f.1-3

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ordinance published herewith has been finally
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean on August 17, 2022, and the twenty (20) day
period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such Ordinance can be
commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of'the first publication of this

notice.

MICHELLE I. GUNTHER, Clerk
Board of Commissioners

JOHN C. SAHRADNIK
County Counsel

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
)P#: 2022001185




Res-Pg:f.2-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: ORDINANCE #2022-26 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $5,000,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of the Design of the Courthouse Annex located in Toms River

Township, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

Official Resolution# [2022001186
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem f-2

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v |v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS ATRUE, COMPL

ETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS

RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michate . Guatiner”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolution#

Res-Pg:f.2-2

ORDINANCE #2022-26
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING THE .SUM OF
$5,000,000 FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
FOR THE COST OF THE DESIGN OF THE COURTHOUSE
ANNEX LOCATED IN TOMS RIVER TOWNSHIP, COUNTY
"OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean recogniaes the need for the

design of the Courthouse Annex located in Toms River Township, County of Oeean, State of New Jersey; and
/ WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the County that funds be available for this purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the
COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY (NOT LESS THAN TWO THIRDS OF ALL
MEMBERS THEREOF AFFIRMATIVELY CONCURRING), as follows:

SECTION 1: .$5,000,0(_)0 is hereby appropriated from the CapitaI' Improvement Fund for the cost
of the design of the C_ourthoilse Annex located in Toms River Township, County of Ocean, which sum shall
also cover fees and ,oontmgencies.

SECTION 2: The capital budget of the County of Ocean is herehy amended to oonform with the
provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewith The resolution in the form
promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detarl of the amended caprtal budget and capital
program as approved by the Director of Local Government Services is on file with the Clerk and is avarlable
there for public inspection.

SECTION 3: After passage upon first reading of this Ordinance, the Clerk of the Board of|
Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full text of the Ordinance, together with the notice set forth
below entitled: “NOTICE OF PEND]NO ORDINANCE” (wi'th appropriate completions, insertions and
corrections), at least.onee in a newspaper qualified under N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19, at least seven days prior to the
date set for public hearmg and further consideration for final passage (which date shall be at Jeast ten days after '
introduction and first readmg) The Clerk of the Board of Commrssmners is further directed to comply with all
provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-17(b) regarding postings, publications, and the provision of copies of this
Ordinance. |

o SECTION 4: After final adoption of this Ordinance by the Board of Commissioners, the Clerk of
the Board of Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full text of this Ordinance, as finally |
adopted, together with the notice set forth below entitled: "NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE"
(with approprlate completions, insertions and corrections), at least once in a newspaper quahﬁed under
N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19. |

* SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) days after the first publication thereof

after final passage.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
2022001186




Res-Pg:f.2-3

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ordinance published herewith has been finally
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean on August 17, 2022, and the twenty (20) day
period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such Ordinance can be
commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this

notice.

MICHELLE 1. GUNTHER, Clerk
Board of Commissioners

JOHN C. SAHRADNIK
County Counsel

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutiqr{#: 2022001186




Res-Pg:f.3-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: ORDINANCE #2022-27 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $4,000,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of Renovations and Upgrades to the Northern Resource Building located in

Lakewood Township, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

Official Resolution# |2022001187
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem -3

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guanor”

Clerk Of The Board



_ Adopted on:

Introduced on:

Official Resolution

J:

..renovauons and upgrades to the Northem Resource Burldmg located in Lakewood Township, County of]

~ there for public mspectron

Res-Pg:f.3-2

- ORDINANCE #2022-27
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF
$4,000,000 FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
FOR THE COST OF RENOVATIONS AND UPGRADES TO
THE NORTHERN RESOURCE BUILDING LOCATED IN
. LAKEWOOD TOWNSHIP, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF
' NEW JERSEY.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean recogmzes the need for

Ocean, _State of New Jersey; and .

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the County that funds be available for this purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the
COUNTY OF | OCEAN, 'STATE OF NEW JERSEY (NOT LESS THAN TWO THIRDS OF ALL
MEMBERS THEREOF AFFIRMATIVELY CONCURRING), as follows: |

SECTION 1: $4,000,000 is hereby appropriated from the Capitar Irnprovement Fund for the cost
of renovations and upgrades to the Northern Resource Building located in Lakewood Township, County of
Ocean, wh.ich sum shall also cover fees and contingencies.

" SECTION 2: The capital budget of the County of Ocean is hereby amended to conform with the

provrsrons of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewrth The resolutron in the form
promulgated by the Local Finance .Bo_ard showing full detail of the amended capital budget and capital

program as approve'd by the Director of Local Government Services is on file with the Clerk and is available

SECTION 3: After passage upon first reading of this Ordinance, the Clerk of the Board of
Commissione_rs is‘hereby directed to pubhsh the full text of the Ordinance, together with the notice set forth |
below entitled: “NOTICE OF PENDING ORDINAN CE” (with appropriate completions, insertions and
oorrections), at least once in a newspaper qualified under N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19, at least seven days prior to the
date set for public hearing and ﬁlrther consideration for final passage (which date shall be at least ten days after
introduction and first 'reading). Tﬁe Clerk of the Boar(r of Commissioners is further directed to comply with all
provisions or“ N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-17(b) reéarding postings, publications, and the provision of copres of this
Ordinance. ' | |

SECTION 4: After final adoprion of this Ordinance by the Board of Commissioners, the Clerk of
rhe Board of Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full te;rt of th'is Ordinance, as finally
adopted,ﬂtog‘ether with the notioe set forth below enritled: "NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE"
(with appropriate oompletions, insertions and corrections), at least once in a newspaper qualified under
N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19. | | |

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) days after the first pubh'cation thereof

after final passage.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
2022001187 ’




Introduced on:
Adopted on:

Res-Pg:f.3-3

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ordinance published herewith has been finally
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean on August 17, 2022, and the twenty (20) day
period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such Ordinance can be
commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this

notice.

MICHELLE I. GUNTHER, Clerk
Board of Commissioners

JOHN C. SAHRADNIK
County Counsel

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resoluti

DI

W 2022001187




Res-Pg:f.4-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: ORDINANCE #2022-28 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $250,000.00 from the Capital
Improvement Fund for the Cost of Generator Installation and Upgrades for the County Mosquito

Commission, located in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

Official Resolution# |2022001188
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem f-4

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v
Crea v v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guaor”

Clerk Of The Board



_Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolution

Res-Pg:f.4-2 -

ORDINANCE #2022-28 |
AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF $25 0,000
FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND FOR THE
COST OF GENERATOR INSTALLATION AND UPGRADES
FOR THE COUNTY MOSQUITO COMMISSION, LOCATED
IN THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY.

WHEREAS, the Edard of Cdmmissiéners of the County of Ocean recognizes the need for
generator installation aﬁd ﬁp grades for the County Mosquito Commission, Jlocated the County of Ocean, State
of New Jersey; and |

WHEREAS, it is in the best int_erést .of the Coun& that funds be available for.-this purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the
COUNTY OF OCEAN ; STATE OF NEW JERSEY (NOT LESS THAN TWO THIRDS OF ALL
MEMBERS THEREOF AFFIRMATIVELY CONCUMG), as.’x;ollqws:

SECTION I: $250,000 i§ hereby appropriated from the Capital Improverﬁent Fund for the cost of
generator installation and ui) grades for the County Mosquito Commission; loéated the County pf Ocean, which
sum shall also cover fees and contingencieé. |

SﬁCTION 2: The capital budget of the County of Océan is hereby amended to conform with the
provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inéonsiétenc_y herewith. | The resolution in the form
promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended capital budget and capital
program as approved by the Director of Local Govemme.ant-Services is on file with the Clerk and-is available |
there for public inspection. |

| SECTION 3: After passage upon first reading of this Ordinance, the Clerk of the Board of
Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full text of thé Ordinanc_e,-together with fhe noticé set forth
below entitled: “NOTICE OF PENDING ORDINANCE’; (with appropriate completions, insertions and
coﬁectioné), at least once in a newspaper qualified under N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19, at least seven days prior to'the
date s‘et for public hearing and further consideration for final paséage (which date shall be at least ten da};s after

introduction and first reading). The Clerk of the Board of Commissioners is further direc;téd to comply with all

provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-17(b) regarding postings, publicAations, and the provision of copies of this

" Ordinance. -

SECTION 4: After final adoption of this Ordinance by the Board of Commissioners, the Clerk of

“the Board of Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full text of this Ordinance, as finally '

adopted, together with the notice set forth below entitled: "NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORD]I\IA‘NC.E"
(with appropriate completions, insertions and corrections), at least once in a newspaper qualiﬁed‘under :
N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19. | | | |

"SECTION 5: This Ordinance shail take effect twenty (20) dayé after the first publication thereof
after final passage. | |

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
2022001188




Res-Pg:f.4-3

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ordinance published herewith has been finally
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean on August 17, 2022, and the twenty (20) day
period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such Ordinance can be
commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this

notice.

MICHELLE I. GUNTHER, Clerk
Board of Commissioners

JOHN C. SAHRADNIK
County Counsel

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolut’ bn#: 2022001188




Res-Pg:f.5-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: ORDINANCE #2022-29 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $1,500,000.00 from the Capital

Improvement Fund for the Cost of the Construction of a Salt Dome to be located in Lacey Township, County of

Ocean, State of New Jersey.

Official Resolution# |2022001189
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem f-5

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guattnor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:f.5-2

ORDINANCE #2022-29
AN ORD]NANCE APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF
$1,500,000 FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
FOR THE COST OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SALT
DOME TO BE LOCATED IN LACEY TOWNSHIP, COUNTY
OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY.
‘WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the ‘Cour‘ity of Océan recognizes the need for the
construction 6f a salt dome to be located. in Lacey Township, County of chan, State of New Jefsey; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best intgregt of the County that fuinds be a%/ailable for this purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the
COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY (NOT.LESS THAN TWO THIRDS OF ALL
MEMBERS THEREOF AFFIRMATIVELY CONCURRING), as folloiys:

SECTION 1: $1 ,SOO;OOO is hereby appropriated from the Capital Improvernent.F'und for the cost
of the construction of a salt dome to be located in Lacey Township, Coupty of Oceaﬁ, which sum shall also
cbver fees and contingencies. | |

SECTION 2: The capital budget of the County of Ocean is hereby amended to conform with the

| provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewith.- The resolution in the form
promulgatéd by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of thé 'amended capital budget and capital
progfam as approv.ed by the Director of Local Government Services is on file with the Clerk and is av'ailable
there for i)ublic inspection.

SECTION 3: After passage upon first reading of this Ordinance, fhe Clerk of the Board of
Commissvioners is herebly directed to publish the full text of the Ordinance, together with the notice set forth

_ below entitled: “NOTICE OF PENDING ORDINANCE” (with eippropriate completions, insértions ‘and
cgrrectiohs), at Igast once in a newspaper qualified under N.J.S.A. 40A: 2—19,.at least seven days prior to the
date set for public hearing and further consideratiog for final passage (which date shall be at Iéast ten days ﬁﬁer :
introductioﬁ and first reading). The Clerk of the Board of Commissioners is further directed to comply with all
- provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-17(b) regarding postings, publications, and the prqvision of copies of this
Ordinance. . | |
SECTION 4: Aﬂgr final adoption of this Ordinance by the Board of Commissioners, the C_lerk of
the Board of Comrnissioﬂers is hereby >directed to publish the full text of this Ordinance, as finally
adopte.d, together witfl the notice set fo-rth below entjtled: "NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE”
(with appropriate _completioné, insertions and cbrrections), ‘at least once in a newspaper qualified under
N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19. |
SECTION 5: This Ordiﬂance shall take effect twenty (20) days after the ﬁrsf pﬁblicatioﬁ thereof

/

after ﬁﬁal passage.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022 . ‘ . )
Adopted on: JAugust 17, 2022 : :
Official Resolutioni#| 2022001189




'Res-Pg:f.5-3

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ordinance published herewith has been finally
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean on August 17, 2022, and the twenty (20) day
period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such Ordinance can be

commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this

notice.

MICHELLE 1. GUNTHER, Clerk
Board of Commissioners

JOHN C. SAHRADNIK
County Counsel

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolytjon#: 2022001189




Res-Pg:f.6-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: ORDINANCE #2022-30 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $1,000,000.00 from the Capital

Improvement Fund for the Cost of Upgrades to the Northern Recycli
County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

ng Center located in Lakewood Township,

Official Resolution# [2022001190
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem f-6

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guakor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resoluti

N

Res-Pg:f.6-2 -
ORDINANCE #2022-30 L

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF

$1,000,000 FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

FOR THE COST OF UPGRADES TO THE NORTHERN

- RECYCLING CENTER LOCATED IN LAKEWOOD

TOWNSHIP, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW

JERSEY. -

WHEREAS, the Board of .Commissio'ners of the County of Ocean recognizes the need for
upgrades to the Northern Recycling Center located in Lakewood Township, County of Ocean, State of New
Jersey; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the County that funds be available for this purpose.

'NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BQARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the

COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY (NOT LESS THAN TWO THIRDS OF ALL

MEMBERS THEREOF AFFIRMATIVELY CONCURRING), as follows:

SECTION 1: $1,000,000 is hereby appropriated from the Capital Improvement Fund for the cost

‘of upgrades to the Northern Recycling Center located in Lakewood Township, County of Ocean, which sum

shall also cover fees and conﬁngencies.

SECTION 2: The capital budget of thg County of Ocean is l;ereby amended té confo@ with the|
provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewith. The resolution in the form
promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail ofv the amended‘ capital budget and capital

program as approved by the Director of Local Government Services is on file with the Clerk and is available

there for public inspection.

_ SECTION: 3: After passage upon first reading of this Ordinance, the Clerk of the Board of
Commissibners is hereby directed to publish the full text of the Ordinance, to géther with the natice set forth
below éntiﬁed: “NOTICE OF PENDIN G ORDINANCE” (with appropriate completioﬁs, insertions and
corrections), at least once in a newspaper> qualified under N.J S.A. 4OA:‘ 2-19, at least seven days prior to the
date set for public hearing and further consideration for final passage (whicﬁ date shall be at.Ieast'ten days after
introduction and first reading): The Clerk of the Board of Commissioners is further directed to comply with all
provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-17(b) regarding postings, publications, and the provision of copies of this
Ordinance. ‘

SECTION 4: Afer final adoption of this Ordinance by thé Board of Commissioners, the Clerk of

the Board of Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full text of this Ordinance, as finally

“adopted, together with the notice set forth below entitled: "NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE"

(with appropriate completions, insertions and corrections), at least once in a newspaper qualified under|
N.JS.A.40A: 2-19.
SECTION 5: This Ordinance‘ shall take effect twenty (20) days after the first publication thereof

after final passage.
August 17, 2022 .
August 17, 2022

T#: 2022001190



Res-Pg:f.6-3

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ordinance published herewith has been finally
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean on August 17, 2022, and the twenty (20) day
period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such Ordinance can be
commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this

notice.

MICHELLE 1. GUNTHER, Clerk
Board of Commissioners

JOHN C. SAHRADNIK
County Counsel

Introduced on: ‘August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutipp#: 2022001190




Res-Pg:f.7-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: ORDINANCE #2022-31 — An Ordinance appropriating the sum of $1,500,000.00 from the Capital

Improvement Fund for the Cost of Renovations, Replacements and

Upgrades at the Brick Township Location

of the County Vocational Technical School, all in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

Official Resolution# [2022001191
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem -7

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
cowry —_ Tal, T T T, [
COMMISSIONER g u‘% g g’i § % ﬁ
Kelly v v
Haines v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v |v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michaue \. Guotkar

Clerk Of The Board



- Official Resolut

Introduced on:
Adopted on:

-School, all in the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey; and

'date set for pubhe hearmg and further consideration for final passage (which date shall be at least ten days after

_ introduction and ﬁrst reading). The Clerk of the Board of Commissioners is further directed to comply with all

(with appropriate completions, insertions and corrections), at least once in a newspaper qualified under

Res-Pg:f.7-2

ORDINANCE #2022-31

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING THE SUM OF

$1,500,000 FROM THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

FOR THE COST OF RENOVATIONS, REPLACEMENTS

AND UPGRADES AT THE BRICK TOWNSHIP LOCATION
. OF THE COUNTY VOCATIONAL TECHNICAL SCHOOL,

ALL IN THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW

JERSEY.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean recognizes the need for

ren_ovations, replacements and upgrades at the Brick Township location of the County Vocational Technical

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the County that funds be available for this purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BOARD. OF COMMISSIONERS of the
COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY (NOT LESS THAN TWO THIRDS OF ALL
MEMBERS TI-IEREOF AFFIRMATIVELY CONCURRING) as follows

SECTION 1: 51, 500 000 is hereby appropriated from the Capital ImpIOVement Fund for the cost
of renovations, replacements and upgrades at the Brick Township location of the County Vocational Technical
School, all m the Co_\inty of Ocean, which sum shall also cover fees and contingencies.

SECTION 2: | The capital budget of the County of Ocean is hereby amended io conform with the
provisions of this ordinance lo the extent of any inconsistency herewith. The resolution in ‘the form
promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of ithe amended capital budget and capital
program as approved by the Director of Local Government Services is on ﬁle‘ with the Clerk and is available.
there for public inspection. :

SEC’l’ION 3: After passage upon fns'o reading of this Ordinance, the Clerk of theBoard of
Commissioners is hereby directed to publish the full texi of the Ordinance, together with the notice set forth
below_ entitled: “NOTICE OF PEND]NG ORDINANCE” (with appropriate complelions, insertions and

corrections), at least once in a newspaper qualified under N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19, at least seven days prior to the

provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-17(h) regarding postings,‘publications, and the provision of copies of this
Ordinance. . / .

SECTION 4: After final adoption of this Ordinance by the Board of Conimissioners, the Clerk of
the Board of Comumissioners is hereby directed to. publish the full text-of this Ordinance, as finally

adopted, together with the notice set forth below entitled: "NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE"

N.J.S.A. 40A: 2-19.

SECTION 5: This Ordinance shall take effect twenty 20) days after the first publication thereof

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

n#: 2022001191



after final paséage.

Introduced on: August. 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001191

Res-Pg:f.7-3




Res-Pg:f.7-4

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Ordinance puinsHed herewith has been ﬁnaHy
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean on August 17, 2022, and the twenty (20) day
period of limitation within which a suit, action or proceeding questioning the validity of such Ordinance can be
commenced, as provided in the Local Bond Law, has begun to run from the date of the first publication of this

notice.

MICHELLE 1. GUNTHER, Clerk
Board of Commissioners

JOHN C. SAHRADNIK
County Counsel

Introduced on]] August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001191




Res-Pg:g.1-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to acquire
property identified as Block 394, Lot 13.05, Township of Toms River, totaling approximately 1.03 acres located
on Church Road, in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00, plus up to $550.00 for property tax adjustments.

Official Resolution# [2022001166
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem g-1

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v |v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatiner”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolutig

S E—

Res-Pg:g.1-2

RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the voters of Ocean County authorized the Ocean County Natural
Lands Trust Fund to provide funds for the acquisition and preservation of natural lands,
open spaces and farmland; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
was established by the Board of Commissioners to review nominations to the program and
forward recommendations for acquisition to the Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has received a
nomination for the property identified as Block 394, Lot 13.05 in Toms River Township
totaling approximately 1.03 acres located on Church Road; and

WHEREAS, one professional appraisal was authorized to determine the fair
market value; and

WHEREAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has determined
the property’s attributes are consistent with the Ocean County Open Space Plan and

~ Recreation Inventory; and

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean would acquire the property for a purchase price
not to exceed $150,000.00; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed acquisition was conducted by the
Board of Commissioners on August 17, 2022 as required by PL 1997, c24.

NOVW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as
follows:

1. It accepts the recommendation of the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund
Advisory Committee to acquire property identified as Block 394, Lot 13.05 in
Toms River Township totaling approximately 1.03 acres located on Church Road.

2. It authorizes the expenditure for an acquisition price not to exceed $150,000.00
plus up to $550.00 for property tax adjustments as necessary from the Ocean
County Natural Lands Trust Fund, Account Number 225-155-0151.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT

1. The proper officers of the Board are authorized and directed to sign all necessary
documents in order to effectuate these purchases.

2. The purchase of the property is to be contingent upon the County’s acquisition by
purchase, deed or gift of the necessary rights-of-way along any County roads
bordering the property as determined by the County Engineer.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
#: 2022001166




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolutig

Res-Pg:g.1-3

RESOLUTION: dugust 17, 2022

The offices of Ocean County Counsel and County Administrative staff are hereby
authorized to take all actions necessary to consummate this transaction and have
the fully executed Deeds or Easements recorded in the County Clerk's Office.

In the event the seller(s) seek to claim a charitable contribution credit, the County
Administrative staff may execute the completed IRS form 8283, confirm the sale
to Ocean County.

The Township of Toms River has supported acquisition of this property by
resolution.

Copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the Ocean County
Administrator, Planning Department, Finance Department, County Auditor;
County Counsel; County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee; the
Township of Toms River; and the landowner.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
q#: 2022001166




Res-Pg:g.2-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to acquire
property identified as Block 50, Lot 14 & Block 63, Lots 10, 10.05, 10.08 and 10.09, Borough of Tuckerton,
totaling approximately 48.21 acres located on Route 9, in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00, plus up to
$3,200.00 for property tax adjustments.

Official Resolution# |2022001167
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem g-2

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fu} o b~ (W e Q
COMMISSIONER g u‘% g g’i § % ﬁ
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michaue \. Guotkrar”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolutig

1

Res-Pg:g.2-2

RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the voters of Ocean County authorized the Ocean County Natural
Lands Trust Fund to provide funds for the acquisition and preservation of natural lands,
open spaces and farmland; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean Cbunty Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
was established by the Board of Commissioners to review nominations to the program and
forward recommendations for acquisition to the Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has received a
nomination for the property identified as Block 50, Lot 14 & Block 63, Lots 10, 10.05,
10.08, 10.09 in Tuckerton Borough totaling approximately 48.21 acres located on Route
9; and

WHEREAS, two professional appraisals were authorized to determine the fair
market value; and

WHEREAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has determined

the property’s attributes are consistent with the Ocean County Open Space Plan and
Recreation Inventory; and

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean would acquire the property for a purchase price
not to exceed $450,000.00; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed acquisition was conducted by the

~ Board of Commissioners on August 17, 2022 as required by PL 1997, c24.

NOVW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as
follows:

1. It accepts the recommendation of the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund
Advisory Committee to acquire property identified as Block 50, Lot 14 & Block
63, Lots 10, 10.05, 10.08, and 10.09 in Tuckerton Borough totaling approximately
48.21 acres located on Route 9.

2. It authorizes the expenditure for an acquisition price not to exceed $450,000.00
plus up to $3,200.00 for property tax adjustments as necessary from the Ocean
County Natural Lands Trust Fund, Account Number 225-155-0151.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT

1. The proper officers of the Board are authorized and directed to sign all necessary
documents in order to effectuate these purchases.

2. The purchase of the property is to be contingent upon the County’s acquisition by
purchase, deed or gift of the necessary rights-of-way along any County roads
bordering the property as determined by the County Engineer.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
#: 2022001167




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resoluti

#

Res-Pg:g.2-3

RESOLUTION: dugust 17, 2022

The offices of Ocean County Counsel and County Administrative staff are hereby
authorized to take all actions necessary to consummate this transaction and have
the fully executed Deeds or Easements recorded in the County Clerk's Office.

In the event the seller(s) seek to claim a charitable contribution credit, the County
Administrative staff may execute the completed IRS form 8283, confirm the sale
to Ocean County.

The Borough of Tuckerton has supported acquisition of this property by resolution
#90-22

Copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the Ocean County
Administrator, Planning Department, Finance Department, County Auditor;
County Counsel; County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee; the
Borough of Tuckerton; and the landowner.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
#: 2022001167




Res-Pg:g.3-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Accepting the recommendation of the OC Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee to accept
the donation of property identified as Block 4320, Lot 6, Township of Lacey, totaling approximately 0.98 acres
located near Lacey Road.

Official Resolution# |2022001168
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem g-3

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ g S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v |v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guahor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolutjqg

Res-Pg:g.3-2

RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the voters of Ocean County authorized the Ocean County Natural
Lands Trust Fund to provide funds for the acquisition and preservation of natural lands,
open spaces and farmland; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee
was established by the Board of Commissioners to review nominations to the program and
forward recommendations for acquisition to the Board of Commissioners; and

WHERFEAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has received an
offer for donation of property identified as Block 4320, Lot 6 totaling approximately 0.98
acres located near Lacey Rd. in Lacey Township; and

WHEREAS, the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee has determined
the property’s attributes are consistent with the Ocean County Open Space Plan and
Recreation Inventory; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the proposed donation was conducted by the
Board of Commissioners on August 17, 2022 as required by PL 1997, c24.

NOVW, THEREFORE, BE IT A RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as
follows: '

1. It accepts the recommendation of the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund
Advisory Committee to accept the donation of property identified as Block 4320,
Lot 6 totaling approximately 0.98 acres located near Lacey Rd in the Lacey
Township, plus up to $2,900.00 for property tax adjustments as necessary from the
Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund, Account No. 225-155-0151.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT

1. The proper officers of the Board are authorized and directed to sign all necessary
documents in order to effectuate these purchases.

2, The acceptance of the property is to be contingent upon the County’s acquisition
by purchase, deed or gift of the necessary rights-of-way along any County roads
bordering the property as determined by the County Engineer.

3. The offices of Ocean County Counsel and County Administrative staff are hereby
authorized to take all actions necessary to consummate this transaction and have
the fully executed Deeds or Easements recorded in the County Clerk's Office.

4, The Township of Lacey has supported acquisition of this property.

5. Copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the Ocean County
Administrator, Planning Department, Finance Department, County Auditor;
County Counsel; County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee; the
Township of Lacey; and the landowner.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
n#: 2022001168




Res-Pg:h-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF BILLS IN BILL COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 16.

Official Resolution# |2022001147
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem h

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guattnor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:h-2

BILL COMMITTEE REPORT
COUNTY OF OCEAN
SUMMARY OF VOUCHERS

SUMMARY OF BILLS | | CERTIFICATE# 16
MASTER VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE FOR CERTIFICATION OF PAYMENT

[, THE UNDERSIGNED, DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
HAVE EXAMINED THE VOUCHERS SUBMITTED HERE WITHIN FOR THE PURPOSE
OF RECOMMENDING TO THE OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PAYMENT THEREOF ON 08/17/2022.

I, HEREBY CERTIFY THESE VOUCHERS, IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $22,910,055.42
WHICH ARE CONTAINED IN THE ATTACHED REPORT, TO BE VALID CLAIMS, AND |
RECOMMEND APPROVAL AND PAYMENT THEREOF.

- APPROVED |
VIRGINIA E. HAINES
DEPUTY DIRECTOR
JOSEPH H. VICARI JOHN P. KELLY
COMMISSIONER DIRECTOR
GARY QUINN ' ORDERED PAID
COMMISSIONER '
BARBARA JO CREA MICHELLE I. GUNTHER
COMMISSIONER CLERK OF THE BOARD

/ BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001147



Res-Pg:h-3

RESOLUTION

AUGUST 17, 2022

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, THAT THE DIRECTOR\IS
HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND INSTRUCTED TO EXECUTE MAsTER
VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE #16 FOR CERTIFICATION OF SAID MASTER VOUCHER
CONSISTING OF 94 PAGES WITH VOUCHERS TOTALING IN THE AMOUNT

OF $22,910,055.42 WI:IICH ARE DEEMED TO BE VALID CLAIMS AS

RECOMMENDED BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE COMPTROLLER OIF THE COUNTY
OF OCEAN IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED TO PAY EACH AND EVERY
‘ONE OF THE AFORESAID BILLS ATTACHED TO THIS |

- MASTER VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE AND, UPON EXECUTION OF SAME BY SAID

DIRECTOR, IF AND WHEN FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001147



Res-Pg:i-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS IN BILL

COMMITTEE REPORT NO. ERA2-5.

Official Resolution# |2022001148
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem i

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guanor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:i-2

BILL COMMITTEE REPORT
COUNTY OF OCEAN
SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS
BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 17, 2022

SUMMARY OF BILLS ' CERTIFICATE #ERA2-5

MASTER VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE FOR CERTIFICATION OF PAYMENT OF THE
AUGUST 12, 2022 EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS.

[, THE UNDERSIGNED, DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION -
HAVE EXAMINED THE APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED HEREWITH FOR THE PURPOSE
OF RECOMMENDING TO THE OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
RATIFICATION OF PAYMENT MADE ON AUGUST 12, 2022.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THESE APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT, IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT
OF $359,609.49 WHICH ARE CONTAINED IN THE ATTACHED REPORT, TO BE VALID
CLAIMS, AND I RECOMMEND APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF THE PAYMENT.

APPROVED
VIRGINIA E. HAINES
DEPUTY DIRECTOR
JOSEPH H. VICARI ' JOHN P. KELLY
COMMISSIONER : DIRECTOR
GARY QUINN ORDERED PAID
COMMISSIONER
BARBARA JO CREA MICHELLE 1. GUNTHER
COMMISSIONER ' CLERK OF THE BOARD

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001148



»

Res-Pg:i-3

RESOLUTION

AUGUST 17,2022

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE OCEAN COUNTY BOARD

OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, THAT THE DIRECTOR IS
HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND INSTRUCTED TO EXECUTE MASTER |
VOUCHER-CERTIF ICATE FOR CERTIFICATION OF PAYMENT # ERA2-5 SAID
MASTER VOUCHER, CONSISTING OF 4 PAGES WITH PAYMENTS TOTALING IN THE
AMOUNT OF $359,609.49 WHICH ARE DEEMED TO BE VALID CLAIMS AS

RECOMMENDED BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER/DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE.

BE IT FURTHER RESdLVEb THAT THE COMPTROLLER OF THE COUNTY OF
OCEAN IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED AND DIRECTED TO PAY EACH AND EVERY ONE
OF THE AFORESAID EMERGENCY RENTAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS ATTACHED
TO THIS MASTER VOUCHER-CERTIFICATE FOR CERTIF ICATION OF .PAYMENT,
UPON EXECUTION OF SAME BY SAID DIRECTOR, IF AND WHEN FUNDS

ARE AVAILABLE.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001148



Res-Pg:j.1-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: EARLE ASPHALT COMPANY - Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Shorrock Street from Route 70 to
Beaverson Boulevard, Brick and Lakewood Townships - Change Order #1, E-$367.50, R-$0.00. (B2021-07E)

Official Resolution# [2022001150
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem j-1

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2021-07E
Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER x |30 % % |2 |2
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guanor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on]
Adopted on:
Official Resoly|

i

Res-Pg:j.1-2

CONTRACT NO. B2021-07E

RESOLUTTION

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, Contract No. B2021-07E was entered into on January
20, 2021 with Earle.Asphalt Company, Contractor, for work and
services 1in relation to the Reconstruction and Resurfacing of
Shorrock Street from Route 70 to Beaverson Boulevard, Brick énd
Lakewood Townships, Ocean County, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, during the course of construction minor modifications
to contract gquantities have become necessary to improve conditions;
and

WHEREAS, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean has duly
filed with this Board a request for a Change Order stating the
facts involved and certifying that the proposed Change Order 1is
consistent with regulations for such Change Orders promulgated by
the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local
Government Services, under authority of N.J.S.A. 52:27BB-32; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to accept these changes to
the Contract pursuant to the provisions of Sections 104 and 109 of
the Standard Specifications; and

WHEREAS, adequate funds are available in Account No. 422-185-
X201-6800 in the amount of $367.50.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that:

1. The County Engineer 1s hereby authorized to i1ssue
Amendatory Contract and Change Order No. 1 to Earle Asphalt Company
as follows: Extra Work Order in the amount of $367.50 in
connection with the'project known as Recohstruction and Resurfacing
of Shorrock Street from Route 70 to Beaverson Boulevard, Brick and

Lakewood Townships, Ocean County, New Jersey.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

on#: 2022001150




Introduced on]]
Adopted on:
Official Resoly

t

Res-Pg:j.1-3
CONTRACT NO. B2021-07E PAGE 2 August 17, 2022

2. The Director and Clerk of this Board are hereby
authorized and directed to enter into an Amendatory Contract with .
Earle Asphalt Company to cover the Change Order No. 1.

3. A certified copy of this resolution shall be sent to the
County Engineer, the County Treasurer, the County Auditor and

Farle Asphalt Company.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
on#: 2022001150




Res-Pg:j.2-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: MIDLANTIC CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Replacement of Bamber Bridge (Structure No. 1512-008),
Lacey Road (C.R. 614) over the Middle Branch of Cedar Creek, Township of Lacey - Partial Estimate #6,

$392,015.67. (B2021-114E)

Official Resolution# [2022001151
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem j-2

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2021-114E
Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER x |30 % % |2 |2
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatinor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolufi

Res-Pg:j.2-2
CONTRACT NO. B2021-114E

R E S 0O L U T I O N

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OF

OCEAN entered into an agreement July 21, 2021 with the

Contractor, Midlantic Construction, LLC for work and services in

relation to the Replacément of Bamber Bridge (Structure No. 1512-
008), Lacey Road (C.R. 614) Over the Middle Branch of Cedar
Creek, Township of Lacey, Ocean County, New Jersey; and
WHEREAS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and
WHEZREAS, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate -
No. 6 dated August 17, 2022 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction

and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
bn#: 2022001151

WHEZREAS, the Partial Estimate No. 6 shows:
Total Cost of Construction: $2,112,162.17
Less 2% of Total: $42,243.24
Subtotal: $2,069,918.93
Less Partial Estimate #1: $371,883.53
Less Partial Estimate #2: $636,542.06
Less Partial Estimate #3: $171,158.21
Less Partial Estimate #4: $131,085.16
Less Partial Estimate #5: $367,234.30
Total Partial Payments Made to Date: $1,677,903.26
AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $392,015.67




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolut|

Res-Pg:j.2-3

CONTRACT NO. B2021-114E PAGE 2 August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that: |

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same 1s hereby accepted by
the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance 1is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of Three hundred ninety
two thousand fifteen and 67/100 dollars ($392,015.67) which is the
amount herein before shown to be presently due to said Contractor,
in accordance with the certification thereof by the County Engineer

to this Board.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

gn#: 2022001151




Res-Pg:j.3-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: J.C. CONTRACTING, INC. - Reconstruction of the South Hope Chapel Road (C.R. 547) and
Ridgeway Boulevard Signalized Intersection, Township of Manchester - Partial Estimate #1, $117,124.43.

(B2021-171E)

Official Resolution# |2022001152
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem -3

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2021-171E
Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michate \. Guotkar’

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:j.3-2
CONTRACT NO. B2021-171E

R E S O L U T I O N

August 17, 2022

WHEIREAS, the’BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OF"
OCEAN entered into an agreement on October 20, 2021 with the
| Contractor, J.C. Contracting, Inc. for work aﬂd services in
relation to the Reconstruction of the South Hope Chapel Road
(C.R. 547) and Ridgeway Boulevard Signalized Intersection,
Township of Manchester, Ocean County, New Jersey; and

WHEIREAS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
said contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

W HEREA S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean-
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate
No. 1 dated August 17, 2022 was finished in all respects in'
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEZREAS, the Partial Estimate No. 1 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $119,514.72
Less 2% of Total: ' $2,390.29
Subtotal: $117,124.43
AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $117,124.43
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolutipn#: 2022001152




Introduced on:
Adopted on:

Res-Pg:j.3-3

CONTRACT NO. B2021-171E PAGE 2 August 17, 2022

WHEUZRTER AS, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of One hundred seventeen
thousand one hundred twenty four and 43/100 dollars ($117,124.43)
which is the amount herein before shown to be presently due to said
Contractor, in accordance with the certification thereof by the

County Engineer to this Board.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resoluti

W 2022001152




Res-Pg:j.4-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: J.C. CONTRACTING, INC. - Construction of Traffic Signal at West County Line Road (C.R. 526) and
Teaberry Court, Lakewood Township - Partial Estimate #1, $111,073.71. (B2021-169E)

Official Resolution# (2022001153
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem j-4

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2021-169E
Result Adopted
cowry —_ Ta T, T8 T, 2
COMMISSIONER x |30 % % |2 |2
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolu

Res-Pg:j.4-2
CONTRACT NO. B2021-169E

R E S O L U T I O N

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OFA
OCEAN entered into an agreement on October 20, 2021 with the
Contractor, J.C. Contracting, Inc. for work and services 1in
relation to the Construction of Traffic Signal at West County"
Line Road (C.R. 526) and Teaberry Court, Lakewood Township, Ocean
County, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
sald contract carried out under the direction and supervision of
the County Engineer; and

WHEREA A S, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate

No. 1 dated August 17, 2022 was finished in all respects in-

compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction

and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEREAR AS, the Partial EStimate No. 1 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $113,340.52
Less 2% of Total: $2,266.81
Subtotal: $111,073.71
AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $111,073.71

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

pn#: 2022001153




Introduced on:
Adopted on:

Res-Pg:j.4-3-

CONTRACT NO. B2021-169E PAGE 2 August 17, 2022

WHETZRTEA A S, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it 1is declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct. |

NOW; THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF-NEW JERSEY, that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resclution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Commissioners of the County of Oceén.

2. The Department of Finance 1is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of One hundred eleven
thousand seventy three and 71/100 dollars ($111,073.71) which is
the amount herein before shown to K be presently due to said
Contractor, in accordance with the certification thereof by the

County Engineer to this Board.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resoluti

n#: 2022001153




Res-Pg:j.5-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: BLACK ROCK ENTERPRISES, LLC - Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Portions of Certain County
Roads, Contract 2019C, No. |l - Partial Estimate #4, $583,497.66. (B2021-198E)

Official Resolution# [2022001154
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem j-5

CAF #

Purchase Req. # B2021-198E
Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guattnor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:j.5-2.

CONTRACT NO. B2021-198E

R E § 0L U T I O N

August 17, 2022

WHEREAR AS, the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OF
CCEAN entered into an agreement November 17, 2021 with the
Contractor, Black Rock Enterprises, LLC for work and services in
relation to the Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Portions of
Certain County Roads, Contract 2019C, No. II, Ocean County, New
Jersey; and

WHEREA A S, the contract for the said project was let in
the name of the County of Ocean and the work was done pursuant to
sald contract carried out under the direction and supervision of .
the County Engineer; and

WHEREA AS, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean
has duly certified to this Board that the work covered by said
contract up to and including the extent shown on Partial Estimate.
No. 4 dated August 17, 2022 was finished in all respects in
compliance with the plans and specifications, order and direction
and other details, all in conformity with the said contract; and

WHEREA AS, the Partial Estimate No. 4 shows:

Total Cost of Construction: $2,033,108.95
Less 2% of Total: $40,662.18
Subtotal: $1,992,446.77

Less Partial Estimate #1: $ 217,688.46
Less Partial Estimate #2: § 33,959.98
Less Partial Estimate #3: $1,157,300.67

Total Partial Payments Made to Date: $1,408,949.11
AMOUNT NOW DUE CONTRACTOR: $583,497.66
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolut{gn#: 2022001154




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resoly|

;

Res-Pg:j.5-3

CONTRACT NO. B2021—l98E PAGE 2 August 17, 2022

WHEZREA S, the said Contractor has filed a sworn claim
with the Board in which it 1s declared that the amount due the
Contractor as stated above is true, fair, just and correct.

NOW, THEREFORE,VBE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that:

1. The furnished work under this contract, to the extent
covered by this resolution, be and the same is hereby accepted by
the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean.

2. The Department of Finance is hereby authorized and
directed to pay said Contractor the amount of Five hundred eighty
three thousand four . hundred ninety seven and 66/100 dollar§
($583,497.66) which is the amount herein before shown to be

presently due to said Contractor, in accordance with the

certification thereof by the County Engineer to this Board.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

on#: 2022001154




Res-Pg:j.6-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

Agenda: SEACOAST CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Stormwater Manage
- Change Order #1, E-$79,840.99, R-$18,298.73. (B2021-48E)

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
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CONTRACT NO. B2021-48E

RESOLUTTION

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, Contract No. B2021-48E was entered into on March 17,
2021 with Seacoast Construction, Inc., Contractor, for work and
services in relation fo the Stormwater Management Contract 2020C,
Various Townships, Ocean County, New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, during the course of construction minor modifications
to contract quantities have become necessary to improve conditions
and due to actual field measured conditions;- and

WHEREAS, the County Engineer of the County of Ocean has duly
filed with thislBoard a request for a Change Order stating tﬁe
facts involved and certifying that the proposed Change Order 1is
consistent with regulations for such Change Orders promulgated by
the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local
Government Services, under authority of N.J.S.A. 52:27BB-32; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has agreed to accept these changes to
the Contract pursuant to the provisions of Sections 104 and 109 of
the Standard Specifications; and

WHEREAS, adequate funds are available in Accouﬁt No. 301-185-
X202-6800 in the amount of $61,542.26.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, in the STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that:

1. The County Engineer is hereby authorized to issue
Amendatory Contract and Change Order No. 1 to Seacoast
Construction, Inc. as follows: Extra Work Order in the amount of
$79,840.99 and Reduction Order in the amount of $18,298.73, in
connection with the project known as Stormwater Managemeht Contract

2020C, Various Townships, Ocean County, New Jersey.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
pn#: 2022001155
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Res-Pg:j.6-3
CONTRACT NO. B2021-48E PAGE 2 August 17, 2022

2. The Director and Clerk of this Board are hereby
authorized and directed to enter into an Amendatory Contract with
Seacoast Construction, Inc. to cover the Change Order No. 1.

3. A certified copy of this resolution shall be sent to the
County Engineer, the County Treasurer, the County Auditor and

Seacoast Construction, Inc.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
fion#: 2022001155
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building
Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754
Agenda: Authorizing the Personnel Resolution.

Official Resolution# |2022001215

Meeting Date 08/17/2022

Introduced Date 08/17/2022

Adopted Date 08/17/2022

Agenda ltem k-1

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted

COUNTY ﬁ & - o o b ;w.;

COMMISSIONER o @ g i Q § %

Kelly v v

Haines v v v

Crea v v

Quinn v v

Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
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Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board
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Official Resolut|
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of Technician Support Specialist 1, Office of Information Technology, pending Civil Service

. Res-Pg:k.1-2
RESOLUTION. '

August 17, 2022

BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS of the]
COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY that:

1.  Anita J. McKenna is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of]
Keyboarding Clerk 2, Clerk of the Board, subject to a working test period, effective July 28, 2022,
at her present salary.

2. At the request of the Board of Election, Bernard J. Bogus is hereby granted 3
Leave of Absence Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of]
Voting Machine Technician, Election Board, effective July 18, 2022 through October 9, 2022

inclusive.

3. Amanda M. Cacoilo is hereby granted an Extension of Intermittent Family|
Leave from her position of Keyboarding Clerk 2, Department of Transportatlon Services, effective
August 4, 2022 through August 3, 2023 inclusive.

4. Katie L. Ohrn is hereby granted an Extension of Intermittent Family Leave
from her position of Senior Mail Clerk, Clerk of the Board, effective August 5, 2022 through August
4, 2023 inclusive.

5. Joseph M. Provdo is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Technician Management Information Systems, Office of Information Technology, pending Civil
Service examination, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $47,900.

The following employees (6 through 8), are hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Heavy Equipment Operator Road Department, subject to a working
test period, effectlve August 18, 2022:

NAME - SALARY

6. Hank J. Emery $44,925.
7. David R. Falzini $60,180.
8 Brett R. Teitler $47,575.
9. Stephan M. Travers is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position

examination, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $53,700.

10.  Victoria K. Wagner is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Recreation Program Coordinator, Parks Department, subject to a working test period, effective
August 18,2022, at an annual base salary of $43,460, and effective October 21, 2022, at an annual
base salary of $45,460. ‘

11.  Tara L. Nosti is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position of
Principal Systems Analyst, Office of Information Technology, pending Civil Service examination,
effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $91,417.

12. Benjamin N. Brower is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of]
Geographlc Information Systems Specialist 2, Office of Information Technology, subject to a
working test period, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $59,784.

13.  Matthew R. Johnson is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Senior Traffic Maintenance Worker, Engineering Department, pending Civil Service
examination, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $44,000.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
n#: 2022001215
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14.  George C. Taylor is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Telecommunication Systems Analyst, Office of Information Technology, subject to a working test
period, effective August 18, 2022, at his present salary.

15.  NinaL. Charlton is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position of
Director of Administration and Program Development, Department of Corrections, pending Civil
Service examination, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $89,115.

16.  Eric J. Richardson is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Principal Data Processing Programmer, Office of Information Technology, pending Civil Servici
examination, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $59,784.

17. Kim M. Ohrn is hereby granted an Extension of Intermittent Medical Leave;
from her position of Principal Technician Management Information Systems, Office of Information|
Technology, effective August 4, 2022 through August 3, 2023 inclusive.

18.  Rachel A. Zdon is hereby granted an Intermittent Family Leave from heq
position of Keyboarding Clerk 2, Department of Vehicle Services, effective July 31, 2022 through
March 31, 2023 inclusive.

19.  Allison C. Reber is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position oIJ
Senior Data Processing Programmer, Office of Information Technology, pending Civil Service
examination, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $55,014.

20. Zachary T. Martin, Analyst Trainee, Department of Transportation Services,|
is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of Assistant Administrative Analyst, subject
to a working test period, effective August 5, 2022, at an annual base salary of $48,852.

The following employees (21 through 24), salaries are hereby corrected,)
effective April 1, 2022:

NAME _ TITLE DEPT. SALARY
21. Andrew Boulware Traffic Maint. Worker Engineering $43,580.
22. Shane T. Gallagher Maint. Repairer Refrig. A/C  Buildings & Grounds $41,750.
23. Eric R. Pfeiffer Laborer 1 Engineering $38,300.
24. Cole D. Soden Laborer 1 Road Dept. $38,300.

25. Charles E. St. John, III is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Pay
pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of Youth Worker, Juvenile
Services, effective July 21, 2022 through August 9, 2022 inclusive.

26. At the request of the Prosecutor, Gabriela C. Sottile is hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Keyboarding Clerk 2 Bi-Lingual in Spanish & English, Prosecutor’s
Office, subject to a working test period, effective March 21, 2022 (per N.J.C.S.C)), at her present

salary.

27.  Dorothy Midgley is hereby granted an Extension of Leave of Absence
Without Pay, (fill appointed position) from her position of Administrative Secretary, Department of]
Security, effective August 8, 2022 through August 7, 2023 inclusive.

At the request of the Sheriff, the following Public Safety Telecommunicator
Trainees (28 through 29), Sheriff’s 911 Division, are hereby given a regular appointment to the
position of Public Safety Telecommunicator, subject to a working test period, at an annual base
salary of $43,500:

NAME EFF.
28.  Krystina M. Cava 09/03/22
29.  David C. Owens 09/07/22

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resoluti
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30.  Douglas D. Dratch is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Assistant Supervising Heavy Equipment Operator, Road Department, pending Civil Service
examination, effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $53,500.

31. Scott L. Defibaugh is hereby granted an Extension of Intermittent Family
Leave from his position of County Correctional Police Officer, Department of Corrections, effectivel

32.  Richard A. DeMauro is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Payj
pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of Painter, Buildings & Grounds,
effective August 4, 2022 through August 16, 2022 inclusive.

33.  James M. Holleran is hereby granted an Extension of Leave of Absence
Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of Assistant
Supervising Omnibus Operator, Department of Transportation Services, effective August 10, 2022
through October 10, 2022 inclusive. '

34.  Sarah N. Prioli is hereby granted a Family Leave Without Pay, from her
position of County Correctional Police Sergeant, Department of Corrections, effective August 9,
2022 through August 26, 2022 inclusive.

35.  Miranda L. Sneddon is hereby given a regular appointment to the position oq
Building Maintenance Worker, Buildings & Grounds, subject to a working test period, effective]
August 29, 2022, at an annual base salary of $36,400.

36.  Attherequest of the Prosecutor, Jonathan M. Turner is hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Systems Analyst, Prosecutor’s Office, subject to a working test
perlod effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $60,000.

37 Raul F. Salazar is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of]
Omnibus Operator, Department of Transportation Services, subject to a working test period,
effective August 18, 2022, at an annual base salary of $37,800.

38.  Jesus Arteaga Perez is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Mechanic, Department of Vehicle Services, pending Civil Service examination, effective August
29, 2022, at an annual base salary of $40,700.

39.  Amelia A. Valdes is hereby given a regular part-time appointment to the
position of Clerk 1, Administrator’s Office — County Connection, subject to a working test period,
effective August 22, 2022, at an hourly wage of $17.50.

40.  Vincent N. Knabner is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of
Laborer 1, Road Department, subject to a working test period, effective August 29, 2022, at an
annual base salary of $36,400.

41.  Robert P. Donahue is hereby given a provisional appointment to the position
of Road Inspector, Engineering Department, pending Civil Service examination, effective August
22,2022, at an annual base salary of $41,700.

42.  Nicole Jamison is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of}
Keyboarding Clerk 1, Department of Finance, subject to a working test period, effective August 29,
2022, at an annual base salary of $36,400.

The following employees (43 through 44), are hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Aide Penal Institution, Department of Corrections, subject to a
working test period, effective October 3, 2022, at an annual base salary of $36,400:

43.  Joseph R. Boyle
44.  Kenneth Laurita

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
on#: 2022001215
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45. At the request of the Prosecutor, Lauren A. Fennessy is hereby granted an
Intermittent Family Leave from her position of Advocate Victim Witness Program, Prosecutor’s
Office, effective August 22, 2022 through August 21, 2023 inclusive.

The following employees (46 through 48), are hereby given a regulaq
appointment to the position of County Correctional Police Officer, Department of Corrections,
subject to a working test period, effective October 3, 2022, at an annual base salary of $40,000:

46.  Mirella Garcia
47.  Timothy J. Kelly
48.  Christopher P. Oslovich

49,  Zachary T. Brown is hereby given a regular appointment to the position of]
County Correctional Police Officer, Department of Corrections, subject to a working test period,
effective October 3, 2022, at an annual base salary of $44,000.

50. Joseph A. Zappavigna is hereby given an appointment to the position of]
Intermittent Golf Starter, Parks Department, subject to a working test period, effective August 22,
2022, at an hourly wage of $17.50.

At the request of the Sheriff, the following employees (51 through 52), are
hereby given a T/120 appointment to the position of Public Safety Telecommunicator, Sheriff’s 911
Division, effective August 18, 2022 through February 17, 2023, at an hourly wage of $20.92:

51. John F. Mazzola
52.  Christine M. Riggs

At the request of the Prosecutor, the following unpaid interns (53 through
58), Prosecutor’s Office, effective September 6, 2022 through December 8, 2022, are hereby
authorized:

Name College
53. Stephanie F. Cucinello ~ Montclair State University
54. Santino A. Galati Georgian Court University
55. Maxwell V. Manfre Seton Hall University
56. Marina R. Michelini Ocean County College
57. Giana R. Rapolla Ocean County College
58. Kyle J. Riordan Richard Stockton University

At the request of the Surrogate, the following employees (59 through 60),
are hereby given a provisional appointment to the position of Chief Probate Clerk, Surrogate’s
Office, pending Civil Service examination, effective August 18, 2022:

NAME SALARY
59. Melvina E. Barnes $58,793.
60. Bonnie L. Huyler $57,000.
6l1. Martha A. Altman, Records Support Technician 3, Surrogate’s Office,

annual base salary is hereby corrected to $39,367, effective July 1, 2022.

62. " At the request of the Surrogate, Candace L. Ericson is hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Keyboarding Clerk 1, Surrogate’s Office, subject to a working test
period, effective September 19, 2022, at an annual base salary of $36,400.

: 63. Joann L. Fudali is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Pay pursuant
to the Family and Medical Leave Act from her position of County Correctional Police Officer,
Department of Corrections, effective July 11, 2022 through September 12, 2022 inclusive.

64. John R. Frey is hereby granted an Extension of Leave of Absence Without
Pay, (Workers Compensation) from his position of County Correctional Police Officer, Department
of Corrections, effective August 12, 2022 for a period of three months or until the County of Ocean

det%r%égltqs?}%%zr%o longer qualifies for temporary disability payments, whichever is sooner.

August 17, 2022
bn#: 2022001215
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65. Gary E. Reebe, Jr. is hereby granted a Family Leave Without Pay, from hig
position of Equipment Operator, Road Department effective August 4, 2022 through October 261
2022 inclusive.

66. Justin May is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Pay pursuant tg
the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of County Correctional Police Officer,
Department of Corrections, effective August 20, 2022 through November 9, 2022 inclusive.

, 67. Johnathan W. Crow is hereby granted an Extension of Intermittent Family
Leave from his position of County Correctional Police Officer, Department of Corrections, effective
August 15, 2022 through November 14, 2022 inclusive.

68. At the request of the Sheriff, Chelsea A. McShane is hereby granted a Leavd
of Absence Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from her position of Records
Support Technician 3, Office of the Sheriff, effective August 22, 2022 through November 20, 2022
inclusive.

69. Michael J. Grémaglia is hereby granted an Extension of Intermittent Medical
Leave from his position of County Correctional Police Officer, Department of Corrections, effective
August 11, 2022 through November 10, 2022 inclusive.

70. At the request of the Sheriff, Jennifer M. Wojcik is hereby granted an
Intermittent Medical Leave from her position of Public Safety Telecommunicator, Sheriff’s 911
Division, effective July 28, 2022 through October 16, 2022 inclusive.

71. . Christopher F. Guiro is hereby granted a Leave of Absence Without Payj|
pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from his position of County Correctional Policg
Officer, Department of Corrections, effective August 6, 2022 through September 30, 2022 inclusive.

72. At the request of the Prosecutor, Carmen A. Gagliano is hereby granted an
Extension of Leave of Absence Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from
his position of Prosecutor’s Agent, Prosecutor’s Office, effective August 15, 2022 through
September 28, 2022 inclusive.

73. At the requeSt of the Prosecutor, Emily R. Ozimek is hereby granted a Leave
of Absence Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from her position of]
Keyboarding Clerk 2, Prosecutor’s Office, effective August 12, 2022 through October 17, 2022

inclusive.

74. Carol A. Rieling’s appointment to the position of Intermittent Park Attendant,
Parks Department, subject to a working test period, effective date is hereby changed to August 22,
2022. '

The following employees (75 through 77), are hereby given a regular
appointment to the position of Juvenile Detention Officer, Juvenile Services, subject to a working
test period, effective August 22, 2022, at an annual base salary of $38,750:

75. Sheritta P. Carson
76.  Christopher T. Hunter
77. Carlos S. Yanez

78. At the request of the Prosecutor, Ashley L. Angelo is hereby granted a Leave
of Absence Without Pay pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act from her position of Senior|
Assistant County Prosecutor, Prosecutor’s office, effective August 22, 2022 through September 11,
2022 inclusive.

79. At the request of the Sheriff, Vincent P. Alvino is hereby granted an
Extension of Intermittent Medical Leave from his position of Public Safety Telecommunicator,
Sheriff’s 911 Division, effective August 17, 2022 through November 16, 2022 inclusive.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
pn#: 2022001215
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At the requestvc')f the Commissioners of the Election Board, the following employees
titles and base salaries are hereby changed, effective August 18, 2022: :

NAME TITLE : SALARY
80. Diane Castner Pr. Elections Investigation Clerk $56,677.
81.  Samuel J. Crist Principal Investigator $47,000.
82.  Robert D. Engelhardt Chief Voting Machine Technician 2 - $64,076.
83.  Annadelle Hopkins Senior Elections Clerk $42,558.
84.  Thomas A. Kaczmarek, Jr.  Pr. Voting Machine Tech./Investigator 1 $53,013.
85.  Jared R. Knoeller Principal Investigator ' $45,300.
86.  Esther M. Libenschek Election Board Worker $48,338.
87.  Christopher M. Lopez Pr. Voting Tech./Investigator $44,204.
88.  Beth A. McGuckin Executive Supervisor $91,354.
89.  Tracey M. Reilly Chief Voting Machine Technician $56,013.
90. Mark P. Secare Pr. Voting Machine Tech./Investigator 1 $53,013.
91.  Cody Stefanacci Investigations Clerk $42,558.
92.  Patricia A. Vail Pr. Elections Investigation Clerk 1 $62,145.
93. JasonJ. Varano Executive Supervisor , $91,354.

At the request of the Commissioners of the Election Board, the following‘ employees
base salaries are hereby changed, effective August 18, 2022:

94.  Phillip A. Disabella - Voting Technology Coordinator - $85,756.

95.  Susanne P. Dyer Elections Investigation Coordinator $83,263.
96. Melodie Lecuyer ‘Data Entry Coordinator - $83,263.
97. Holly A. Martin ADA Coordinator $83,263.
98.  Christopher J. Patterson Elections Investigation Coordinator $75,500.
99.  Cynthia C. Seda - ADA Coordinator - §83,263.
100. Lois Tumner ~ Elections Clerk $41,400.

101.- At the request of the Sheriff, Gustavo J. Lopez is hereby given a T/120
appointment to the position of Public Safety Telecommunicator, Sheriff’s 911 Division, effective
August 22, 2022 through February 22, 2023, at an hourly wage of $20.92.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVEDthat certified copies of the Resolution be sent to the
Director of Employee Relations and the County Comptroller/CFO.

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolytjon#: 2022001215
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Supporting Ducks Unlimited in their application to the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA) for the Transformational Habitat Restoration and Coastal Resilience Grant program for
the restoration and enhancement of the shoreline and interior marshes in and around Cattus Island County
Park.
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RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatinor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.2-2

RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2022 the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
(NOAA) released a notice of funding opportunity for Transformational Habitat Restoration and
Coastal Resilience Grants under the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA); and
WHEREAS, on January 21, 2020 the County entered into an agreement with DEP to
receive a $3,000,000 Water Quality Restoration grant for the Cattus Island Living Shoreline
Restoration Project; and

WHEREAS, Ducks Unlimited, a 501(c)(3) nonprofit focused on wetlands conservation
and restoration, has a history of working with Ocean County on wetlands restoration projects
and has been participating in the Caﬁus Island Living Shoreline Restoration project; and
WHEREAS, Ducks Unlimited has approached the County about applying to NOAA's
Transformational Habitat Restoration and Coastal Resilience Graht to expand and complement
the ongoing Cattus Island Restoration project; and

WHEREAS, Ducks Unlimited would be the applicant for the grant funding and if
awarded, the County would enter into an agreement with them for this work.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as follows:

1. It hereby supports Ducks Unlimited in their application to NOAA for the
Transformational Habitat Restoration and Coastal Resilience Grant for the restoration
and enhancement of the shoreline and interior marshes in and around Cattus Island
County Park.

2. It authorizes the Ocean County Parks and Planning Departments to prepare, submit,
and revise such material as may be required to support the Ducks Unlimited proposal
for the project under the Transformational Habitat Restoration and Coastal Resilience
Grant.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this resolution shall be made
available to the County Administrator, County Finance Director, County Parks Director, County
Planning Department, County Engineer, County Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory
Committee, Ducks Unlimited, and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration.

Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutio 1L: 2022001169
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Accepting funding from the National Opioid Settlement Program.

Official Resolution# [2022001163
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-3
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Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board
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RESOLUTION

August 17,2022

WHEREAS, on June 19, 2019, the Ocean County Board of Chosen Freeholders
approved a Resolution authorizing a complaint be filed in the National Prescription Opiate

Litigation multidistrict litigation; and

WHEREAS, nationwide settlements in the multidistrict litigation have been reached

to resolve all opioid litigation against the three largest pharmaceutical distributors; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Department of Management and Budget has been
notified that funds are available for the National Opioid Settlement Program; and |
|

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Department of Management and Budget Wis:hes to

accept the grant funding derived from the settlement fund distribution payments provided by

the Settling Distributors of the National Opioid Settlement Agreement (the “Agreement”) and

allocated by the Settlement Fund Administrators pursuant to the Agreement and the State-

Subdivision Agreement for the National Opioid Settlement Program; and

WHEREAS, funds totaling $497,165.71 are available from the first (15f) annual
installment from the Settling Fund Distributors to the State of New Jersey and its
Participating Subdivisions in connection with the County of Ocean’s proportionate share of
the New Jersey Participating Subdivisions’ allotment pursuant to the Agreement and the

State-Subdivision Agreement; and

WHEREAS, an additional seventeen (17) annual settlement fund distribution
installments are anticipéted to be received by the County of Ocean over the life of the
Agreement from the Settling Distributors as allocated by the Settlement Fund Administrators
pursuant to the Agreement and the State-Subdivision Agreement for the National Opioid

Settlement Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that the County of Ocean is hereby
authorized and directed to accept the grant funding derived from the settlement fund

distribution payments provided by the Settling Distributors of the National Opioid

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001163




Res-Pg:k.3-3

Settlement Agreement, and allocated by the Settlement Fund Administrators pursuant to the
Agreement and the State-Subdivision Agreement, for the National Opioid Settlement

Program.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby

authorized and directed to execute any necessary subsequent related documents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this Resolution shall be made
available to the County Auditor, County Counsel, County Administrator, Department of

Finance, and the Department of Management and Budget.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutjon#: 2022001163




Res-Pg:k.4-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing a Grant Application to the State of New Jersey, Department of Law and Public Safety,
Office of the Attorney General for the SFY2022 Governor Phil Murphy Budget - Operation Helping Hand Grant
Program.

Official Resolution# |2022001158
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-4

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatiner”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.4-2
RESOLUTION

August 17,2022

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office wishes to enter and
participate with the Department of Law and Public Safety, Office of the Attorney General
in the State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2022 Governor Phil Murphy Budget - Operation Helping
Hand Grant Program;

WHEREAS, the purpose of the agreement is permitting the Ocean County
Prosecutor’s Office to be authorized to accept Subaward Number SFYOHH-15-2022
Grant funding and to accept said funding in the amount of $123,809.50, with no County
match funds being required, for the purpose described in the application of establishing
programs in which law enforcement plays an active role in identifying individuals with
substance use disorders and together with community partners, serve as a point of entry
for treatment and/or recovery support services during subaward period commencing

September 1, 2022 and terminating August 31, 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, as

follows:

1. That the Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to
execute the application and subsequent documentation between the Ocean County
Prosecutor’s Office and the Office of the Attorney General.

2. That the Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to
execute any necessary subsequent related documents.

3. A copy of said agreement will be kept on file within the Office of the Clerk of the
Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this Resolution shall be
made available to the Ocean County Prosecutor’s Office and the State of New Jersey,

Department of Law and Public Safety, Office of the Attorney General.

Introduced on]] August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolut }on#: 2022001158




Res-Pg:k.5-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing a Grant Application to NJ TRANSIT for the FY2023 Senior Citizen and Disabled Resident
Transportation Assistance Program.

Official Resolution# |2022001159
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-5

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatte \. Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.5-2

RESOLUTION

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the Director of the County of Ocean received notice from New
Jersey Transit Corporation of its eligibility for the renewal of the FY 2023 Senior Citizen
and Disabled Resident Transportation Assistance Program (SCDRTAP) in the amount of
$2,295,839.00 effective January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023 and;

WHEREAS, New Jersey Transit is responsible for administering the SCDRTAP
Program and has_ allocated $2,295,839.00 for Fiscal Year 2023 to Ocean County to

provide specialized transit services; and

WHEREAS, Ocean County further intends to utilize 2020 reprogrammed funds
in the amount of $361,861.50 to support Ocean Ride transit service during calendar year

2023; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Board of Commissioners is the recipient of State
Casino revenue ﬁmds and the Ocean County Department of Transportation Services is
the designated lead coordinating body for special transportation services provided to
seniors and persons with disabilities on a county-wide basis through the program known

as Ocean Ride; and

WHEREAS, the County Department of Transportation Services is responsible for
transit service planning, system operation and performance, grant and financial
management, procurement, program administration, marketing and outreach and

customer service; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Transportation Services Department has prepared
the FY 2023 SCDRTAP Transportation Grant application which includes various service
and fare adjustménts to the Ocean Ride system, in cooperation with the Ocean County
Transportation Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens and Persons with Disabilities

Committee and Stakeholder Committee; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Department of Transportation Services will
implement, manage and operate transit service through the Ocean Ride system, a service

of the Ocean Couﬁty Board of Commissioners.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
- Official Resolutipn#: 2022001159




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolutig

l

Res-Pg:k.5-3 -

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of
the County of Ocean, State of New Jersey as follows: '

1.) The Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to
submit the Ocean County FY 2023 Senior Citizen and Disabled Resident
Trarisportatioﬁ Assistance Program grant application to NJ TRANSIT.
The designated Transportation Representative is authorized to provide
such additional supporting documentation as may -be, reqiiired by NJ
TRANSIT. ' L

2.) The Director and Clerk of the Board and/or the Céiéljfcy’éli-~Desi;gr:1ated
Representative are hereby authorized and directed ‘Eof,execiif‘e all other

related documents and reports as required under state fégﬁlations.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this resolution shall be
made available to the Departmént of Transportation Services, Finance Department and
NJ TRANSIT, Department of Service Planning and Development, Local Programs &
Minibus Support Unit.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
#: 2022001159




Res-Pg:k.6-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing renewal of the Title IV-D Reimbursement Grant Agreement with the State of New
Jersey, Division of Family Development, for the period of 10/1/2019 through 9/30/2020.

Official Resolution# |2022001160
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-6

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatinor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.6-2

RESOLUTYON

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean has previously received funding from
the State of New Jersey, Division of Family Development for Title IV-D; and

WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office has received the renewal agreement for
the Title IV-D Reimbursement Agreement between the New Jersey Division of
Family Development and the Ocean County Sheriff’s Department, for the
Contract period of October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this agreement is to establish procedures
for arrest services for the Title IV-D cases.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW
JERSEY, that the Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and
directed to execute the above said grant agreement on behalf of the Sheriff’s
Office, and accept the terms and conditions specified in the agreement.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Director, the Clerk of the
Board and the Sheriff are hereby authorized to execute any necessary subsequent
related documents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that certified copies of this Resolution
shall be made available to the County Auditor and the State of New Jersey
Department of Human Services, Division of Family Development, the Ocean

County Department of Finance and the Ocean County Sheriffs Office.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutign#: 2022001160




Res-Pg:k.7-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Amending a Resolution adopted on 6/1/2022 to reflect the application and acceptance of the Edward
Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program FY19 funding as being from the State of New
Jersey, Department of Law and Public Safety, Office of the Attorney General, Division of Administration.

Official Resolution# [2022001161
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-7

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatiner”

Clerk Of The Board



s Res-Pg:k.7-2

RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2022, the Board of Commissioners of the Counfy of
Ocean, State of New Jersey, adopted a resolution that authorized and directed the
Director and the Clerk of the Board to execute a grant application for funding in the
amount of $136,975 for the period of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 for a project
under the subtitle “Multi-Jurisdictional Gang, Gun, and Narcotics Task Force”, the sub-
grant, JAG 171 5TF-18 to the State of New Jersey, Department of Law and Public Safety,
New Jersey Division of Criminal Justice; and

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Prosecutor’'s Office has been advised to amend
the resolution to reflect the application and acceptance of funding as being from the
State of New Jersey, Department of Law and Public Safety, Office of the Attorney
General, Division of Administration; and

WHEREAS, any reference to the State of New Jersey, Department of Law and
Public Safety, Office of the‘jAttorney General, New J’ersey Division of Criminal Justice
shall be amended to the State of New Jersey, Department of Law and Public Safety,
Office of the Attorney General, New Jersey Division of Administration.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, as follows:

1. The Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to amend
the Resolution dated June 1, 2022 to reflect the application and acceptance of funding
as being from the State of New Jersey, Department of Law and Public Safety, Office of

the Attorney General, Division of Administration.

2. All other provisions of the Resolution dated June 1, 2022 shall remain in full force

and effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Director and the Clerk of the Board are
hereby authorized and directed to execute any necessary subsequent related

documents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that certified copies of this resolution shall be
made available to the County Auditor, Ocean County Department of Finance, Ocean
County Prosecutor’s Office, and the State of New.Jersey, Department of Law and Public
Safety, Office of the Attorney General, Division of Administration.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutiqrj#: 2022001161




Res-Pg:k.8-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the County to submit grant application materials to New Jersey Transit Corporation, for
submission on the County's behalf to the Federal Transit Administration for the FY22 Passenger Ferry Grant
Program for improvement and expansion of the existing service at the Tuckerton Seaport / Beach Haven
Water Ferry.

Official Resolution# |2022001162
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-8

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON
Michate \. Guakoor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on;
Adopted on:
Official Resoly|

t

Res-Pg:k.8-2

RESOLUTION

AUGUST 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean is desirous to apply for the Federal Transit
Administration’s (“FTA”) FY22 Passenger Ferry Grant Program (FTA-2022-006-TPM-
FERRY) to improve and expand the existing ferry service, Tuckerton Seaport/Beach Haven
Water Ferry; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested that the New Jersey Transit Corporation (“the

Corporation”) submit an application on its behalf; and

WHEREAS, the County will provide the required local match funding and will

complete all annual certifications and assurances required for the project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as

follows:

1. The County Administrative Staff are authorized to prepare and submit grant
application materials to the Corporation for their review and submission for the
FTA FY22 Passenger Ferry Grant Program (FTA-2022-006-TPM-FERRY).

2. Upon award, a Memorandum of Understanding with the Corporation will be

required for grant administration.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this resolution shall be made
available to the County Administrator, County Finance Director, County Parks Director,
County Planning Director, County Engineer, County Counsel, Borough of Beach Haven,
Borough of Tuckerton, Southern Ocean County Chamber of Commerce, Federal Transit
Administration, NJ Transit Corporation, NJDOT-Office of Maritime Resources, and the
Tuckerton Seaport.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

on#: 2022001162




Res-Pg:k.9-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Borough of Beachwood to provide Schedule
"C" Road Department services in an amount not to exceed $122,000.00, Schedule "C" Engineering
Department services in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00, and Schedule "C" Vehicle Services Department
services in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00, for the period of 1/1/2022 through 12/31/2022.

Official Resolution# [2022001204
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-9

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
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COMMISSIONER g u‘% g g’i § % ﬁ
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michaue \. Guotkrar”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.9-2

RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean has created and established a program to assist
Local Governmental Units in the repair and maintenance of their streets and property in

addition to providing certain materials and supplies in connection therewith: and

WHEREAS, the Borough of Beachwood has requested the County to
provide certain repair, maintenance services, road overlay, sweeping disposal materials and

supplies, not to exceed the sum of $124,000.00 to be disbursed as follows:

Road Department $122,00.00
Engineering Department $1,000.00
Vehicle Services $1,000.00

WHEREAS, the Borough of Beachwood wishes to enter into an Agreement with
the County for the provision of these services:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW
JERSEY, as follows:

1. The Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to enter into
and execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Borough of Beachwood for the
provisions of certain repair, maintenance, road overlay, sweeping disposal, materials and

supplies, as more specifically set forth in the Agreement.

2. This Agreement shall take effect upon full execution by the parties and shall remain
in full force and effect through January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

3. Sufficient Funds- are available pending State Approval of subsequent budget
modifications under an appropriatioﬂ entitled “Municipal Road Work, Schedule “C” —Roads
account #016-170-4632, Engineering account #016-185-4633 and Vehicle Services account
#016-175-4635.

4. A copy of said Agreement shall be kept on file and available for public inspection in
the office of the Clerk of the Board.

5. Certified copies of this Resolution shall be made available to Borough of
Beachwood, the Department of Finance, County Auditor, Ocean County Road Department,
Ocean County Engineering Department and Vehicle Services.

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001204




RESOLUTION 2022-219
RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF BEACHWOOD, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING THE

EXECUTION OF A SCHEDULE"”C” AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF OCEAN FOR 2022

Res-Pg:k.9-3

WHEREAS, the Shared Services Act, N.J.S.A. 40A:65 et seq. authorized the Borough of Beachwood to enter into a

contract for the provision of certain governmental services with the County of Ocean; and

WHEREAS,.N.J.S.A. 40A:65 requires such a contract to be authorized by resolution or ordinance; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Governing Body to authorize the exécution of a contract with the County of Ocean
for the provision of services, materials and equipment as set forth in Schedule “C” attached hereto in the amount of

$124,000.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the Borough of Beachwood, County of Ocean, State of New

Jersey, as follows:

1. That the Mayor and Municipal Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a Schedule “C” agreement with the County of
Ocean in accordance with the provisions of the law to include $122,000.00 for the Road Department, $1000.00 for
the Engineering Department and $1,000.00 for the Vehicle Services for a total sum and not to exceed $124,000.00. A

copy of the said agreement is attached hereto and made part of hereof as Schedule “C”.

2. This agreement is for the period of January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.
3. That a copy of this agreement referenced herein shall be kept on file and made available for public inspection in the

Municipal Clerk’s office during normal business hours.

COUNCIL MOTION 2ND AYES NAYS ABSTAIN "ABSENT
Council President LaCrosse X X

Councilman Cairns X X

Councilwoman Clayton X
Councilman Feeney X
Councilman Komsa X

Councilman Zakar X

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of authorization to approve foregoing resolution adopted by the

Mayor and Borough Council of Beachwood Borough on luly 20, 2022,

Susan A. Minack, RMC
Municipal Clerk —Béachwood Borough

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001204




Res-Pg:k.10-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Borough of South Toms River to provide
Schedule "C" Road Department services in an amount not to exceed $20,000.00, Schedule "C" Engineering
Department services in an amount not to exceed $5,000.00, and Schedule "C" Vehicle Services Department
services in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00, for the period of 1/1/2022 through 12/31/2022.

Official Resolution# [2022001205
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-10

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
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COMMISSIONER g u‘% g g’i § % ﬁ
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michaue \. Guotkrar”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.10-2

RESOLUTION 2021-201

RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF SOUTH TOMS RIVER,
COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF A SCHEDULE “C” AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF OCEAN FOR 2022

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Services Act, N.J.S.A 40:8a-1 et seq. authorized the Borough
of South Toms River to enter into a contract for the provision of certain governmental services
with the County of Ocean; and

- WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40:8 requires such a contact to be authorized by resolution or
ordinance; and «

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the governing body to authorize the execution of a
contract with the County of Ocean for the provision of services, materials and equipment as set
forth in Schedule “C” attached hereto. g

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the Borough of
South Toms River, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey as follows:

1. That the Mayor and Borough Administrator/Municipal Clerk are hereby authorized to
execute a Schedule “C” agreement with The County of Ocean in accordance with the
provisions of the law to include $20,000.00 for the Road Department, $5,000.00 for
Engineering Department, and $1,000.00 for use of County Car Wash, for a total sum and
not to exceed $26,000.00. A copy of the said agreement is attached hereto and made part
hereof as Schedule “C”. '

2. This agreement is for the period January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

3. That a copy of this agreement referenced herein shall be kept on file and made available
for public inspection in the Municipal Clerk’s office during normal business hours.

CERTIFICATION

I, Joseph A. Kostecki, Municipal Clerk, of the Borough of South Toms River, County of Ocean,
State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the
Borough Council at the Regular meeting held on the 25® day of October, 2021, in the Borough
Hall, 19 Double Trouble Rd, South Toms River, New Jersey.

oseph A. Kostecki, MPA,CMC,RMC,QPA
Municipal Clerk

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001205




Res-Pg:k.10-3

RESOLUTION
'Aggust 17,2022

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean has created and established a program to assist

Local Governmental Units in the repair and maintenance of their streets and property in

addition to providing certain materials and supplies in connection therewith: arid

WHEREAS, the Borough of South Toms River has requested the County

to provide certain repair, maintenance services, road overlay, sweeping disposal materials

and supplies, not to exceed the sum of $26,000.00 to be disbursed as follows:

Road Department $20,000.00
~ Engineering Department $5,000.00
Vehicle Services $1,000.00

WHEREAS, the Borough of South Toms River wishes to enter into an
Agreement with the County for the provision of these services: '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW
JERSEY, as follows:

1. The Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to enter into
and execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Borough of South Toms River for
the provisions of certain repair, maintenance, road overlay, sweeping disposal, materials and

supplies, as more specifically set forth in the Agreement.

2. This Agreement shall take effect upon full execution by the parties and shall remain
in full force and effect through January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

3. Sufficient funds are available pending state approval of subsequent budget
modifications under an appropriation entitled “Municipal Road Work, Schedule “C” —Roads
account #016-170-4632, Engineering account #016-185-4633 and Vehicle Services account
#016-175-4635.

4. A copy of said Agreement shall be kept on file and available for public inspection in
the office of the Clerk of the Board.

5. Certified copies of this Resolution shall be made available to Borough of South
Toms River, the Department of Finance, County Auditor, Ocean County Road Department,
Ocean County Engineering Department and Vehicle Services Department.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutiph#: 2022001205




Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

$100,000.00.

Res-Pg:k.11-1

101 Hooper Avenue

Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue

Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Amending an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Township of Stafford to provide additional
Schedule "C" Road Department services, an increase to the agreement in an amount not to exceed

Official Resolution# [2022001206
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-11
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Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolutio!

Res-Pg:k.11-2

RESOLUTION
August 17,2022

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean has created and established a program to assist

Local Governmental Units in the repair and maintenance of their streets and property in

-addition to providing certain materials and supplies in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, the County entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement on June

15, 2022 with the Township of Stafford for some type of road maintenance, road
overlay, hauling of sweepings in the amount of $250,000 for the Road Department and
$40,000.00 for the Engineering Department.

'WHEREAS, the Township of Stafford wishes to enter into an Amendatory

Agreement with the County for an increase in the amount of $100,000, not to exceed
$350,000 in total for the Road Department and $40,000.00 in total for the Engineering
Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF
NEW JERSEY, as follows:

Department Original Amount Incljeased Amount Not to Exceed
Roads $250,000.00 $100,000.00 $350,000.00

Engineering $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00

That the Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby authorized and directed to
execute a 2022 Amendatory Agreement with the Township of Stafford, an increase in
the amount of $100,000.00, not to exceed $350,000.00 in total for the Road Department
and $40,000.00 in total for the Engineering Department, increasing the total amount not
to exceed $390,000.00, pending State Approval of subsequent budget modifications
under an appropriation entitled “Mum'cipél Road Work, Schedule “C” —Roads account

#016-170-4632, and Engineering Account #016-185-4633.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution shall be sent
to the Township of Stafford, Ocean County Road Department, Ocean County
Engineering Department, County Auditor, and the Department of Finance.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
nr: 2022001206




Res-Pg:k.11-3

RESOLUTION 2022-285

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF STAFFORD, COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
AUTHORIZING A “SCHEDULE C” AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF OCEAN FOR ENGINEERING
SERVICES AND ROAD DEPARTMENT SERVICES FOR THE YEAR 2022

WHEREAS, the Inter local Services Act, N.J.S.A. 40:8A-1 et seq. authorizes the Township of Stafford to enter
into a contract of the provision of certain governmental services with the County of Ocean; and

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 408A-4 requires that such a contract be authorized by resolution; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Governing Body to authorize the agreement with the County of Ocean for the
provision of services, materials, equipment and maintenance with the Ocean County Road Department and the Ocean

County Engineering Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the Township of Stafford, County of
Ocean, State of New Jersey, as follows:

1. That the Governing Body hereby authorizes the agreement with the County of Ocean, for the provision of
services, materials, equipment and maintenance with the Ocean County Road Department in the amount of
$350,000.00 and the Ocean County Engineering Department in the amount of $40,000.00, not to exceed

$390,000.00.

2. That the Mayor and Municipal Clerk are hereby authorized to amend the agreement with the County of Ocean
for the provision of services, materials, equipment and maintenance with the Ocean County Road Department
in the amount of $350,000.00 and the Ocean County Engineering Department in the amount of $40,000.00 for
the year 2022, not to exceed $390,000.00.

3. That a copy of the contract agreement referenced herein shall be kept on file and made available for public
inspection at the Municipal Clerk’s Office during normal business hours.

4, That a copy of this Resolution shall be forwarded to the Ocean County Board of Commissioners, the Ocean
County Road Department, the Ocean County Erigineering Department, Douglas Gannon, Chief Financial
Officer for the Township of Stafford, and to George Yockachonis, Superintendent of Public Works.

CERTIFICATION

I, LINDA MARTIN, Municipal Clerk of the Township of Stafford, do hereby certify that the foregoing.

Resolution was duly adopted by the Stafford Towns Comrﬂeeti[rj%eld on July 12, 2.02,:,'2.}23;::..m =
SN
[/ - v \Y/] 1 : \ ,{;‘7 ,i” -

v . ~

Linda A. Martin, RMC P :

Municipal Clerk U

Stafford Township LS e

Introduced on: August 17, 2022 r,; ~
.

Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001206




Res-Pg:k.12-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing an Agreement with the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service to provide services necessary to
address an urgent flooding issue in an area that includes the Federally threatened Swamp Pink, in the
Township of Toms River, at no cost to the County.

Official Resolution# [2022001125
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-12

CAF #

Purchase Req. #
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RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guaor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.12-2

RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, on November 9, 2015 the County of Ocean acquired Block 394,
Lot 51 in Toms River Township under the Ocean County Natural Lands Trust Fund;
and

WHEREAS, this land has been maintained in its natural state, which includes a
beaver colony and habitat; and

WHEREAS, the beaver colony natural behavior includes creating dams which
in turn cause flooding issues and pose a danger to threatened and endangered
species; and

WHEREAS, a critical area impacted by frequent flooding includes the federally
threatened Swamp Pink; and

WHEREAS, U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service can provide the services necessary to
address an urgent flooding issue as a result of beaver activity; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service has the ability to provide beaver
trapping services to Ocean County for the continued protection of the Swamp Pink,
for an amount not to exceed $1,500.00 at no cost to the County; and

NOV, THEREFORE, BE |IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, as

follows:
1. The Commissioner Director and Clerk of the Board are hereby
authorized to enter into and execute an agreement with U.S. Fish &
Wildlife Service, 4 East Jimmie Leeds Road, Unit 4, Galloway, NJ
08205 to provide beaver trapping services, at this location, for an
amount not to exceed $1,500.00 at no cost to the County.
2. Certified copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the Ocean
County Administrator, Planning Department, Finance Department,
County Auditor, County Counsel, and US Fish and Wildlife Services.
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolufipn#: 2022001125




Res-Pg:k.13-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Rescinding a Resolution adopted on 6/16/2021 authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding
between the New Jersey Department of the Community Affairs and the County for sharing information
concerning COVID — Emergency Rental Assistance.

Official Resolution# [2022001126
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-13

CAF #
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Res-Pg:k.13-2

RESOLUTION
August 17,2022

WHEREAS, on June 16, 2021 the Board of Commissioners adopted a resolution
authorizing a Memorandum of Understanding to share information concerning COVID
Emergency Rental Assistance; and

WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Understanding was not reached between New Jersey
Department Community Affairs and the County of Ocean; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary at this time to rescind the resolution adopted on
June 16, 2021; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that
Resolution #Res-Pg:1.27.1 adopted on June 16, 2021 has now been rescinded from any
further action.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution shall be

forwarded to Ocean County Department of Finance and the County Auditor.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resoluti )P#: 2022001126




Res-Pg:k.14-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing a modification to the OC First Time Homebuyer Program, to include a new participant, as

recommended by the Planning Director. (CC2022-85)

Official Resolution# |2022001170
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-14

CAF #

Purchase Req. # CC2022-85
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RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
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Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolut|

q

CONTRACT NO. MUSTEE '
PAPERS, DOCUMENTS, mvozcs&%bﬁ&g:kj -2

QA

RESOLUTION

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Board of Commissioners, by Resolution, dated April
20, 2022, authorized the Director and the Clerk of the Board to execute the legal instruments
associated with a First Time Homebuyer Program; and

WHEREAS, a qualified applicant can use the First Time Homebuyer Program subsidy
for down payment and closing cost assistance for a total of $15,000.00; and

WHEREAS, qualified applicants who successfully complete all necessary
requirements are recommended for a grant award in an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 each;
and

WHEREAS, the following participant(s) have successfully completed all necessary
requirements and have been deemed eligible to receive the subsidy:

1. Telly Bridges

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as
follows:

1. The Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the award of a grant subsidy in an
amount not to exceed $15,000.00 to the qualified program participant(s) listed
above.

2. The contract number must be placed on all papers, documents, invoices, and

vouchers pertaining to said contract being number CC2022-85.

3. Certified copies of this Resolution shall be made available to the Ocean County
Auditor, Finance Department, Planning Department, Management and Budget
Department, County Counsel and O.C.E.A.N., Inc.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
n#: 2022001170




Res-Pg:k.15-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Amending a resolution adopted on 7/20/2022 due to a scrivener's error.

Official Resolution# [2022001171
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-15

CAF #
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Introduced on:

Adopted on: |

Official Resolu|
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Res-Pg:k.15-2

RESOLUTION

August 17,2022

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2022, a resolution was adopted appointing
Shumel “Sam” Ellenbogen, Toms River as a new member of the Ocean County
Utilities Authority; and

WHEREAS, it has become necessary to amend the resolution to clarify the
correct spelling of Mr. Ellenbogen’s name.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW
JERSEY that it hereby appoints SHMUEL “SAM” ELLENBOGEN, Toms
River as a new member of the OCEAN COUNTY UTILITIES AUTHORITY
to fill the unexpired term of Daniel J. Hennessy, term to expire January 31, 2023.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this resolution
shall be made available to the Ocean County Utilities Authority, Ocean County
Clerk and to the appointee.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

on#: 2022001171




Res-Pg:k.16-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of the County of Ocean's General Improvement Bonds, Series
2022 authorized by Bond Ordinances heretofore adopted to finance various general improvements in the
County of Ocean, and providing for the form, maturity dates and other details of said bonds.

Official Resolution# [2022001164
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-16

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
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RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guattnor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced orﬂ
Adopted on:

Res-Pg:k.16-2

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF
THE COUNTY OF OCEAN'S GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS,
SERIES 2022 AUTHORIZED BY BOND ORDINANCES
HERETOFORE ADOPTED TO FINANCE VARIOUS GENERAL
IMPROVEMENTS IN THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, AND PROVIDING
FOR THE FORM, MATURITY DATES AND OTHER DETAILS OF

SAID BONDS.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean, in the State of New Jersey (the
"County") has adopted various bond ordinances described in Section 1 of this Resolution (collectively, the
"Ordinances"), authorizing bonds and bond anticipation notes to finance a portion of the cost of the construction
and reconstruction of various capital improvements in said County (collectively, the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, it is desirable and necessary to issue the County's general improvement bonds pursuant to
the Ordinances, in an aggregate principal amount of $47,970,000, unless adjusted pursuant to Section 13 hereof,
and it is deemed advisable and in the best interests of the County to provide for the sale, form, maturity date and
other matters in connection with the bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Authority for Resolution. Pursuant to the Local Bond Law of the State of New Jersey,
constituting Chapter 2 of Title 40A of the New Jersey Statutes (the "Act"), the Board of Commissioners has
previously adopted the following Ordinances on the dates indicated, which Ordinances authorized the issuance
of bonds in the amounts indicated, and the Board of Commissioners has determined to issue at this time, pursuant
to each of said Ordinances, the following amounts of bonds:

Amount of Maximum
Ordinance Date Bonds Period of | Amount of
Number Adopted Purpose Authorized | Usefulness | Bonds to be
’ Issued*
2022-1 02/16/22 Various engineering, road and | $4,750,000 | 20 years $4,750,000
bridge improvements
2022-3 02/16/22 Installation of new and upgraded 2.850,000 10 years 2,850,000
traffic control devices
2022-4 02/16/22 Reconstruction and resurfacing of 3.325.000 | 10 years 3,325,000
certain County roads
2022-6 05/04/22 Design of reconstruction and 1,900,000 10 years 1,900,000
resurfacing of certain County
roads
2022-7 05/04/22 Rehabilitation and repair of 950,000 |. 15 years 950,000
various bridges
2022-10 05/04/22 . | Replacement of the Duck Farm 3,800,000 | 30 years 3,800,000
Bridge, Brick Township
2022-11 05/04/22 Construction of a library facility, | 11,165,000 | 30 years 6,341,000
Stafford Township
2022-12 06/01/22 Construction of a traffic signal at 1,425,000 10 years 1,425,000
Diamond Road and Route 526,
West Commodore Road, Jackson
Township
2022-14 06/01/22 Replacement of the Farmingdale 1,425,000 | 30 years 1,425,000
Road Culvert, Jackson Township
2022-15 06/01/22 Ocean County signal optimization 1,900,000 10 years 1,900,000
2022-16 06/01/22 Reconstruction of East County 2,375,000 | 20 years 2,375,000
Line Road (C.R. 526), Apple
Street to Route 549, Phase IV,
Ridge Avenue and Joe Parker
Road, Lakewood Township
2022-17 06/01/22 Capital Renewal and Replacement 5,498,000 [ 20 years 2,749,000
Facilities Improvement Project FY
2022 at the County College
2022-18 06/01/22 Expansion of the Jackson Center | 10,000,000 | 20 years 2,784,195
for the Board of Education of the
Ocean County Vocational School,
Jackson Township
2022-20 07/06/22 Construction of a road facility, | 11,400,000 | 20 years 11,400,000
Chestnut Street, Toms River
Township
TOTAL $62,763,000 $47,974,195

*Final Amount of Bonds Issued will be based upon Bond Premium bid |

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resolgtion#: 20220
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Introduced (JIJ :

Adopted on;

Res-Pg:k.16-3

Section 2. Authorization of Bonds. In accordance with the Act, and for the purpose of raising
funds to finance the purposes set forth in the Ordinances, there shall be issued bonds of the County in tpe aggregate
principal amount of $47,970,000, unless adjusted pursuant to Section 13 hereof, pursuant to the .Ordmances. All
of said bonds shall constitute a single issue for purposes of the Local Bond Law and shall be designated "General
Improvement Bonds, Series 2022" (the "Bonds").

Section 3. Details of Bonds. The Bonds will be issued in the form of one certificate for the
aggregate principal amount of bonds maturing in each year and will be payab.le as to both principal and interest
in lawful money of the United States of America. Each certificate will be registered in the name of Cede & Co.,
as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), which will act as securities depository. The certl_ﬁcates
will be on deposit with DTC. DTC will be responsible for maintaining a book entry system for record}ng the
interests among its participants. The participants will be responsible for maintaining records regarding the
beneficial ownership interests in the bonds on behalf of individual purchasers. Individual purchases may be mafie
in the principal amount of $1,000 or more through book entries made on the books and records of DTC an<.1 its
participants. The Bonds will bear interest payable semiannually at a rate or rates per annum, exp.ressed ina
multiple of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%, as proposed by the successful bidder in accordance with the Notice of Sale
authorized herein. The Bonds shall be substantially in the form as provided in this Resolution, with such
omissions, insertions and variations as are properly required. Said Bonds shall be dated the date of delivery, shall
bear interest at the rate or rates specified by the successful bidder therefor in accordance with the Notice of Sale
hereinafter provided for, said interest to be payable on March 1 and September 1, commencing on March 1, 2023,
and shall mature (unless adjusted by the County Comptroller pursuant to Section 13 hereof) on September 1 in
the following years and amounts:

PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL
YEAR AMOUNT YEAR AMOUNT
2023 $1,745,000 2033 $2,670,000
2024 1,720,000 2034 2,750,000
2025 1,805,000 2035 2,830,000
2026 1,900,000 2036 2,915,000
2027 1,990,000 2037 3,010,000
2028 2,090,000 2038 3,110,000
2029 2,195,000 2039 3,210,000
2030 2,305,000 2040 3,325,000
2031 2,420,000 - 2041 3,440,000
2032 2,540,000

Section 4. Certificated Bonds: Successor Securities Depository. In the event the County

determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds (the actual purchasers of the bonds)
that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may notify DTC of the availability of bond certificates.
In such event, the County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue, transfer and exchange bond
certificates as required by DTC and others in appropriate amounts. DTC may determine to discontinue providing
its services with respect to the bonds at any time by giving a reasonable amount of notice in writing to the County
and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto. In the event of such determination, if the County fails to
identify another qualified securities depository as successor to DTC, the County will appoint a paying agent and
the County will issue and deliver replacement bonds in the form of fully registered certificates. Whenever DTC
requests the County to do so, the County will cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action (a) to make
available one or more separate certificates evidencing the bonds to any participant of DTC having bonds credited
to its DTC account or (b) to arrange for another securities depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing
the bonds.

Section 5. Redemption. (A) The Bonds maturing prior to September 1, 2033 are not subject to
redemption prior to maturity.

(B) The Bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2033 are subject to redemption, at the option of
the County prior to maturity and upon notice as hereinafter provided, at any time on or after September 1, 2032,
in whole or in part from such maturities as the County shall determine and by lot within a single maturity, at the
respective redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed together with unpaid interest accrued
to the redemption date.

© In the event the winning bidder elects to aggregate consecutive principal maturities of the Bonds
into one or more term bonds pursuant to Section 11 hereof, then each such term bond shall mature on the final
maturity date of such consecutive maturities in an aggregate principal amount equal to the sum of the principal
amounts of such consecutive maturities. Each such term bond shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption prior to maturity, in part, on the dates and in the amounts that would have been consecutive serial
maturities had no term bond designation been made (other than the final such maturity, which shall be the maturity
date of such term bond), at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued
interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resqlution#: 2022001164
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Introduced oﬁ
Adopted on:

Res-Pg:k.16-4

D) When any bonds are to be redeemed, the County shall give or shall arrange to be given not.ice
of the redemption of bonds. Such notice shall specify the maturities of the bonds to be redeemed, the redemption
date and the place or places where amounts due upon such redemption will be payable and, if less than all of the
bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, the letters and the numbers or other distinguishing marks of such bor}ds
so to be redeemed, and, in the case of a bond to be redeemed in part only, such notice shall also specify the portion
of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Such notice shall further state that on such date there shall
become due and payable upon each bond to be redeemed the principal amount of such bond plus the applicable
premium, if any, payable upon the redemption thereof, or the specified portion of the principal thereof in the case
of a bond to be redeemed in part only, together with interest accrued to such date, and that from and after such
date interest thereon shall cease to accrue and be payable. The County shall mail or cause to be mailed a copy of
such notice postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed
for redemption, to the registered owner of any bond all or a portion of which is to be redeemed, at his last address,
if any, appearing upon the registry books kept by or on behalf of the County. For so long as the book-entry only
form remains in effect and the bonds are registered in the name of DTC, or its nominee, the County will not be
responsible for mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC, and the County shall comply with
such additional or supplemental requirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any redemption of
bonds whether such additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations by and
between the County and DTC or otherwise.

E®) Notice having been given in the manner provided above, the bonds or the portions thereof called
for redemption and specified in such notice shall become due and payable on the redemption date specified in
such notice at the principal amount thereof plus the premium, if atty, applicable on such date, plus unpaid interest
on such bonds or portions thereof accrued to such date. Upon presentation and surrender thereof at the place or
the places specified in such notice, such bonds or portions thereof shall be paid at the principal amount thereof
plus the applicable premium, if any, plus unpaid interest on such bonds or portion thereof accrued to such date.
Ifthere shall be so called for redemption less than all of'a bond, the County shall execute and cause to be delivered,
upon the surrender of such bond, without charge to the registered owner thereof, for the unredeemed balance of
the principal amount of the bond so surrendered, registered bonds of like designation, interest rate and maturity
in any of the authorized denominations. If on such redemption date moneys for the redemption of all the bonds
or the portion thereof of any like maturity to be redeemed, together with interest thereon accrued and unpaid to
such date, shall be held on behalf of the County so as to be available therefor on such date and if notice of
redemption thereof shall have been published as aforesaid, then from and after such redemption date, interest on
the bonds or the portions thereof of such maturity so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and to become
payable. All moneys held on behalf of the County for the redemption of particular bonds shall be held in trust
for the account of the owners of the bonds so to be redeemed.

Section 6. Payment of Bonds. The principal of and the interest on the Bonds will be paid to DTC
by or on behalf of the County on their respective due dates. Interest on the Bonds will be credited to the
participants of DTC as listed on the records of DTC as of each next preceding February 15 and August 15 (the
"Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the bonds).

Section 7. Execution of Bonds. Said Bonds shall be executed in the name of the County by the
manual or facsimile signatures of the Commissioner-Director and the Chief Financial Officer and the seal of the
Board of Commissioners shall be affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced thereon and attested by the manual
signature of the Clerk or a Deputy Clerk of the Board of Commissioners. If any officer whose signature appears
on the Bonds ceases to hold office before the delivery of the bonds, his/her signature shall nevertheless be valid
and sufficient for all purposes. In addition, any Bond may bear the signature of, or may be signed by, such persons
as at the actual time of the signing of such Bond shall be the proper officers to sign such bond although at the date
of such bond such persons may not have been such officers.

Section 8. Reissuance of Mutilated. Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any Bond shall
become mutilated or destroyed, stolen or lost the County shall execute and deliver a new bond of like tenor and
amount as the bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated bond
and upon surrender of such mutilated bond, or in lieu of and substitution for the bond destroyed, stolen or lost
upon filing with the County evidence satisfactory to the County that such bond has been destroyed, stolen or lost
and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the County with indemnity satisfactory to it and complying
with such other reasonable regulations as the County may prescribe, and paying such expenses as the County may
incur in connection therewith.

Section 9. Form of Bonds. Subject to the provisions of this Resolution, each Bond shall be in
substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements and variations as may be required

by the circumstances and be required or permitted by this Resolution or as may be consistent with this Resolution

and necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and requirements of any governmental authority or any usage
or requirement of law with respect thereto:
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(Form of Bond)
No. 8
United States of America
State of New Jersey
COUNTY OF OCEAN
General Improvement Bond, Series 2022
Maturity Date Interest Rate Dated Date CUSIP
September 1, % September _ , 2022
Registered Owner: CEDE & CO.
Principal Sum: DOLLARS

The COUNTY OF OCEAN (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), a political subdivision of the State
of New Jersey, for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named above, or registered
assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date specified above, and to pay interest on such Principal
Sum from the Dated Date specified above at the Interest Rate per annum specified above, computed upon the
basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve 30 day months and payable on March 1, 2023, and semi-annually
thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until the County's obligation with respect to the
payment of such Principal Sum shall be discharged, but only in the case of interest due at or before maturity of
this bond. The principal of and the interest on this bond will be paid to Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository
Trust Company. Interest on this bond will be credited to the participants of The Depository Trust Company listed
on the records of The Depository Trust Company as of each next preceding February 15 and August 15 (the
"Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the bonds).

This bond is not transferable as to principal or interest except to an authorized nominee of The Depository
Trust Company. The Depository Trust Company shall be responsible for maintaining the book entry system for
recording the interests of its participants or the transfers of the interests among its participants. The participants
are responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the bonds on behalf of
individual purchasers.

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the County of like date and tenor, except as to
number, denomination, interest rate, CUSIP number and. maturity date, issued in the aggregate principal amount
of § under and pursuant to the Local Bond Law of'the State of New Jersey and by virtue of a resolution
adopted by the County's governing body on August 17, 2022 (the "Resolution"), and by virtue of the bond
ordinances referred to therein in all respects duly approved and published as required by law.

The bonds maturing prior to September 1, 2033 are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. The
bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2033 are subject to redemption, at the option of the County, prior to
maturity and upon notice as hereinafter and in the Resolution set forth, at any time on or after September 1, 2032,
in whole or in part from such maturities as the County shall determine and by lot within a single maturity, at the
respective redemption price of 100% of at the principal amount to be redeemed together with unpaid interest
accrued to the redemption date.

[The bonds maturing on September 1, 20__ are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to
maturity, in part, on September 1 of the years and in the principal amounts specified below, at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption:

Year Principal Amount

* Final Maturity.]

When any bonds are to be redeemed, the County shall mail or cause to be mailed a Notice of Redemption,
postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption,
to the registered owner of any bond all or a portion of which is to be redeemed, at his last address, if any, appearing
upon the registry books kept by or on behaif of the County, all in the manner and upon the terms and the conditions
set forth in the Resolution. If notice of redemption shall have been given as aforesaid, the bonds or the portions
thereof specified in such notice shall become due and payable on the redemption date therein designated at the
principal amount thereof plus the premium, if any, applicable on such date, plus unpaid interest accrued to such
date. If moneys for payment of the principal amount plus premium, if any, of all the bonds to be redeemed,
together with interest to the redemption date, shall be available for such payment on the redemption date, then
from and after the redemption date interest on such bonds shall cease to accrue and to become payable to the
holders entitled to payment thereof on such redemption date. For so long as the book-entry only form remains in
effect and the bonds are registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, the County will not be responsible for
mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC, and the County shall comply with such additional or

supplementd, reeprirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any redemption of bonds whether such
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additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations by and between the County
and DTC or otherwise.

The full faith and credit of the County are hereby pledged for the punctual payment of the principal of
and interest on this bond according to its terms.

In the event the County determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the bonds
(the actual purchasers of the bonds) that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may notify The
Depository Trust Company ("DTC") of the availability of bond certificates. In such event, the County will appoint
a paying agent and the County will issue, transfer and exchange bond certificates as required by DTC and others
in appropriate amounts. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the bonds at
any time by giving a reasonable amount of notice in writing to the County and discharging its responsibilities
with respect thereto. In the event of such determination, if the County fails to identify another qualified securities
depository as successor to DTC, the County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue and deliver
replacement bonds in the form of fully registered certificates. Whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the
County will cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action (a) to make available one or more separate
certificates evidencing the bonds to any participant of DTC having bonds credited to its DTC account or (b) to
arrange for another securities depository to maintairi custody of certificates evidencing the bonds.

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by the Constitution and
statutes of the State of New Jersey to exist, to have happened or to have been performed precedent to or in the
issuance of this bond, exist, have happened and have been performed and that the amount and terms of this bond
do not exceed any limitation imposed thereon by said Constitution or statutes.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY OF OCEAN, has caused this bond to be signed by the manual
or facsimile signature of its Commissioner-Director and its Chief Financial Officer, the corporate seal of the
Board of Commissioners to be hereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced hereon and to be attested by
the manual signature of the Clerk or Deputy Clerk of the Board of Commissioners, all as of the ___ day of

September, 2022,

ATTEST:

(SEAL) Commissioner - Director

Chief Financial Officer

(Deputy) Clerk of the Board of Commissioners

Section 10. Sale of Bonds. Proposals for the Bonds will be received by the County on September
8, 2022 until 10:45 a.m., New Jersey time, or at such later date and time as may be established in accordance with
Section 14 hereof, by Julie N. Tarrant, the County's Comptroller through the “PARITY Electronic Bid System”
(PARITY) in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice of Sale authorized herein. Such
proposals shall be received and announced at the County Administration Building, Room 304 Conference Room,
Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey, in accordance with the Notice of Sale. The Clerk of
the Board of Commissioners is hereby directed to arrange for the publication of the Notice of Sale in The Asbury
Park Press, a newspaper published and circulating in the County, and for the publication of the Notice of Sale (or
summaries thereof as provided by law) in The Bond Buyer, and/or such other nationally recognized local
government bond marketing publication or electronic information service carrying municipal bond notices and
devoted primarily to the subject of state and municipal bonds The notice shall be in substantially the following
form:

(Form of Notice of Sale)
NOTICE OF SALE
$47,970,000%
COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022
(CALLABLE) (BOOK-ENTRY ONLY ISSUE)

ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS will be received and announced by Julie N. Tarrant, Comptroller of the
County of Ocean (the "County" or the "Issuer" ), at the County Administration Building Room 304 Conference
Room, Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey, through the PARITY Electronic Bid System
(“PARITY”) of IPREO LLC, as deScribed herein. The General Improvement Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Bonds"
or the "Securities") shall mature (unless adjusted by the County Comptroller as described herein, or aggregated
into term bonds as described herein) on September 1 in the following years and amounts:

$47,970,000* General Improvement Bonds, Series 2022 maturing on September 1 in the principal amounts set
forth below:

PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL

YEAR AMOUNT . YEAR AMOUNT
2023 $1,745,000 2033 $2,670,000
2024 1,720,000 2034 2,750,000
2025 1,805,000 2035 2,830,000
2026 1,900,000 2036 2,915,000
2027 1,990,000 2037 3,010,000
2028 2,090,000 2038 3,110,000
2029 2,195,000 2039 3,210,000
2030 2,305,000 2040 3,325,000
2031 2,420,000 2041 3,440,000
2032 2,540,000

*subject to adjustment
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THE COUNTY IS ALSO SELLING ITS $2,745,000* COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS,
SERIES 2022 (THE "COLLEGE BONDS"). THE COUNTY HAS ISSUED A SEPARATE NOTICE OF
SALE FOR THE COLLEGE BONDS. THE TERMS OF EACH NOTICE OF SALE WILL APPLY TO

EACH SERIES OF BONDS, RESPECTIVELY.

All Bids (as defined below) must be submitted in their entirety through ‘PARITY until 10:45 a.m.,
New Jersey time on September 8, 2022 (see “Bidding Details”). To bid, Bidders (as defined below) must
submit either (i) a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check or (ii) complete a wire transfer, in either case in
the amount of $959,400 (the check or wire transfer being hereinafter referred to as the “Deposit™), to secure
the County from any loss resulting from a failure of the bidder-to comply with the terms of its bid. The
Deposit must be submitted to the County prior to the time for submission of bids, and if in the form of a
certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check, at the following address:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

If a wire transfer is used for the Deposit, it must be sent according to the following wire instructions and
if the bid is not accepted, the County shall promptly return the Deposit amount to the unsuccessful bidder. EACH
BIDDER MUST PROVIDE THEIR RETURN WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:

TD Bank, N.A., Toms River, NJ
ABA#: 031201360
Credit To: County of Ocean
Bill Committee Clearing
Acct# 6855093280

The use of PARITY shall be at the Bidder’s risk and expense, and the County shall have no liability with
respect thereto.

If a check is used, it must be a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check payable to the County and such
check (together with a name and return address) should be sent to Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller, County
Administration Building, Department of Finance, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey 08754. Checks
of unsuccessful bidders will be returned upon the award of the Bonds. Any bidder that does not have a
‘representative present at the bid announcement is requested to include with its good faith deposit overnight
packaging or other return envelope for the return of its Deposit (if not the successful bidder). In the absence of
other arrangements, the check of any unsuccessful bidder will be returned by certified first class mail to such
name and return address as specified by such bidder when such Deposit was provided. By submitting a proposal
for the Bonds, each bidder shall be deemed to have accepted any and all risks of loss associated with the return
of its Deposit. Upon return of its Deposit, each such unsuccessful bidder shall acknowledge same by signing and
returning a receipt to such effect provided by the County. If a wire transfer is used, such transfer must be
completed and confirmed received by the County prior to the opening of the bids.

The Deposit of the winning bidder will be applied to the purchase price of the Bonds. In the event the
winning bidder fails to comply with the terms of its accepted bid, the Deposit will be retained by the County as
liquidated damages. The winning bidder shall not be entitled to any interest earnings in respect of the County,

The Bonds are to be issued in book-entry only form and all bidders for the Bonds must be participants
of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or affiliated with its participants. The Bonds will be
issued in the form of one certificate for the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds maturing in each year and
will be payable as to both principal and interest in lawful money of the United States of America. Each certificate
will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (collectively, "DTC").
The certificates will be on deposit with DTC. DTC will be responsible for maintaining a book entry system for
recording the interests of its participants or the transfer of the interests among its participants. The participants
will be responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds on behalf of
the individual purchasers. Individual purchases may be made in the principal amount of $1,000 or more through
book entries made on the books and records of DTC and its participants.

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest at the rate or rates of interest per
annum specified by the successful bidder therefor in accordance herewith, payable on March 1, 2023 and
semiannually thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until maturity by payment to DTC.

The Bonds maturing on or after September 1, 2033 are subject to redemption, at the option of the County
prior to maturity and upon notice as set forth in the Resolution, at any time on or after September 1, 2032, in
whole or in part from such maturities as the County shall determine and by lot within a single maturity, at the
respective redemption price of 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed together with unpaid interest accrued
to the redemption date.

‘When any bonds are to be redeemed, the County shall mail or cause to be mailed a Notice of Redemption,
postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days, nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption,
to the registered owner of any bond all or a portion of which is to be redeemed, at his last address, if any, appearing
up%mg[qgi,%pooks kept by or on behalf of the County, all in the manner and upon the terms and the conditions
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set forth in the Resolution. If notice of redemption shall have been given as aforesaid, the bonds or the portions
thereof specified in such notice shall become due and payable on the redemption date tl}erein designated at the
principal amount thereof plus the premium, if any, applicable on such date, plus unpaid interest accrued to such
date. If moneys for payment of the principal amount ‘plus premium, if any, of all the bonds to be redeemed,
together with interest to the redemption date, shall be available for such payment on the redemption date, then
from and after the redemption date interest on such bonds shall cease to accrue and to become payable to the
holders entitled to payment thereof on such redemption date. For so long as the book-entry only form remains in
effect and the bonds are registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, the County will not be responsible for
mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC, and the County shall comply with such additional or
supplemental requirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any redemption of bonds whether such

~ additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations by and between the County

and DTC or otherwise.

A bidder may aggregate consecutive principal maturities of the Bonds, for which such bidder bids the
same interest rate, into term bonds. Each such term bond shall mature on the final maturity date of such
consecutive maturities in an aggregate principal amount equal to the sum of the principal amounts of such
consecutive maturities. Each such term bond shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to
maturity, in part, on the dates and in the amounts that would have been consecutive serial maturities had no term
bond designation been made (other than the final such maturity, which shall be the maturity date of such term
bond), at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon
to the date fixed for redemption. Notice of redemption shall be given as provided in the resolution of the County
authorizing the Bonds.

For so long as the book-entry form remains in effect and the Bonds are registered in the name of DTC,
the County will not be responsible for mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC.

The Bonds are general obligations of the County and unless paid from other sources the County is
authorized and required by law to levy ad valorem taxes upon all real property taxable by the County for the
payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon without limitation as to rate or amount.

Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by the Bonds and
the rate or rates named must be multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one per centum. Not more than one
rate may be named for the Bonds of the same maturity. There is no limitation on the number of rates that may be
named; provided, however that the minimum coupon named in the proposal must not be lower than three per
centum (3%) and the maximum coupon named in the proposal must not be higher than five per centum (5%), and
0% coupons are not permitted. Each proposal submitted must be for all of the Bonds and the purchase price
specified in the proposal must equal or exceed $48,449,700 (101%), with a maximum bid price of
$52,287,300 (109%). The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder on whose bids for the Bonds may be made
at the lowest true interest cost. Such true interest cost shall be computed by determining the interest rate,
compounded semi-annually, necessary to discount the debt service payments to the date of the Bonds and to the
price bid, excluding interest accrued to the delivery date. No proposal shall be considered that offers to pay an
amount [ess than the principal amount of the Bonds offered for sale or under which the total loan is made at a true
interest cost higher than the lowest true interest cost to the County under any legally acceptable proposal, and if
two or more such bidders offer to pay the lowest true interest cost, then the Bonds will be sold to one of such
bidders selected by lot from among all such bidders. The purchaser must also pay an amount equal to the interest
(if any) on the Bonds accrued to the date of payment of the purchase price. The right is reserved to reject all bids
and to reject any bid not complying with this Notice.

It is requested that each proposal be accompanied by a computation of the true interest cost to the County
under the terms of the proposal in accordance with the method of calculation described in the preceding paragraph
(computed to six decimal places), but such computation is not to be considered as part of the proposal for Bonds.

The County reserves the right to postpone, upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, the date and time
established for receipt of Bids. ANY SUCH POSTPONEMENT WILL BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS
SERVICES, BEFORE 4:00 P.M. ON THE DAY BEFORE THE SALE. If any date fixed for the receipt of
Bids and the sale of the Bonds is postponed, an alternative sale date will be announced through TM3 New Services
at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to such alternative sale date. On any such alternative sale date, any Bidder
may submit a Bid for the purchase of the Bonds in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Notice of
Sale, except for the date of sale and except for the changes announced on www.tm3.com at the time the sale date
and time are announced.

Within 30 minutes of the award of the Bonds, the County must receive from the successful bidder an
email or telecopy (an “Initial Public Offering Price Telecopy™) stating the prices at which such successful bidder
intends that each stated maturity of the Bonds shall initially be offered to the public, which for this purpose
excludes bond houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers (the “Initial
Public Offering Prices”). The successful bidder shall make a bona fide initial public offering of the bonds at the
Initial Public Offering Prices stated in their Initial Public Offering Price Telecopy.

The County Comptroller of the County may, up to 24 hours prior to the date of advertised sale of and
within 4 hours after the award of the Bonds, adjust the maturity schedule of the Bonds in increments of $1,000,
provided however, that after the award of the Bonds (i) no maturity schedule adjustment shall exceed 10% upward
or downward of the principal for any maturity as specified herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of advertised
sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the maturity schedule shall not exceed 10% upward or downward of the
aggregate principal amount of bonds as specified herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and
as adiugiest yilbamt exceed the amount authorized by the Ordinances. NOTICE OF ANY ADJUSTMENT TO
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THE MATURITY SCHEDULE OF THE BONDS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE ADVERTISED SALE
SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING A NOTICE THEREOF TO BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS SERVICES.
The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder shall be adjusted to reflect any adjustments in the aggregate
principal amount of bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect changes in the dollar amount of the
underwriter’s discount and the original issue premium or discount, but will not change the per bond underwriter’s
discount as calculated from the bid and the Initial Public Offering Prices required to be delivered to the County
as stated herein. The County shall notify the successful bidder of the final maturity schedule and the resulting
adjusted purchase price no later than 5:00 p.m., New Jersey time, on the day of the sale and award of the Bonds.
The interest rate or rates specified by the successful bidder for each maturity will not be altered. The successful
bidder may not withdraw its bid as a result of any such adjustment, and shall be bound by the terms
thereof.

It is expected that the Bonds will be delivered to the successful bidder on or about September 22, 2022
at the Freehold, New Jersey offices of GluckWalrath LLP or at such other time or place mutually agreed upon by
the purchaser and the County. AT THE TIME OF DELIVERY OF THE BONDS, THE SUCCESSFUL
BIDDER SHALL PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS THROUGH THE USE OF
IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE FUNDS. No interest will be paid upon the deposit made by the successful
bidder.

Each electronic proposal must be submitted through PARITY. No bidder will see any other bid, nor will
any bidder see the status of its bid relative to other bids—i.e., whether its bid is a leading bid. To the extent any
instructions or directions set forth on PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale
shall control. For further information about PARITY, potential bidders may call PARITY at IPREO at (212) 849-
5021. The County may, but is not obligated to, acknowledge its acceptance in writing of any bid submitted
electronically through PARITY. In the event that a bid for the Bonds is submitted through PARITY, the bidder
further agrees that the County may regard the electronic transmission of the bid through PARITY (including
information about the purchase price of the Bonds, the interest rate or rates to be borne by the various Bonds, the
term Bonds, if any, specified, the initial public offering price of each maturity of the Bonds and any other
information included in such transmission) as though the same information were submitted on the official
“Proposal for Bonds” provided by the County and executed by a duly authorized signatory of the bidder. Ifa bid
submitted electronically through PARITY is accepted by the County, the terms of the official “Proposal for
Bonds” and this Notice of Sale and the information that is electronically transmitted through PARITY shall form
a contract, and the successful bidder shall be bound by the terms of such contract.

PARITY is not an agent of the County, and the County shall have no liability whatsoever based on any
bidder’s use of PARITY, including but not limited to any failure by PARITY to correctly or timely transmit
information provided by the County or information provided by the bidder.

The County may choose to discontinue use of electronic bidding through PARITY by issuing a
notification to such effect through TM3 News Services, or by other available means, no later than 4:00 p.m., New
Jersey Time, on the last business date prior to the bid date.

Once the bids are communicated electronically through PARITY to the County, each bid will constitute
an official “Proposal for Bonds” and shall be deemed to be an irrevocable offer to purchase the Bonds on the
terms provided in this Notice of Sale. For purposes of submitting all “Proposals for Bonds,” whether
electronically or sealed, the time as maintained on PARITY shall constitute the official time.

Each bidder shall be solely responsible to make necessary arrangements to access PARITY for purposes
of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of this Notice of Sale. Neither
the County nor IPREO shall have any duty or obligation to any bidder, or be responsible for the proper operation
of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or any damages caused by PARITY. The County is
using PARITY as a communication mechanism, and not as the County’s agent, to conduct the electronic bidding
for the Bonds. By using PARITY each bidder agrees to hold the County harmless for any harm or damages
caused to such bidder in connection with its use of PARITY for bidding on the Bonds.

Bidders should be aware of the following bidding details (“Bidding Details™) associated with the sale of
the Bonds:

1. BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT GOOD FAITH CHECK OR A WIRE TRANSFER IN THE
AMOUNT OF $959,400 PAYABLE TO THE COUNTY OF OCEAN NO LATER THAN 10:45 A.M. ON
THE DAY OF SALE. HOWEVER, BIDDERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO SUBMIT CHECKS ON THE
DAY PRIOR TO THE SALE TO ASSURE RECEIPT OF PAYMENT BY THE COUNTY AT THE
FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

BIDDERS SUBMITTING GOOD FAITH CHECKS SHOULD ALSO ENCLOSE A RETURN
ENVELOPE FOR USE BY THE COUNTY.
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August 17, 2022
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: -2 All Bids must be submitted through PARITY. No telephone, telefax, telegraph or personal
delivery Bids will be accepted.
3. All Bids for the Bonds must be submitted on an “All or None” (“AON”) basis.
4 Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by the

Bonds and the rate or rates named must be multiples of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%. Not more than one rate may be named
for the Bonds of each maturity. There is no limitation on the number of rates that may be named; provided,
however that the minimum coupon named in the proposal must not be lower than three per centum (3%) and the
maximum coupon named in the proposal must not be higher than five per centum (5%), and 0% coupons are not
permitted. Each proposal submitted must be for all of the Bonds and the purchase price specified in the
proposal must equal or exceed $48,449,700 (101%), with a maximum bid price of $52,287,300 (109%). The
Bonds will be awarded to the bidder on whose bid the total loan may be made at the lowest true interest cost (as
such term is defined herein). The purchaser must also pay an amount equal to the interest on the Bonds accrued
to the date of payment of the purchase price.

5. Bidders are only permitted to submit Bids for the Bonds during the bidding period.
Definitions
“Bid” any confirmed purchase offer received by PARITY on or before the proposal submission
deadline.
“Bidder” any firm registered and approved for participation in sale.

“Winning Bid” any purchase offer made by a Bidder and received by PARITY that, at the end of the bidding
time period, results in the lowest True Interest Cost that is acceptable to the County.

“True Interest Cost” or “TIC”  computed by determining the interest rate, compounded semi-annually,
necessary to discount the debt service payments to the date of the bonds and to the price bid,
excluding interest accrued to the delivery. The True Interest Cost serves as the basis for
awarding bonds to winning Bidders.

The successful bidder may, at its option, refuse to accept the Bonds if prior to their delivery any income
tax law of the United States of America shall provide that the interest thereon is includable in gross income for
federal income tax purposes, or shall be so includable at a future date. In such case the deposit made by the bidder
shall be returned and it will be relieved of its contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of its proposal.

If the Bonds qualify for issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance or commitment therefor at
the option of a bidder, any purchase of such insurance or commitment therefor shall be at the sole option and
expense of the bidder and any increased costs of issuance of the Bonds resulting by reason of such insurance,
unless otherwise paid, shall be paid by such bidder. Any failure of the Bonds to be so insured or of any such
policy of insurance to be issued shall not in any way relieve the purchaser of its contractual obligations arising
from the acceptance of its proposal for the purchase of the Bonds.

The County reserves the right to reject any and all Bids and to the extent permitted by law to waive any
irregularity or informality in any Bid.

Establishment of Issue Price

(a) The winning bidder shall assist the Issuer in establishing the issue price of the Securities and
shall execute and deliver to the Issuer at Closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably
expected initial offering price to the Public or the sales price or prices of the Securities, together with the
supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, substantially in the forms reflected as Exhibits A, B or
C, which are incorporated by reference herein and ate available from Bond Counsel and shall be posted with the
Notice of Sale on Parity, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment
of the winning bidder, the Issuer and Bond Counsel. All actions to be taken by the Issuer under this Notice of
Sale to establish the issue price of the Securities may be taken on behalf of the Issuer by the Issuer’s municipal
advisor identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the Issuer may be provided to the Issuer’s
municipal advisor or Bond Counsel.

(b) The Issuer intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(£)(3)(i) (defining
“competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Securities) will apply to the initial sale of
the Securities (the “competitive sale requirements”) because:

(1 the Issuer shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential
Underwriters in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential Underwriters;

2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3) the Issuer may receive bids from at least three Underwriters of
municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting new
issuances of municipal bonds; and

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
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4) the Issuer anticipates awarding the sale of the Securities to the bidder
who submits a firm offer to purchase the Securities at the highest price (or lowest
interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the
Securities, as specified in the bid.

(©) If the successful bidder is purchasing for its own account without a present intention to reoffer
the Bonds, it must complete Exhibit A, and the provisions of paragraphs (d)~(i) below shall not apply.

) In the event that paragraph (c) does not apply and the Competitive Sale Requirements are
satisfied, the winning bidder must complete Exhibit B, and the provisions of paragraphs (e)-(i) below shall not

apply.

(e) In the event that paragraph (c) does not apply and the Competitive Sale Requirements are not
satisfied, the Issuer shall so advise the winning bidder and the winning bidder must complete Exhibit C. The
Issuer may determine to treat (i) the first price at which 10% of a Maturity of the Securities (the “10% test”) is
sold to the Public as the issue price of that Maturity and/or (ii) the initial offering price to the Public as of the Sale
Date of any Maturity of the Securities as the issue price of that Maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), in
each case applied on a Maturity-by-Maturity basis. Immediately following the award of the Securities, the
winning bidder shall advise the Issuer if any Maturity of the Securities satisfies the 10% test. Any Maturity -of
the Securities as to which the winning bidder has not so advised the Issuer that the 10% test has been satisfied
shall be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule. Bids will not be subject to cancellation in the event that the
hold-the-offering-price rule applies to any Maturity of the Securities. Bidders should prepare their bids on the
assumption that some or all of the maturities of the Securities will be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule
in order to establish the issue price of the Securities.

® By submitting a bid, the winning bidder shall (i) confirm that the Underwriters have offered or
will offer the Securities to the Public on or before the date of award at the offering price or prices (the “initial
offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in the bid submitted by the winning bidder and
(ii) agree, on behalf of the Underwriters participating in the purchase of the Securities, that the Underwriters will
neither offer nor sell unsold Securities of any Maturity to which the hold-the-offering-price rule shall apply to
any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the Public during the period starting on the
Sale Date and ending on the earlier of the following:

¢)) the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the Sale Date; or

2) the date on which the Underwriters have sold at least 10% of that Maturity of
the Securities to the Public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the Public.

The winning bidder shall promptly advise the Issuer when the Underwriters have sold 10% of that
Maturity of the Securities to the Public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the Public, if
that occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the Sale Date.

® If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% test has been satisfied
as to each Maturity of the Securities, the winning bidder agrees to promptly report to the Issuer the prices at which
the unsold Securities of that Maturity have been sold to the Public. That reporting obligation shall continue,
whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Securities of that
Maturity or until all Securities of that Maturity have been sold.

(h) The Issuer acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the winning bidder
will rely on (i) the agreement of each Underwriter to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in
an agreement among Underwriters and the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created
in connection with the initial sale of the Securities to the Public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member
of the selling group to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and
the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event that an Underwriter is a party to a retail distribution agreement that
was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Securities to the Public, the agreement of each broker-
dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in the retail
distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Issuer further acknowledges that each Underwriter shall
be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule and that no
Underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other Underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling
group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to comply with its corresponding
agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the Securities.

@) By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement among Underwriters, any
selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the
initial sale of the Securities to the Public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language
obligating each Underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a
party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the Public the
unsold Securities of each Maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder that either the 10% test
has been satisfied as to the Securities of that Maturity or all Securities of that Maturity have been sold to the
Public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as
directed by the winning bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (ii) any agreement among

Underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Securities to the Public, together with the related pricing wires,
August 17, 2022 :
August 17, 2022
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contains or will contain language obligating each Underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to
be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Securities to the Public to require each broker-'dealer that is
a party to such retail distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the Public the unsold
Securities of each Maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder or such Underwriter that either
the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Securities of that Maturity or all Securities of that Maturity have been
sold to the Public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so
long as directed by the winning bidder or such Underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

() Sales of any Securities to any person that is a related party to an Underwriter shall not constitute
sales to the Public for purposes of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Sale:

i “Public” means any person other than an Underwriter or a related party,

(ii) “Underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to
participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public and (B) any person that agrees
pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to
participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public (including a member of a selling
group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Securities
to the Public),

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Securities is a “related party” to an Underwriter if
the Underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common
ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common
ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including
direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of
the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of
the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv) “Sale Date” means the date that the Securities are awarded by the Issuer to
the winning bidder.

All actions to be taken by the County under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the Securities
may be taken on behalf of the County by the County’s financial advisor identified herein and any notice or report
to be provided to the County may be provided to the County’s financial advisor or Bond Counsel.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Bonds, but neither the failure
to print such number on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or refusal
by the winning bidder thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds. The County’s financial advisor will
request the CUSIPs and will provide CUSIP Global Services with the final details of the sale, including the
identity of the winning bidder.

The purchaser shall be obligated to furnish to the County, when and if requested prior to the dElivery of

the Bonds, such information requested by the County as shall be necessary to enable the County to determine the
"issue price" of the Bonds as defined in Section 1273 and 1274 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Code"). _
i A Preliminary Official Statement has been prepared and is available for viewing in electronic format on
www.i-dealprospectus.com and may also be obtained from the County's financial advisor identified in the last
paragraph of this Notice. The Preliminary Official Statement is deemed to be a final official statement, as of its
date, within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, but is subject to (a)
completion with certain pricing and other information to be made available by the successful bidder for the Bonds
and (b) amendment. The Preliminary Official Statement, as so revised, will constitute the final "Official
Statement”. By the submission of bids for the Bonds, the successful bidder contracts for the receipt, within seven
(7) business days of the award of the Bonds, of a reasonable number of copies of the final Official Statement at
the expense of the County, with any additional copies of the final Official Statement that the successful bidder
shall reasonably request to be provided at the sole cost and expense of the successful bidder. In order to complete
the final Official Statement, the successful bidder must furnish the following information to the County's financial
advisor and Bond Counsel by email or facsimile transmission or overnight delivery received by the County's
financial advisor and Bond Counsel within twenty-four (24) hours after the award of the Bonds: (a) initial offering
prices (expressed as a price, exclusive of accrued interest, or yield per maturity), and (b) any other material
information necessary for the final Official Statement but not known to the County (such as the bidder's purchase
of credit enhancement). In addition, the successful bidder must, if requested by the County, furnish a written
confirmation of its bid.

The County will undertake to provide certain continuing disclosure in accordance with Rule 15¢2-12 of
the Securities and Exchange Commission. A description of this undertaking is contained in the Preliminary
Official Statement under the heading “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE”.

The successful bidder will be furnished at the time the Bonds are delivered with: (1) the opinion of
GluckWalrath LLP, Freehold, New Jersey, in substantially the form set forth in the Preliminary Official
Statement; and (2) certificates in form satisfactory to said law firm evidencing the proper execution and delivery
of the Bonds and receipt of payment therefor and the fact that the Bonds will not be arbitrage bonds within the
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meaning of the Code; and (3) a certificate, dated as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, and signed by the officers
who signed the Bonds, stating that no litigation is then pending or to the knowledge of such officers threatened
to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or the levy or collection of taxes to pay the Bonds or
the interest thereon, or questioning the validity of the statutes or the proceedings under which the Bonds are
issued, and that neither the corporate existence or boundaries of the County nor the title of any of said officers to
their respective offices, is being contested; and (4) the County's Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially
in the form described in the Preliminary Official Statement.

The successful bidder is advised of the responsibility to file an annual disclosure statement on political
contributions with the New Jersey Election Law Enforcement Commission pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.13
(P.L. 2005, ¢.271, s.3) if the successful bidder receives contracts in excess of $50,000 from public entities in a
calendar year. It is the successful bidder’s responsibility to determine if filing is necessary. Additional
information on this requirement is available from ELEC at 888-313-3532 or at www.elec.state.nj.us.

Award of the Bonds to the successful bidder or rejection of all bids is expected to be made within two
(2) hours after announcement of the bids, but such successful bidder may not withdraw its proposal until after
5:30 p.m. of the day of such bid-opening and then only if such award has not been made prior to the withdrawal.

Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained from the County's financial advisor, PFM
Financial Advisors LLC, 1735 Market Street, 43rd Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19103, Telephone 215-567-6100,
Extension: 1484, Attention: Geoffrey Stewart.

DATED: August 22,2022 BY: /s/ Julie N. Tarrant
County Comptroller,
County of Ocean, New Jersey

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolytion#: 2022001164
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The following Exhibits are incorporated by reference in the Notice of Sale:
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EXHIBIT A

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
$__ GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022
CERTIFICATE OF THE PURCHASER
(NO REOFFERING PURCHASER)

The undersigned, on behalf of (the “Purchaser”), hereby certifies as set forth below with
respect to the purchase of the above-captioned obligations (the “Bonds”™).

1. Purchase of the Bonds. On the date of this certificate, the Purchaser is purchasing the Bonds
for the amount of . The Purchaser is not acting as an Underwriter with respect to the Bonds. The
Purchaser has no present intention to sell, reoffer, or otherwise dispose of the Bonds (or any portion of the Bonds
or any interest in the Bonds). The Purchaser has not contracted with any person pursuant to a written agreement
to have such person participate in the initial sale of the Bonds and the Purchaser has not agreed with the Issuer
pursuant to a written agreement to sell the Bonds to persons other than the Purchaser or a related party to the

Purchaser.
2. Defined Terms.
(a) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,

company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party. The term “related party” for purposes of
this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership,
directly or indirectly.

(b) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the Issuer (or
with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the
Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described
in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a
selling group or a party to aretail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this
certificate represents the Purchaser’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned
understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the
representations set forth in the Tax or Arbitrage Certificate and with respect to compliance with the federal income
tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by GluckWalrath LLP, Bond Counsel to the Issuer, in connection with rendering
its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the
preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it may give
to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Bonds.

[PURCHASER]

By:
Name:
Title:

Dated:

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
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EXHIBIT B

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
$ GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022
ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

(Competitive Sale Requirement Satisfied)

The undersigned (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and each member of the underwriting group
(if any) (collectively, the “Underwriter”) hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale of the above-
captioned obligations (the “Bonds™).

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.

(a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices and yields of the Bonds to
the Public by the Underwriter are the prices and yields listed in Schedule A (the “Expected Offering Prices”).
The Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Maturities of the Bonds used by Underwriter in formulating
its bid to purchase the Bonds. Attached as Schedule B is a true and correct copy of the bid provided by the
Underwriter to purchase the Bonds. :

(b) The Underwriter was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to submitting its bid.
(© The bid submitted by the Underwriter constituted a firm offer to purchase the Bonds.

[(d) The Underwriter has obtained a bond insurance policy from (“Insurer”) in respect of
the Bonds. Based on our experience with bonds similar to the Bonds (i) the bond insurance was an important
factor in marketing the Bonds and (ii) the absence of the insurance would have materially affected in an adverse
manner the interest rates at which the Bonds could have been sold. The insurance policy will be issued for a
_premium of $ , which is net of any credits or rating agency fees. No portion of the premium represents the
indirect payment of costs of issuance, including rating agency fees or the provision of additional services by
Insurer. The present value of the insurance is less than the present value of the interest reasonably expected to be
saved as a result of using the insurance to secure the Bonds, using as a discount rate the yield on the Bonds,
calculated with treating the premiums as interest.]

2. Defined Terms.
(a) Issuer means the County of Ocean, New Jersey.

b) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds with different maturity
dates, or Bonds with the same Maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate maturities.

(c) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,
company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party”
for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent
common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(d) Sale Date means the first day on which the Bonds are awarded by the Issuer to the winning
bidder. The Sale Date of the Bonds is , 2022,
(e) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the Issuer (or

with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the
Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described
in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a
selling group or a party to aretail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this
certificate represents the Underwriter’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned
understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the
representations set forth in the Issuer’s Tax or Arbitrage Certificate and with respect to compliance with the
federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by GluckWalrath LLP, bond counsel to the Issuer, in connection
with rendering its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that
it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Bonds.

[REPRESENTATIVE, on behalf of itself and each member

of the underwriting group]
By:
Name:
Title:
Dated:
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
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SCHEDULE A

EXPECTED OFFERING PRICES AND YIELDS

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resoldtion#: 2022001164
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EXHIBIT C

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
$ GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE
(Hold the Price for all or some maturities)

The undersigned (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and each member of the underwriting group
(if any) (collectively, the “Underwriter), hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance
of the above-captioned obligations (the “Bonds™). Select appropriate provisions below:

1. [Alternative 1' — All Maturities Use General Rule: Sale of the Bonds. As of the date of this certificate,
for éach Maturity of the Bonds, the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the Bonds was sold to the
Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A.] .

[Altemativé 22 _ Select Maturities Use General Rule: Sale of the General Rule Maturities. As of the
date of this certificate, for each Maturity of the General Rule Maturities, the first price at which at least 10% of
such Maturity of the Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A.

2. Initial Offering Price of the [Bonds][Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities].

(a) [Alternative 1° — All Maturities Use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: The Underwriter offered the
Bonds to the Public for purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the “Initial Offering
Prices™) on or before the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for the Bonds is
attached to this certificate as Schedule B.]

[Alternative 2% — Select Maturities Use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: The Underwriter offered the Hold-
the-Offering-Price Maturities to the Public for purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule
A (the “Initial Offering Prices”) on or before the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent
communication for the Bonds is attached to this certificate as Schedule C.]

(b) [Alternative 1 — All Maturities use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: As set forth in the Notice of Sale
and bid award, the Underwriter has agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Bonds, it would neither
offer nor sell any of the Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering
Price for such Maturity during the Holding Period for such Maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), and (ii)
any selling group agreement shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and
any retail distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the retail
distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant to such agreement, no
Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Maturity of the Bonds at a price that is higher than the
respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the Bonds during the Holding Period.]

[Alternative 2 - Select Maturities Use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: As set forth in the Notice of Sale
and bid award, the Underwriter has agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Maturities, it would neither offer nor sell any of the Bonds of such Matfirity to any person at a price that is higher
than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Holding Period for such Maturity (the “hold-the-
offering-price rule”), and (ii) any selling group agreement shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a
member of the selling group, and any retail distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-
dealer who is a party to the retail distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant
to such agreement, no Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-
Price Maturities at a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the Bonds
during the Holding Period.]

[(©) The Underwriter has obtained a bond insurance policy from (“Insurer”) in respect of
the Bonds. Based on our experience with bonds similar to the Bonds (i) the bond insurance was an important
factor in marketing the Bonds and (ii) the absence of the insurance would have materially affected in an adverse
manner the interest rates at which the Bonds could have been sold. The insurance policy will be issued for a
premium of $ , which is net of any credits or rating agency fees. No portion of the premium represents the
indirect payment of costs of issuance, including rating agency fees or the provision of additional services by
Insurer. The present value of the insurance is less than the present value of the interest reasonably expected to be
saved as a result of using the insurance to secure the Bonds, using as a discount rate the yield on the Bonds,
calculated with treating the premiums as interest.]

VIf Alternative 1 is used, delete the remainder of paragraph 1 and all of paragraph 2 and renumber paragraphs
accordingly.

2 If Alternative 2 is used, delete Alternative 1 of paragraph 1 and use each Alternative 2 in paragraphs 2(a) and
(b). '

3 If Alternative 1 is used, delete all of paragraph 1 and renumber paragraphs accordingly.

4 Alternative 2(a) of paragraph 2 should be used in conjunction with Alternative 2 in paragraphs 1 and 2(b)
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
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3. Defined Terms.
(a) General Rule Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds listed in Schedule A hereto as the

“General Rule Maturities.”

(b) Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds listed in Schedule B
hereto as the “Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities.”

(© Holding Period means, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity, the period starting
on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after the Sale Date D,
or (ii) the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity to the
Public at prices that are no higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity.

d Issuer means the County of Ocean, New Jersey.

(e) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds with different maturity
dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as separate maturities.

6 Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,
company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party”
for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent
common ownership, directly or indirectly.

€3] Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of a
Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is

(h) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the Issuer (or
with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the
Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described
in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a
selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.

Nothing in this certificate represents the Underwriter’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically
Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations
thereunder.

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect
to certain of the representations set forth in the Arbitrage and Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance with
the federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by GluckWalrath LLP, bond counsel, in connection with
rendering its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes,
the preparation of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice it may give to the
Issuer from time to time relating to the Bonds.

[REPRESENTATIVE, on behalf of itself and each member
of the underwriting group]

By:
Name:
Title:

Dated:

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

on#: 2022001164
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SCHEDULE A
SALE PRICES OF THE GENERAL RULE MATURITIES
(Attached)
Maturity Date Par Amount . Rate Issue Price

Total -
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
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SCHEDULE [B]
INITIAL OFFERING PRICES OF THE HOLD-THE-OFFERING-PRICE MATURITIES
(Attached)
Maturity Date Par Amount Rate Issue Price

Total -
Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
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SCHEDULE [B][C]

PRICING WIRE OR EQUIVALENT COMMUNICATION
(Attached)

Introduced oq: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001164
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Section 11. Term Bond Option. As provided in the Notice of Sale, a bidder may aggregate
consecutive principal maturities of the Bonds, for which such bidder bids the same interest rate, into term bonds.
Each such term bond will be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption as provided in Section 5(C) hereof,
in the amounts and on the dates that would have been consecutive serial maturities had no term bond designation
been made.

Section 12. Delegation of Power to Award and Sell Bonds. The County Comptroller is delegated
on behalf of the County the power to award and sell the Bonds to the successful bidder. The County Comptroller
shall report the results of such sale in writing at the next meeting of the Board of Commissioners.

Section 13. Adjustment to Maturity Schedule. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated the
authority (if the County Comptroller deems it to be in the best interests of the County), up to 24 hours prior to the
date of advertised sale and within 4 hours after the award of the Bonds, to adjust the maturity schedule of the
Bonds in increments of $1,000, provided however, that after the award of the Bonds (i) no maturity schedule
adjustment shall exceed 10% upward or downward of the principal for any maturity as specified herein (or as
adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the maturity schedule shall not
exceed 10% upward or downward of the aggregate principal amount of bonds as specified herein (or as adjusted
prior to the date of advertised sale) and as adjusted will not exceed the amount of the Ordinances. NOTICE OF
ANY ADJUSTMENT TO THE MATURITY SCHEDULE OF THE BONDS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE
ADVERTISED SALE SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING A NOTICE THEREOF TO BE PUBLISHED ON
TM3 NEWS SERVICE. The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder shall be adjusted to reflect any
adjustments in the aggregate principal amount of bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect changes
in the dollar amount of the underwriter’s discount and the original issue premium or discount, but will not change
the per bond underwriter’s discount as calculated frorm the bid and the Initial Public Offering Prices required to
be delivered to the County. Notice of any such adjustment shall be given to the successful bidder in the manner
specified in the Notice of Sale. In the event of any such adjustment, the dollar amount (but not the interest rate
or rates) bid by the successful bidder will be adjusted as provided in the Notice of Sale.

Section 14. Postponement of Sale. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated the authority (if
the County Comptroller deems it to be in the best interests of the County) (i) to postpone from time to time the
sale of the Bonds from the date specified in the Notice of Sale (or, in the case of a rescheduled sale, from such
rescheduled date), in each case upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, and (ii) to res¢hedule such sale upon not less
than 48 hours’ notice. Notice of any such postponement and rescheduling shall be given in the manner specified
in the Notice of Sale. In the event of any such postponement and rescheduling, the County Comptroller may (and
shall, if required by the Local Bond Law) cause a revised Notice of Sale and/or a revised summary thereof to be
prepared and published.

Section 15, Agreements with The Depository Trust Company. The Comptroller is hereby
authorized to make representations and warranties, to enter into agreements and to make all arrangements with
DTC, as may be necessary in order to provide that this issue of the County's bonds will be eligible for deposit
with DTC, and to satisfy any obligations undertaken in connection therewith.

Section 16. Authorization for Official Statement. The Comptroller, Chief Financial Officer, Clerk
of the Board of Commissioners, auditor, bond counsel and other officers, agents and employees of the County are
authorized to prepare and distribute information with respect to the County in connection with the sale of the
bonds in such form as may be approved by the Comptroller. The preparation and distribution of a Preliminary
Official Statement pertaining to the bonds is hereby authorized. The Comptroller is hereby authorized to deem
final the Preliminary Official Statement for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Director of the Board of Commissioners, the County Administrator, the Chief Financial Officer
and the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners are hereby authorized and directed to execute a final official
statement relating to the bonds, with such changes, revisions, insertions and omissions from the Preliminary
Official Statement as may be approved by the Comptroller.

Section 17. Pledge of County. The full faith and credit of the County of Ocean in the State of New
Jersey is hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on said bonds and said bonds shall be
general obligations of the County payable as to principal and interest from ad valorem taxes which may be
assessed on the taxable property within said County without limitation as to rate or amount.

Section 18. Determination of Average Period of Usefulness. It is hereby determined and stated
that the average period of usefulness of the several purposes for which the Bonds are to be issued under the
Ordinances described in Section 1 above, according to their respective lives, as determined in said Ordinances,
taking into consideration the respective amounts of bonds to be issued for said several purposes, is a period of
22.69 years, computed from the date of said Bonds.

Section 19. Investment of Proceeds of Bonds. The County will make no use of the proceeds of
the Bonds which would cause the bonds to be arbitrage bonds; and the County hereby imposes on itself and all
officers having custody or control of the proceeds of the bonds, throughout the term of the bonds, the obligation
to comply with applicable requirements of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
"Code") and Regulations Sections 1.148-0 through 1.148-11 and 1.150-1 and 1.150-2, and all other applicable
regulations of the Internal Revenue Service, so that the Bonds will not be or become arbitrage bonds.

Section 20. Tax Covenants. In order to maintain the exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds, and for no other purpose, the County covenants to comply with

each applicable requirement of the Code, applicable to the bonds,, and the County covenants not to take any action
Introduced on August 17, 2022
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or fail to take any action which would cause the interest on the bonds to lose the exclusion from gross income for
federal income taxation purposes under Section 103 of the Code. In furtherance of the covenant contained in the
preceding sentence, the County agrees to comply with the Arbitrage Certificate and Letter of Instructions (the
"Letter of Instructions") as to the Code delivered by Bond Counsel on the date of initial issuance and delivery of
the Bonds, as such letter may be amended from time to time, as a source of guidance for achieving compliance
with the Code.

The County covenants and agrees with the holders of the Bonds that the County shall not take any action
or omit to take any action, which action or omission, if reasonably expected on the date of initial issuance and
delivery of the bonds, would cause the bonds to be "private activity bonds" or "arbitrage bonds" within the
meaning of Sections 141(a) and 148, respectively, of the Code, or any successor provision.

Section 21. Bonds Not Federally Guaranteed. The County covenants that it will take no action
which would cause the Bonds to be federally guaranteed (within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code).

Section 22. Continuing Disclosure. A Continuing Disclosure Certificate in substantially the
following form is hereby approved, and the County Comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to execute and
deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate on behalf of the County in substantially such form, with such
insertions and changes therein as the County Comptroller may approve, such approval to be evidenced by his/her
execution thereof:

(Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Bonds)
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate™) is executed and delivered by the
County of Ocean, New Jersey (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance by the Issuer of $
principal amount of its General Improvement Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued
pursuant to Bond Ordinances (the "Ordinances") duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer (the
“Board”) on various dates, and a resolution duly adopted by the Board on August 17, 2022 (the "Resolution™),
The Bonds are dated September _, 2022 and shall mature on September 1 in the years 2023 through 2041,
inclusive. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed
and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order
to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may
be amended from time to time ("Exchange Act").

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply to
any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as described in,
Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through
nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax
purposes.

"Bondholder" shall mean any person who is the registered owner of any Bond, including holders of
beneficial interests in the Bonds.

"Continuing Disclosure Information" shall mean: (i) the Annual Report; (ii) any notice required to be
filed with the Repositories pursuant to Section 5 hereof; and (iii) any notice of an event required to be filed with
the Repositories pursuant to Section 3(c) hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in
writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such designation.

"EMMA" shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access System ("EMMA"), an internet based
filing system created and maintained by the MSRB in accordance with the SEC Release, pursuant to which issuers
of tax-exempt bonds, including the Bonds, and other filers on behalf of the such issuers shall upload Continuing
Disclosure Information to assist underwriters in complying with the Rule and to provide the general public with
access to such Continuing Disclosure Information.

"Financial Obligation" means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection
with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee
of (i) or (ii). The term "Financial Obligation" shall not include municipal securities as to which a final officijal
statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.
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"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Bonds Rulemaking Board established pursuant to Section 15B(b)(1)
of the Exchange Act.

"National Repository” shall mean the MSRB, through the internet facilities of EMMA, or any other
public or private repository or entity that shall hereafter be designated by the SEC as a repository for purposes of
the Rule.

"Official Statement" shall mean the Official Statement of the County, dated September _ , 2022, relating
to the Bonds.

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to comply
with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

"Repository” or "Repositories” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository, if any.

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the SEC under the Exchange Act, as the same may be
amended from time to time.

"SEC Release" shall mean Release No. 34-59062, of the SEC, dated December 5, 2008.
"State" shall mean the State of New Jersey.
"State Repository" shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as a state

repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the SEC. As of the date of this Disclosure
Certificate, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.
(a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than nine (9)

months after the end of its fiscal year, commencing with the report for the fiscal year ending December
31, 2022, provide to the MSRB in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, an Annual Report
which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report
may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-
reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the
audited financial statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual
Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available
by that date. If the Issuer's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change to MSRB. Any and
all items that must be included in the Annual Report may be incorporated by reference from other
information that is available to the public on the MSRB's Internet Web site, or that has been filed with
the SEC.

®) Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date specified in subsection (a)
for making available or providing the Annual Report, the Issuer shall provide the Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent (if other than the Issuer). Ifthe Issuer is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual
Report by the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall, in a timely manner, send a notice to the
MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A, in an electronic format as prescribed by the
MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by identifying information as
prescribed by the MSRB.

() The Dissemination Agent shall file a report with the Issuer certifying that the Annual
Report has been provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was
provided.

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or include by
reference the following:

1. The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal year, prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards (GAAS) as from time to time in
effect, and as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services in the Department of
Community Affairs of the State pursuant to Chapter 5 of Title 40A of the New Jersey Statutes.
If the Issuer's audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is
required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial
statements and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual
Report when they become available.

2. The financial information and operating data set forth in the Official Statement
(including Appendix A thereto) dated , 2022 prepared in connection with the
sale of the Bonds, under the captions: “Schedule of Bond and Note Maturities”, “Tax
Information”, “Ocean County Leading Tax Ratables - 2022”, “County of Ocean Statement of
Statutory Debt Condition as of June 15, 2022", “List of Authorized Debt as of June 15, 2022"
and “Debt Ratios”.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
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Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.
(@ Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be given,

notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

L. principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reﬂecting financial difficulties;

4. unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final

determinations of taxability. Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or
other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security,
or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

7. modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material;

8. Bond Calls, if material and tender offers;

9. defeasances;

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;
11. rating changes.

12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar events of the Issuer, which shall be

considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver,
fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or
business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing
governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision
and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a
plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or
business of the Issuer;

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer or
the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action
or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material;

14. appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if
material;
15. incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to

covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect Bondholders, if material; and

16. default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which
reflect financial difficulties.

(b) Whenever the Issuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described
in subsection (a) for which a disclosure obligation is dependent upon materiality, the Issuer shall as soon as
possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws.

(©) If disclosure of a Listed Event is required, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in
excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB in
an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by
identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this Disclosure
Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If
such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice of such termination
in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge
Introduced on:| | aNX§Ya8IPissepination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination
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Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the Issuer pursuant
to this Disclosure Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Issuer.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may
be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it may
only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect
to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted,;

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion
of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of
the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the
Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

() The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond
counsel, materially impair the interests of the Bondholders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of
the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting
principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the Issuer. In
addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements,
(i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the
Anmual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative form and also,
if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting
principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this
Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any notice of
occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer
chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this
Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence
of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate any Bondholder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be
necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the
Issuer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure Certificate
shall not be deemed an Event of Default on the Bonds, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in
the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel
performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent
shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the Issuer agrees to
indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any
loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and
duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) of defending against
any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or wilful
misconduct. The obligations of the Issuer under this Section 11 shall survive resignation or removal of the
Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer,
the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners from time
to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Dated: , 2022

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY

By:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
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EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: County of Ocean, New Jersey

Name of Bond Issue: $ General Improvement Bonds, Series 2022

Date of Issuance: , 2022

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named
Bonds as required by Section 3(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated ,2022. The Issuer
anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by 520

Dated: ,20

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY

By:
Name:
Title:

Section 23. Defeasance. (A) If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid or if there shall be paid
otherwise to the owner of all bonds the principal and the redemption premium, if applicable, and the interest due
or to become due thereon at the times and in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, then, at the
option of the County, the pledge of the County contained herein and all covenants, agreements and other
obligations of the County to the owners of the bonds thereupon shall cease, shall terminate, shall become void
and shall be discharged and satisfied. In such event and upon the request of the County, any paying agent shall
pay over or shall deliver to the County all moneys, funds or securities held by them pursuant to this Resolution
that are not required for the payment of the principal of or premium and interest due or to become due on the
bonds. If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid or if there shall be paid otherwise to the owners of all
outstanding bonds of a particular maturity the principal of and the redemption premium, if any, and interest due
or to become due thereon, at the time and in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, such bonds shall -
cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under this Resolution, and all covenants, agreements and
obligations of the County to the owners of such bonds shall thereupon cease, shall terminate and shall become
void and be discharged and satisfied.

(B) Bonds or interest installments for the payment or the redemption of which moneys shall have
been deposited with any bank, trust company or national banking association serving as escrow agent (the
"Escrow Agent") by or on behalf of the County whether at or prior to the maturity or the redemption date of such
bonds, shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in subsection (A) of
this Section. All outstanding bonds or any maturity of the bonds shall be deemed to have been paid within the
meaning and with the effect expressed in subsection (A) of this Section if (1) in case any of such bonds are to be
redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the County shall have given to the Escrow Agent irrevocable
instruction to publish notice of redemption of such bonds on such date, (2) there shall have been deposited with
the Escrow Agent either moneys in an amount that shall be sufficient or direct obligations of the United States of
America or securities unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely payment by the United States of America not
redeemable at the option of the issuer the principal of and the interest on which when due will provide moneys
which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with the Escrow Agent at the same time, shall be sufficient, to
pay when due the principal and any redemption premium and the interest due and to become due on such bonds
on and prior to the redemption date or the maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (3) in the event such
bonds are not by their terms subject to redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the County shall
have given the Escrow Agent in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to publish, as soon as practicable,
at least twice, at an interval of not less than seven (7) days between publications, in a publication devoted primarily
to financial news or the subject of state and municipal bonds and published in the City of New York or in New
Jersey a notice to the owners of such bonds that the deposit required by clause (2) above has been made with the
Escrow Agent and that such bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Section and stating such
maturity or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for payment of the principal of and the
redemption premium, if any, on such bonds. For so long as the book-entry only form remains in effect and the
bonds are registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, the County shall comply with such additional or
supplemental requirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any advance refunding of the bonds
whether such additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations by and
between the County and DTC or otherwise.

Section 24. Prior Actions. Any and all actions taken prior to the date hereof are hereby ratified,
approved and confirmed.

Section 25. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption hereof.
The foregoing resolution was adopted by the following vote:

AYES:

August 17, 2022 NAYES:

August 17, 2022
06928885 $8f94-63-1077)
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CERTIFICATE

1, Michelle 1. Gunther, Clerk of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean, in the State of New
Jersey, HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing annexed extract from the minutes of a meeting of the governing
body of the County duly called and held on August 17, 2022 has been compared by me with the original minutes
as officially recorded in my office in the Minute Book of the governing body and is a true, complete and correct
copy thereof and of the whole of the original minutes so far as they relate to the subject matters referred to in the
extract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of the County
this day of August, 2022.

Michelle I. Gunther
Clerk of the Board of Commissioners
[SEAL]

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

bn#: 2022001164
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of the County of Ocean’s College Capital Improvement Bonds,
Series 2022 authorized by a Bond Ordinance heretofore adopted to finance the Fiscal Year 2022 Capital
Renewal and Replacement Facilities Project at Ocean County College in the County of Ocean, and providing
for the form, maturity dates and other details of said bonds and designating a Paying Agent for said bonds.

Official Resolution# [2022001165
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-17

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY tzﬁ W 8 [ | %‘;
COMMISSIONER ﬁ % g % z § %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michone \. Guetoor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced ow:

Adopted on:
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RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE
COUNTY OF OCEAN'S COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS,
SERIES 2022 AUTHORIZED BY A BOND ORDINANCE HERETOFORE
ADOPTED TO FINANCE THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 CAPITAL RENEWAL
AND REPLACEMENT FACILITIES PROJECT AT OCEAN COUNTY
COLLEGE IN THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, AND PROVIDING FOR THE
FORM, MATURITY DATES AND OTHER DETAILS OF SAID BONDS AND
DESIGNATING A PAYING AGENT FOR SAID BONDS.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean, in the State of New Jersey (the
"County"), has, on June 1, 2022, finally adopted Bond.Ordinance No. 2022-17 (the "Ordinance") authorizing
bonds and bond anticipation notes to finance a portion of the cost of the capital renewal and replacement facilities
improvement projects at Ocean County College (the "College") in said County; and

WHEREAS, the Board of School Estimate of the College has heretofore determined by resolution
adopted April 14, 2021, that certain amounts of money are necessary for certain capital projects at the College,
and the Board of Commissioners of the County has heretofore determined, by the Ordinance, to appropriate and
borrow such amounts by the issuance of bonds or notes of the County pursuant to the Local Bond Law and the
hereinafter-defined County College Bond Act; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable and necessary to issue the County's college capital improvement bonds
pursuant to the Ordinance, in an aggregate principal amount of $2,745,000, unless adjusted pursuant to Section
12 hereof, and it is deemed advisable and in the best interests of the County to provide for the sale, form, maturity
date and other matters in connection with the bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Authority for Resolution. Pursuant to the Local Bond Law of the State of New Jersey,
constituting Chapter 2 of Title 40A of the New Jersey Statutes (the "Act"), the Board of Commissioners has
previously adopted the Ordinance, which Ordinance authorized the issuance of bonds in the amount of
$5,498,000, and the Board of Commissioners has determined to issue at this time, pursuant to said Ordinance and
Chapter 12 of the Laws of New Jersey of 1971, effective January 28, 1971, and the acts amendatory thereof and
supplemental thereto (the "County College Bond Act"), bonds in the amount of $2,745,000, unless adjusted
pursuant to Section 12 hereof. To the extent any premium is received by the County from the sale of the bonds,
such premium shall be allocated to the appropriation under said Ordinance.

Section 2. Authorization of Bonds. In accordance with the Act and the County College Bond
Act, and for the purpose of raising funds to finance the purposes set forth in the Ordinance, there shall be issued
bonds of the County in the aggregate principal amount of $2,745,000, unless adjusted pursuant to Section 12
hereof, pursuant to the Ordinance. All of said bonds shall constitute a single issue and shall be designated
"College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022" (the "College Bonds"). The period of usefulness of the
improvements financed by the proceeds of the Bonds is 40 years.

Section 3. Details of Bonds. The College Bonds will be issued in the form of one certificate for
the aggregate principal amount of College Bonds maturing in each year and will be payable as to both principal
and interest in lawful money of the United States of America. Each certificate will be registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), which will act as securities depository. The
certificates will be on deposit with DTC. DTC will be responsible for maintaining a book entry system for
recording the interests among its participants. The participants will be responsible for maintaining records
regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the bonds on behalf of individual purchasers. Individual purchases
may be made in the principal amount of $1,000 or more through book entries made on the books and records of
The DTC and its participants. The College Bonds will bear interest payable semiannually at a rate or rates per
annum, expressed in a multiple of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%, as proposed by the successful bidder in accordance with the
Notice of Sale authorized herein. The College Bonds shall be substantially in the form as provided in this
Resolution, with such omissions, insertions and variations as are properly required. Said College Bonds shall be
dated the date of delivery, shall bear interest at the rate or rates specified by the successful bidder therefor in
accordance with the Notice of Sale hereinafter provided for, said interest to be payable on March 1 and September
1, commencing on March 1, 2023, and shall mature (unless adjusted by the County Comptroller pursuant to
Section 12 hereof) on September 1 in the following years and amounts:

Year Principal Amount
2023 $550,000
2024 550,000
2025 550,000
2026 550,000
2027 545,000
Section 4. Certificated Bonds: Successor Securities Depository. In the event the County

determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the College Bonds (the actual purchasers of
the College Bonds) that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may notify DTC of the availability
of bond certificates. In such event, the County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue, transfer and
exchange bond certificates as required by DTC and others in appropriate amounts. DTC may determine to
discontinue providing its services with respect to the bonds at any time by giving a reasonable amount of notice
in wenitingt 10, 2b22 County and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto. In the event of such
detefdniatibh 22%he County fails to identify another qualified securities depository as successor to DTC, the
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County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue and deliver replacement bonds in the form of ful!y
registered certificates. Whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the County will cooperate with DTC in
taking appropriate action (a) to make available one or more separate certificates evidencing the bonds to any
participant of DTC having bonds credited to its DTC account or (b) to arrange for another securities depository
to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the bonds.

Section 5. Redemption. The College Bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to maturity.
Section 6. Payment of College Bonds. The principal of and the interest on the College Bonds

will be paid by TD Bank, National Association, Cherry Hill, New Jersey, as the County's paying agent (the
"Paying Agent"), to DTC by or on behalf of the County on their respective due dates. Interest on the College
Bonds will be credited to the participants of DTC as listed on the records of DTC as of each next preceding
February 15 and August 15 (the "Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the College Bonds).

Section 7. Execution of Bonds. Said College Bonds shall be executed in the name of the County
by the manual or facsimile signatures of the Commissioner-Director and the Chief Financial Officer and the seal
of the Board of Commissioners shall be affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced thereon and attested by the
manual signature of the Clerk or a Deputy Clerk of the Board of Commissioners. If any officer whose signature
appears on the College Bonds ceases to hold office before the delivery of the Bonds, his/her signature shall
nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes. In addition, any College Bond may bear the signature of, or
may be signed by, such persons as at the actual time of the signing of such bond shall be the proper officers to
sign such College Bond although at the date of such bond such persons may not have been such officers.

Section 8. Reissuance of Mutifated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any College Bond
shall become mutilated or destroyed, stolen or lost the County shall execute and deliver a new bond of like tenor
and amount as the bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated
bond and upon surrender of such mutilated bond, or in lieu of and substitution for the bond destroyed, stolen or
lost upon filing with the County evidence satisfactory to the County that such bond has been destroyed, stolen or
lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the County with indemnity satisfactory to it and
complying with such other reasonable regulations as the County may prescribe, and paying such expenses as the
County may incur in connection therewith.

Section 9. Form of College Bonds. Subject to the provisions of this Resolution, each College
Bond shall be in substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements and variations
as may be required by the circumstances and be required or permitted by this Resolution or as may be consistent
with this Resolution and necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and requirements of any governmental
authority or any usage or requirement of law with respect thereto:

(Form of College Bond)
No. 8

United States of America

State of New Jersey
COUNTY OF OCEAN
College Capital Improvement Bond, Series 2022

Maturity Date . Interest Rate Dated Date CUSIP
September 1, % September __, 2022
Registered Owner: CEDE & CO.
Principal Sum: DOLLARS

The COUNTY OF OCEAN (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), a political subdivision of the State
of New Jersey, for value received, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner named above, or registered
assigns, the Principal Sum stated above on the Maturity Date specified above, and to pay interest on such Principal
Sum from the Dated Date specified above at the Interest Rate per annum specified above, computed upon the
basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve 30 day months and payable on March 1, 2023, and semi-annually
thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until the County's obligation with respect to the
payment of such Principal Sum shall be discharged, but only in the case of interest due at or before maturity of
this bond. The principal of and the interest on this bond will be paid to Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository
Trust Company. Interest on this bond will be credited to the participants of The Depository Trust Company listed
on the records of The Depository Trust Company as of each next preceding February 15 and August-15 (the
"Record Dates" for the payment of interest on the bonds).

This bond is not transferable as to principal or interest except to an authorized nominee of The Depository
Trust Company. The Depository Trust Company shall be responsible for maintaining the book entry system for
recording the interests of its participants or the transfers of the interests among its participants. The participants
are responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial ownership interests in the bonds on behalf of
individual purchasers.

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the County of like date and tenor, except as to
number, denomination, interest rate, CUSIP number and maturity date, issued in the aggregate principal amount

Introduced OT of nggder and pursuant to the Local Bond Law of the State of New Jersey and the County College
o3, o

Adopted on: Bo nafter defined) and by virtue of a resolution adopted by the County's governing body on August
Official Resol *ion#: 2022001165 .
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17, 2022 (the "Resolution"), and by virtue of the bond ordinance referred to therein in all respects duly approved
and published as required by law.

The bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The full faith and credit of the County are hereby pledged for the punctual payment of the principal of
and interest on this bond according to its terms. This bond shall also be entitled to the benefits of Chapter 12 of
the Laws of New Jersey of 1971, and the acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto (the “County College
Bond Act”).

In the event the County determines that it is in the best interests of the beneficial owners of the bonds
(the actual purchasers of the bonds) that they be able to obtain certificated bonds, the County may notify The
Dep051tory Trust Company (“DTC") of the availability of bond certificates. In such event, the County will appoint
a paying agent and the County will issue, transfer and exchange bond certificates as required by DTC and others
in appropriate amounts. DTC may determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the bonds at
any time by giving a reasonable amount of notice in writing to the County and discharging its responsibilities
with respect thereto. In the event of such determination, if the County fails to identify another qualified securities
depository as successor to DTC, the County will appoint a paying agent and the County will issue and deliver
replacement bonds in the form of fully registered certificates. Whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the
County will cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action (a) to make available one or more separate
certificates evidencing the bonds to any participant of DTC having bonds credited to its DTC account or (b) to
arrange for another securities depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the bonds.

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by the Constitution and
statutes of the State of New Jersey to exist, to have happened or to have been performed precedent to or in the
issuance of this bond, exist, have happened and have been performed and that the amount and terms of this bond
do not exceed any limitation imposed thereon by said Constitution or statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COUNTY OF OCEAN, has caused this bond to be signed by the manual
or facsimile signature of its Commissioner-Director and its Chief Financial Officer, the corporate seal of the
Board of Commissioners to be hereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or reproduced hereon and to be attested by
the manual signature of the Clerk or Deputy Clerk of the Board of Commissioners, all as of the ___ day of
September, 2022.

ATTEST:
(SEAL) Commissioner - Director

Chief Financial Officer

(Deputy) Clerk of the Board of Commissioners

Section 10. Sale of College Bonds. Proposals for the College Bonds will be received by the
County on September 8, 2022 until 11:15 a.m., New Jersey time, or at such later date and time as may be
established in accordance with Section 13 hereof, by Julie N. Tarrant, the County's Comptroller through the
“PARITY Electronic Bid System” (PARITY) in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Notice
of Sale authorized herein. Such proposals shall be received and announced at the County Administration
Building, Room 304 Conference Room, Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey, in accordance
with the Notice of Sale. The Clerk of the Board of Commissioners is hereby directed to arrange for the publication
of the Notice of Sale in The Asbury Park Press, a newspaper published and circulating in the County, and for the
. publication of the Notice of Sale (or summaries thereof as provided by law) in The Bond Buyer, and/or such other
nationally recognized local government bond marketing publication or electronic information service carrying
municipal bond notices and devoted primarily to the subject of state and municipal bonds The notice shall be in
substantially the following form:

(Form of Notice of Sale)
NOTICE OF SALE
$2,745,000*
COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022
(BOOK-ENTRY ONLY ISSUE) (NON-CALLABLE)

ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS will be received and announced by Julie N. Tarrant, Comptroller of the
County of Ocean (the "County"” or the "Issuer"), at the County Administration Building Room 304 Conference
Room, Third Floor, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey, through the PARITY Electronic Bid System
("PARITY") of IPREO LLC, as described herein. The College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022 (the
"College Bonds" or the "Securities") shall mature (unless adjusted by the County Comptroller as described herein)
on September 1 in the following years and amounts:

Adopted on: August 17 2022

Official Resollition#: 202200
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$2,745,000* College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022 maturing on September 1 in the
principal amounts set forth below:

Year Principal Amount*
2023 $550,000
2024 550,000
2025 550,000
2026 550,000
2027 © 545,000

*subject to adjustment

THE COUNTY IS ALSO SELLING ITS $47,970,000* GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES
2022 (THE "GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS"). THE COUNTY HAS ISSUED A SEPARATE
NOTICE OF SALE FOR THE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS. THE TERMS OF EACHNOTICE
OF SALE WILL APPLY TO EACH SERIES OF BONDS, RESPECTIVELY.

All Bids (as defined below) must be submitted in their entirety through PARITY until 11:15 a.m.,
New Jersey time on September 8, 2022 (see “Bidding Details”). To bid, Bidders (as defined below) must
submit either (i) a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check or (ii) complete a wire transfer, in either case in
the amount of $54,900 (the check or wire transfer being hereinafter referred to as the “Deposit”), to secure
the County from any loss resulting from a failure of the bidder to comply with the terms of its bid. The
Deposit must be submitted to the County prior to the time for submission of biQs, and if in the form of a
certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check, at the following address:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

If a wire transfer is used for the Deposit, it must be sent according to the following wire instructions and
if the bid is not accepted, the County shall promptly return the Deposit amount to the unsuccessful bidder. EACH
BIDDER MUST PROVIDE THEIR RETURN WIRE INSTRUCTIONS:

TD Bank, N.A., Toms River, NJ
ABA#: 031201360
Credit To: County of Ocean
Bill Committee Clearing
Acct# 6855093280

The use of PARITY shall be at the Bidder’s risk and expense, and the County shall have no liability with
respect thereto.

If a check is used, it must be a certified, treasurer’s or cashier’s check payable to the County and such
check (together with a name and return address) should be sent to Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller, County
Administration Building, Department of Finance, 101 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, New Jersey 08754. Checks
of unsuccessful bidders will be returned upon the award of the College Bonds. Any bidder that does not have a
representative present at the bid announcement is requested to include with its good faith deposit overnight
packaging or other return envelope for the return of its Deposit (if not the successful bidder). In the absence of
other arrangements, the check of any unsuccessful bidder will be returned by certified first class mail to such
name and return address as specified by such bidder when such Deposit was provided. By submitting a proposal
for the College Bonds, each bidder shall be deemed to have accepted any and all risks of loss associated with the
return of its Deposit. Upon return of its Deposit, each such unsuccessful bidder shall acknowledge same by
signing and returning a receipt to such effect provided by the County. If a wire transfer is used, such transfer
must be completed and confirmed received by the County prior to the opening of the bids.

The Deposit of the winning bidder will be applied to the purchase price of the College Bonds. In the
event the winning bidder fails to comply with the terms of its accepted bid, the Deposit will be retained by the
County as liquidated damages. The winning bidder shall not be entitled to any interest earnings in respect of the
County.

The College Bonds are to be issued in book-entry only form and all bidders for the College Bonds must
be participants of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or affiliated with its participants. The
College Bonds will be issued in the form of one certificate for the aggregate principal amount of the College
Bonds maturing in each year and will be payable as to both principal and interest in lawful money of the United
States of America. Each certificate will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee of The Depository
Trust Company (collectively, "DTC"). The certificates will be on deposit with DTC. DTC will be responsible
for maintaining a book entry system for recording the interests of its participants or the transfer of the interests
among its participants. The participants will be responsible for maintaining records regarding the beneficial
ownership interests in the College Bonds on behalf of the individual purchasers. Individual purchases may be
made in the principal amount of $1,000 or more through book entries made on the books and records of DTC and
its participants.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

ition#: 2022001165
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The College Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest at the rate or rates of interest
per annum specified by the successful bidder therefor in accordance herewith, payable on March 1, 2023, and
semiannually thereafter on the first days of September and March in each year until maturity by payment to DTC.

The College Bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to maturity.

For so long as the book-entry form remains in effect and the College Bonds are registered in the name
of DTC, the County will not be responsible for mailing of notices of redemption to anyone other than DTC.

The College Bonds are general obligations of the County and unless paid from other sources the County
is authorized and required by law to levy ad valorem taxes upon all real property taxable by the County for the
payment of the College Bonds and the interest thereon without limitation as to rate or amount. The College Bonds
shall also be entitled to the benefits of Chapter 12 of the Laws of New Jersey of 1971, and the acts amendatory
thereof and supplemental thereto (the "County College Bond Act").

Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by the College
Bonds and the rate or rates named must be multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one per centum, The
proposed rate or rates of interest to be borne by the College Bonds shall not exceed five percent (5.00%), 0% not
permitted. Not more than one rate may be named for the College Bonds of the same maturity. There is no
limitation on the number of rates that may be named. The difference between the lowest and the highest rates
named in the proposal shall not exceed three per centum (3%). Each proposal submitted must be for all of the
College Bonds and the purchase price specified in the proposal must equal or exceed $2,772,450 (101%),
with a maximum bid price of $2,964,600 (108%). The College Bonds will be awarded to the bidder on
whose bids for the College Bonds may be made at the lowest true interest cost. Such true interest cost shall
be computed by determining the interest rate, compounded semi-annually, necessary to discount the debt service
payments to the date of the College Bonds and to the price bid, excluding interest accrued to the delivery date.
No proposal shall be considered that offers to pay an amount less than the principal amount of the College Bonds
offered for sale or under which the total loan is made at an interest cost higher than the lowest true interest cost
to the County under any legally acceptable proposal, and if two or more such bidders offer to pay the lowest true
interest cost, then the College Bonds will be sold to one of such bidders selected by lot from among all such
bidders. The purchaser must also pay an amount equal to the interest (if any) on the College Bonds accrued to
the date of payment of the purchase price. The right is reserved to reject all bids and to reject any bid not
complying with this Notice.

It is requested that each proposal be accompanied by a computation of the true interest cost to the County
under the terms of the proposal in accordance with the method of calculation described in the preceding paragraph
(computed to six decimal places), but such computation is not to be considered as part of the proposal for College
Bonds.

The County reserves the right to postpone, upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, the date and time
established for receipt of Bids. ANY SUCH POSTPONEMENT WILL BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS
SERVICES, BEFORE 4:00 P.M. ON THE DAY BEFORE THE SALE. If any date fixed for the receipt of
Bids and the sale of the College Bonds is postponed, an alternative sale date will be announced through TM3
New Services at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to such alternative sale date. On any such alternative sale date,
any Bidder may submit a Bid for the purchase of the College Bonds in conformity in all respects with the
provisions of the Notice of Sale, except for the date of sale and except for the changes announced on
www.tm3.com at the time the sale date and time are announced.

Within 30 minutes of the award of the College Bonds, the County must receive from the successful
bidder an email or telecopy (an “Initial Public Offering Price Telecopy”) stating the prices at which such
successful bidder intends that each stated maturity of the College Bonds shall initially be offered to the public,
which for this purpose excludes bond houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or

_.wholesalers (the “Initial Public Offering Prices”). The successful bidder shall make a bona fide initial public
offering of the College Bonds at the Initial Public Offering Prices stated in their Initial Public Offering Price
Telecopy. '

The County Comptroller of the County may, up to 24 hours prior to the date of advertised sale of and
within 4 hours after the award of the College Bonds, adjust the maturity schedule of the College Bonds in
increments of $1,000, provided however, that after the award of the College Bonds (i) no maturity schedule
adjustment shall exceed 10% upward or downward of the principal for any maturity as specified herein (or as
adjusted prior to the date of advertised sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the maturity schedule shall not
exceed 10% upward or downward of the aggregate principal amount of bonds as specified herein (or as adjusted
prior to the date of advertised sale) and as adjusted will not exceed the amount authorized by the Ordinance.
NOTICE OF ANY ADJUSTMENT TO THE MATURITY SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE BONDS PRIOR
TO THE DATE OF THE ADVERTISED SALE SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING A NOTICE THEREOF TO
BE PUBLISHED ON TM3 NEWS SERVICES. The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder shall be adjusted
to reflect any adjustments in the aggregate principal amount of College Bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid
price will reflect changes in the dollar amount of the underwriter’s discount and the original issue premium or
discount, but will not change the per bond underwriter’s discount as calculated from the bid and the Initial Public
Offering Prices required to be delivered to the County as stated herein. The County shall notify the successful
bidder of the final maturity schedule and the resulting adjusted purchase price no later than 5:00 p.m., New Jersey
time, on the day of the sale and award of the College Bonds. The interest rate or rates specified by the successful
bidder for each maturity will not be altered. The successful bidder may not withdraw its bid as a result of any
such adjustment, and shall be bound by the terms thereof.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: k August 17, 2022
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It is expected that the College Bonds will be delivered to the successful bidder on or about September
22, 2022 at the Freehold, New Jersey offices of GluckWalrath LLP or at such other time or place mutually agreed
upon by the purchaser and the County. AT THE TIME OF DELIVERY OF THE COLLEGE BONDS, THE
SUCCESSFUL BIDDER SHALL PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT FOR THE COLLEGE BONDS
THROUGH THE USE OF IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE FUNDS. No interest will be paid upon the
deposit made by the successful bidder.

Each electronic proposal must be submitted through PARITY. No bidder will see any other bid, nor will
any bidder see the status of its bid relative to other bids—i.e., whether its bid is a leading bid. To the extent any
instructions or directions set forth on PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale
shall control. For further information about PARITY, potential bidders may call PARITY at IPREO at (212) 849-
5021. The County may, but is not obligated to, acknowledge its acceptance in writing of any bid submitted
electronically through PARITY. In the event that a bid for the College Bonds is submitted through PARITY, the
bidder further agrees that the County may regard the electronic transmission of the bid through PARITY
(including information about the purchase price of the College Bonds, the interest rate or rates to be borne by the
College Bonds, the term College Bonds, if any, specified, the initial public offering price of each maturity of the
College Bonds and any other information included in such transmission) as though the same information were
submitted on the official “Proposal for College Bonds” provided by the County and executed by a duly authorized
signatory of the bidder. If a bid submitted electronically through PARITY is accepted by the County, the terms
of the official “Proposal for College Bonds” and this Notice of Sale and the information that is electronically
transmitted through PARITY shall form a contract, and the successful bidder shall be bound by the terms of such
contract.

PARITY is not an agent of the County, and the County shall have no liability whatsoever based on any
bidder’s use of PARITY, including but not limited to any failure by PARITY to correctly or timely transmit
information provided by the County or information provided by the bidder.

The County may choose to discontinue use of electronic bidding through PARITY by issuing a
notification to such effect through TM3 News Services, or by other available means, no later than 4:00 p.m., New
Jersey Time, on the last business date prior to the bid date.

Once the bids are communicated electronically through PARITY to the County, each bid will constitute
an official “Proposal for College Bonds” and shall be deemed to be an irrevocable offer to purchase the College
Bonds on the terms provided in this Notice of Sale. For purposes of submitting all “Proposals for College Bonds,”
whether electronically or sealed, the time as maintained on PARITY shall constitute the official time.

Each bidder shall be solely responsible to make necessary arrangements to access PARITY for purposes
of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the requirements of this Notice of Sale. Neither
the County nor IPREO shall have any duty or obligation to any bidder, or be responsible for the proper operation
of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or any damages caused by PARITY. The County is
using PARITY as a communication mechanism, and not as the County’s agent, to conduct the electronic bidding
for the College Bonds. By using PARITY each bidder agrees to hold the County harmless for any harm or
damages caused to such bidder in connection with its use of PARITY for bidding on the College Bonds.

Bidders should be aware of the following bidding details (“Bidding Details™) associated with the sale of
the College Bonds:

1. BIDDERS MUST SUBMIT GOOD FAITH CHECK OR WIRE TRANSFER IN THE
AMOUNT OF $54,900 PAYABLE TO THE COUNTY OF OCEAN NO LATER THAN 11:15 a,m. ON
THE DAY OF SALE. HOWEVER, BIDDERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO SUBMIT CHECKS ON THE
DAY PRIOR TO THE SALE TO ASSURE RECEIPT OF PAYMENT BY THE COUNTY AT THE
FOLLOWING ADDRESS:

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller
County of Ocean
Department of Finance
Administration Building
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

BIDDERS SUBMITTING GOOD FAITH CHECKS SHOULD ALSO ENCLOSE A RETURN
ENVELOPE FOR USE BY THE COUNTY.

2. All Bids must be submitted through PARITY. No telephone, telefax, telegraph or personal
delivery Bids will be accepted.

3. All Bids for the College Bonds must be submitted on an “All or None” (“AON”) basis.

4 Each proposal submitted must name the rate or rates of interest per annum to be borne by the

College Bonds and the rate or rates named must be multiples of one-eighth or one-twentieth of one per centum.
The proposed rate or rates of interest to be borne by the College Bonds shall not exceed five percent (5.00%).
Not more than one rate may be named for the College Bonds of the same maturity. There is no limitation on the
number of rates that may be named. The difference between the lowest and the highest rates named in the proposal
shall not exceed three per centum (3%). Each proposal submitted must be for all of the College Bonds and
introduced orf:| the pugeltase, prdee specified in the proposal must equal or exceed $2,772,450 (101%), with a maximum bid

Adopted on: || prictuef$219629880 (108%). The College Bonds will be awarded to the bidder on whose bid the total loan may
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be made at the lowest true interest cost (as such term is defined herein). The purchaser must also pay an amount
equal to the interest on the College Bonds accrued to the date of payment of the purchase price.

5. Bidders are only permitted to submit Bids for the College Bonds during the bidding period.
Definitions
“Bid” any confirmed purchase offer received by PARITY on or before the proposal submission
deadline.
“Bidder” any firm registered and approved for participation in sale.

“Winning Bid” any purchase offer made by a Bidder and received by PARITY that, at the end of the bidding
time period, results in the lowest True Interest Cost that is acceptable to the County.

“True Interest Cost” or “TIC” computed by determining the interest rate, compounded semi-annually, necessary
to discount the debt service payments to the date of the bonds and to the price bid, excluding
interest accrued to the delivery. The True Interest Cost serves as the basis for awarding bonds
to winning Bidders.

The successful bidder may, at its option, refuse to accept the College Bonds if prior to their delivery any
income tax law of the United States of America shall provide that the interest thereon is includable in gross income
for federal income tax purposes, or shall be so includable at a future date. In such case the deposit made by the
bidder shall be returned and it will be relieved of its contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of its
proposal.

If the College Bonds qualify for issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance or commitment
therefor at the option of a bidder, any purchase of such insurance or commitment therefor shall be at the sole
option and expense of the bidder and any increased costs of issuance of the College Bonds resulting by reason of
such insurance, unless otherwise paid, shall be paid by such bidder. Any failure of the College Bonds to be so
insured or of any such policy of insurance to be issued shall not in any way relieve the purchaser of its contractual
obligations arising from the acceptance of its proposal for the purchase of the College Bonds.

The County reserves the right to reject any and all Bids and to the extent permitted by law to waive any
irregularity or informality in any Bid.

Establishment of Issue Price

(a) The winning bidder shall assist the Issuer in establishing the issue price of the Securities and
shall execute and deliver to the Issuer at Closing an “issue price” or similar certificate setting forth the reasonably
expected initial offering price to the Public or the sales price or prices of the Securities, together with the
supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, substantially in the forms reflected as Exhibits A, B or
C, which are incorporated by reference herein and are available from Bond Counsel and shall be posted with the
Notice of Sale on Parity, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment
of the winning bidder, the Issuer and Bond Counsel. All actions to be taken by the Issuer under this Notice of
Sale to establish the issue price of the Securities may be taken on behalf of the Issuer by the Issuer’s municipal
advisor identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the Issuer may be provided to the Issuer’s
municipal advisor or Bond Counsel.

(b) The Issuer intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(£)(3)(i) (defining
“competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Securities) will apply to the initial sale of
the Securities (the “competitive sale requirements”) because:

¢9)] the Issuer shall disseminate this Notice of Sale to potential
Underwriters in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential Underwriters;

)] all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid;

3) the Issuer may receive bids from at least three Underwriters of
municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for underwriting new
issuances of municipal bonds; and

) the Issuer anticipates awarding the sale of the Securities to the bidder
who submits a firm offer to purchase the Securities at the highest price (or lowest
interest cost), as set forth in this Notice of Sale.

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice of Sale shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the
Securities, as specified in the bid.

(c) If the successful bidder is purchasing for its own account without a present intention to reoffer
the College Bonds, it must complete Exhibit A, and the provisions of paragraphs (d)-(i) below shall not apply.

(d) In the event that paragraph (c) does not apply and the Competitive Sale Requirements are
satisfied, Eh1e7 v;g;ging bidder must complete Exhibit B, and the provisions of paragraphs (e)-(i) below shall not
gust 17,
app ugust 17, 2022
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(e) In the event that paragraph (c) does not apply and the Competitive Sale Requirements are not
satisfied, the Issuer shall so advise the winning bidder and the winning bidder must complete Exhibit C. The
Issuer may determine to treat (i) the first price at which 10% of a Maturity of the Securities (the “10% test”) is
sold to the Public as the issue price of that Maturity and/or (ii) the initial offering price to the Public as of the Sale
Date of any Maturity of the Securities as the issue price of that Maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), in
each case applied on a Maturity-by-Maturity basis. Immediately following the award of the Securities, the
winning bidder shall advise the Issuer if any Maturity of the Securities satisfies the 10% test. Any Maturity of
the Securities as to which-the winning bidder has not so advised the Issuer that the 10% test has been satisfied
shall be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule. Bids will not be subject to cancellation in the event that the
hold-the-offering-price rule applies to any Maturity of the Securities, Bidders should prepare their bids on the
assumption that some or all of the maturities of the Securities will be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule
in order to establish the issue price of the Securities.

® By submitting a bid, the winning bidder shall (i) confirm that the Underwriters have offered or
will offer the Securities to the Public on or before the date of award at the offering price or prices (the “initial
offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in the bid submitted by the winning bidder and
(ii) agree, on behalf of the Underwriters participating in the purchase of the Securities, that the Underwriters will

neither offer nor sell unsold Securities of any Maturity to which the hold-the-offering-price rule shall apply to

any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the Public during the period starting on the
Sale Date and ending on the earlier of the following:

) the close of the fifth (5™) business day after the Sale Date; or

) the date on which the Underwriters have sold at least 10% of that Maturity of
the Securities to the Public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the Public.

The winning bidder shall promptly advise the Issuer when the Underwriters have sold 10% of that
Maturity of the Securities to the Public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the Public, if
that occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the Sale Date.

() If the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% test has been satisfied
as to each Maturity of the Securities, the winning bidder agrees to promptly report to the Issuer the prices at which
the unsold Securities of that Maturity have been sold to the Public. That reporting obligation shall continue,
whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Securities of that
Maturity or until all Securities of that Maturity have been sold.

(h) The Issuer acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth above, the winning bidder
will rely on (i) the agreement of each Underwriter to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in
an agreement among Underwriters and the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event a selling group has been created
in connection with the initial sale of the Securities to the Public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member
of the selling group to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in a selling group agreement and
the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event that an Underwriter is a party to a retail distribution agreement that
was employed in connection with the initial sale of the Securities to the Public, the agreement of each broker-
dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, as set forth in the retail
distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Issuer further acknowledges that each Underwriter shall
be solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule and that no
Underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other Underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling
group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to comply with its corresponding
agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the Securities.

@) By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement among Underwriters, any
selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the
initial sale of the Securities to the Public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language
obligating each Underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a
party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the Public the
unsold Securities of each Maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder that either the 10% test
has been satisfied as to the Securities of that Maturity or all Securities of that Maturity have been sold to the
Public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as
directed by the winning bidder and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and (ii) any agreement among
Underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Securities to the Public, together with the related pricing wires,
contains or will contain language obligating each Underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to
be employed in connection with the initial sale of the Securities to the Public to require each broker-dealer that is
a party to such retail distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells to the Public the unsold
Securities of each Maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder or such Underwriter that either
the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Securities of that Maturity or all Securities of that Maturity have been
sold to the Public and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so
long as directed by the winning bidder or such Underwriter and as set forth in the related pricing wires.

G Sales of any Securities to any person that is a related party to an Underwriter shall not constitute
sales to the Public for purposes of this Notice of Sale. Further, for purposes of this Notice of Saie:

@) “Public” means any person other than an Underwriter or a related party,

(i) “Underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
AUQUS: :; ggggontract with the Issuer (or with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to
Augus 165  participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public and (B) any person that agrees
{00329251;v2/ 94-63-/077}
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pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to
participate in the initial sale of the Securities to the Public (including a member of a selling
group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Securities
to the Public), :

(iii) a purchaser of any of the Securities is a “related party” to an Underwriter if
the Underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common
ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common
ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including
direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of
the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of
the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership
(inchuding direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv) “Sale Date” means the date that the Securities are awarded by the Issuer to
the winning bidder.

All actions to be taken by the County under this Notice of Sale to establish the issue price of the Securities
may be taken on behalf of the County by the County’s financial advisor identified herein and any notice or report
to be provided to the County may be provided to the County’s financial advisor or Bond Counsel.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the College Bonds, but neither the
failure to print such number on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or
refusal by the winning bidder thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the College Bonds. The County’s financial
advisor will request the CUSIPs and will provide CUSIP Global Services with the final details of the sale,
including the identity of the winning bidder.

The purchaser shall be obligated to furnish to the County, when and if requested prior to the delivery of
the College Bonds, such information requested by the County as shall be necessary to enable the County to
determine the "issue price" of the College Bonds as defined in Section 1273 and 1274 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").

A Preliminary Official Statement has been prepared and is available for viewing in electronic format on
www.i-dealprospectus.com and may also be obtained from the County's financial advisor identified in the last
paragraph of this Notice. The Preliminary Official Statement is deemed to be a final official statement, as of its
date, within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, but is subject to (a)
completion with certain pricing and other information to be made available by the successful bidder for the
College Bonds and (b) amendment. The Preliminary Official Statement, as so revised, will constitute the final
"Official Statement". By the submission of bids for the College Bonds, the successful bidder contracts for the
receipt, within seven (7) business days of the award of the College Bonds, of a reasonable number of copies of
the final Official Statement at the expense of the County, with any additional copies of the final Official Statement
that the successful bidder shall reasonably request to be provided at the sole cost and expense of the successful
bidder. In order to complete the final Official Statement, the successful bidder must furnish the following
information to the County's financial advisor and Bond Counsel by email or facsimile transmission or overnight
delivery received by the County's financial advisor and Bond Counsel within twenty-four (24) hours after the
award of the College Bonds: (a) initial offering prices (expressed as a price, exclusive of accrued interest, or yield
per maturity), and (b) any other material information necessary for the final Official Statement but not known to
the County (such as the bidder's purchase of credit enhancement). In addition, the successful bidder must, if
requested by the County, furnish a written confirmation of its bid.

The County will undertake to provide certain continuing disclosure in accordance with Rule 15¢2-12 of
the Securities and Exchange Commission. A description of this undertaking is contained in the Preliminary
Official Statement under the heading “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE”.

The successful bidder will be furnished at the time the College Bonds are delivered with: (1) the opinion
of GluckWalrath LLP, Trenton, New Jersey, in substantially the form set forth in the Preliminary Official
Statement; and (2) certificates in form satisfactory to said law firm evidencing the proper execution and delivery
of the College Bonds and receipt of payment therefor and the fact that the College Bonds will not be arbitrage
bonds within the meaning of the Code; and (3) a certificate, dated as of the date of delivery of the College Bonds,
and signed by the officers who signed the College Bonds, stating that no litigation is then pending or to the
knowledge of such officers threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the College Bonds or the
levy or collection of taxes to pay the College Bonds or the interest thereon, or questioning the validity of the
statutes or the proceedings under which the College Bonds are issued, and that neither the corporate existence or
boundaries of the County nor the title of any of said officers to their respective offices, is being contested; and (4)
the County's Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially in the form described in the Preliminary Official
Statement.

The successful bidder is advised of the responsibility to file an annual disclosure statement on political
contributions with the New Jersey Election Law Enforcement Commission pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.13
(P.L. 2005, ¢.271, s.3) if the successful bidder receives contracts in excess of $50,000 from public entities in a
calendar year. It is the successful bidder’s responsibility to determine if filing is necessary. Additional
information on this requirement is available from ELEC at 888-313-3532 or at www.elec.state.nj.us.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
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Award of the College Bonds to the successful bidder or rejection of all bids is expected to be made within
. two (2) hours after announcement of the bids, but such successful bidder may not withdraw its proposal until after
5:30 p.m. of the day of such bid-opening and then only if such award has not been made prior to the withdrawal.

Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement may be obtained from the County's financial advisor, PFM
Financial Advisors LLC, 1735 Market Street, 43rd Floor, Philadelphia, PA 19103, Telephone 215-567-6100,
Attention: Geoffrey Stewart.

DATED: August 22, 2022 BY: /s/ Julie N. Tarrant
County Comptroller,
County of Ocean, New Jersey

Introduced ﬁrlh: August 17, 2022
Adopted on August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001165
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EXHIBIT A
: COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
$____COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022
CERTIFICATE OF THE PURCHASER
(NO REOFFERING PURCHASER)

The undersigned, on behalf of (the “Purchaser”), hereby certifies as set forth below with
respect to the purchase of the above-captioned obligations (the “College Bonds™).

1. Purchase of the College Bonds. On the date of this certificate, the Purchaser is purchasing the
College Bonds for the amount of . The Purchaser is not acting as an Underwriter with respect to the
College Bonds. The Purchaser has no present intention to sell, reoffer, or otherwise dispose of the College Bonds
(or any portion of the College Bonds or any interest in the College Bonds). The Purchaser has not contracted
with any person pursuant to a written agreement to have such person participate in the initial sale of the College
Bonds and the Purchaser has not agreed with the Issuer pursuant to a written agreement to sell the College Bonds
to persons other than the Purchaser or a related party to the Purchaser.

2. Defined Terms.
(2) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,

company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party. The term “related party” for purposes of
this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent common ownership,
directly or indirectly.

(b) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the Issuer (or
with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the College Bonds
to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person
described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the College Bonds to the Public
(including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale
of the College Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this
certificate represents the Purchaser’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned
understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the
representations set forth in the Tax or Arbitrage Certificate and with respect to compliance with the federal income
tax rules affecting the College Bonds, and by GluckWalrath LLP, Bond Counsel to the Issuer, in connection with
rendering its opinion that the interest on the College Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that
it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the College Bonds.

[PURCHASER]

By:
Name:
Title:

Dated:

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
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EXHIBIT B

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
$ COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022
ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

(Competitive Sale Requirement Satisfied)

The undersigned (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and each member of the underwriting group
(if any) (collectively, the “Underwriter”) hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale of the above-
captioned obligations (the “College Bonds”).

1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.

(a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices and yields of the College
Bonds to the Public by the Underwriter are the prices and yields listed in Schedule A (the “Expected Offering
Prices”). The Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Maturities of the College Bonds used by Underwriter
in formulating its bid to purchase the College Bonds. Attached as Schedule B is a true and correct copy of the
bid provided by the Underwriter to purchase the College Bonds.

(b) The Underwriter was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to submitting its bid.
() The bid submitted by the Underwriter constituted a firm offer to purchase the College Bonds.

[(d) The Underwriter has obtained a bond insurance policy from (“Insurer”) in respect of
the College Bonds. Based on our experience with College Bonds similar to the College Bonds (i) the bond
insurance was an important factor in marketing the College Bonds and (ii) the absence of the insurance would
have materially affected in an adverse manner the interest rates at which the College Bonds could have been
sold. The insurance policy will be issued for a premium of § , which is net of any credits or rating agency
fees. No portion of the premium represents the indirect payment of costs of issuance, including rating agency
fees or the provision of additional services by Insurer. The present value of the insurance is less than the present
value of the interest reasonably expected to be saved as a result of using the insurance to secure the College
Bonds, using as a discount rate the yield on the College Bonds, calculated with treating the premiums as interest.]

2. Defined Terms.
(a) Issuer means the County of Ocean, New Jersey.

) Maturity means College Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. College Bonds with
different maturity dates, or College Bonds with the same Maturity date but different stated interest rates, are
treated as separate maturities.

©) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,
company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party”
for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent
common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(d) Sale Date means the first day on which the College Bonds are awarded by the Issuer to the
winning bidder. The Sale Date of the College Bonds is ,2022.

() . Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the Issuer (or
with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the College Bonds
to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person
described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the College Bonds to the Public
(including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale
of the College Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this
certificate represents the Underwriter’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The undersigned
understands that the foregoing -information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to certain of the
representations set forth in the Issuer’s Tax or Arbitrage Certificate and with respect to compliance with the
federal income tax rules affecting the College Bonds, and by GluckWalrath LLP, bond counsel to the Issuer, in
connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on the College Bonds is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal
income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the College Bonds.

[REPRESENTATIVE, on behalf of itself and each member
of the underwriting group]

By:

Name:

Title:
August 17, 2022 Dated:

August 17, 2022

on#: 2022001165
{00329251;v2/ 94-63-/077}
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SCHEDULE A

EXPECTED OFFERING PRICES AND YIELDS

Introduced oh August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001165
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EXHIBIT C

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY
$ COLLEGE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2022

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE
(Hold the Price for all or some maturities)

The undersigned (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and each member of the underwriting group
(if any) (collectively, the “Underwriter), hereby certifies as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance
of the above-captioned obligations (the “College Bonds™). Select appropriate provisions below:

1. [Alternative 1! — All Maturities Use General Rule: Sale of the College Bonds. As of the date of this
certificate, for each Maturity of the College Bonds, the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the
College Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A.]

[Alternative 22 — Select Maturities Use General Rule: Sale of the General Rule Maturities. As of the
date of this certificate, for each Maturity of the General Rule Maturities, the first price at which at least 10% of
such Maturity of the College Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A.

2. Initial Offering Price of the [College Bonds[[Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities].

(a) [Alternative 1° — All Maturities Use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: The Underwriter offered the
College Bonds to the Public for purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the “Initial
Offering Prices”) on or before the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for the
College Bonds is attached to this certificate as Schedule B.]

[Alternative 2* — Select Maturities Use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: The Underwriter offered the Hold-
the-Offering-Price Maturities to the Public for purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule
A (the “Initial Offering Prices”) on or before the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent
communication for the College Bonds is attached to this certificate as Schedule C.]

(b) [Alternative 1 — All Maturities use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: As set forth in the Notice of Sale
and bid award, the Underwriter has agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the College Bonds, it would
neither offer nor sell any of the College Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the
Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Holding Period for such Maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price
rule”), and (ii) any selling group agreement shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the
selling group, and any retail distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a
party to the retail distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant to such
agreement, no Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Maturity of the College Bonds at a price
that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the College Bonds during the Holding
Period.]

[Alternative 2 - Select Maturities Use Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule: As set forth in the Notice of Sale
and bid award, the Underwriter has agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Maturities, it would neither offer nor sell any of the College Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that
is higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Holding Period for such Maturity (the “hold-
the-offering-price rule”), and (ii) any selling group agreement shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is
a member of the selling group, and any retail distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-
dealer who is a party to the retail distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant
to such agreement, no Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-
Price Maturities at a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the College
Bonds during the Holding Period.]

[© The Underwriter has obtained a bond insurance policy from (“Insurer”) in respect of
the College Bonds. Based on our experience with bonds similar to the College Bonds (i) the bond insurance was
an important factor in marketing the College Bonds and (ii) the absence of the insurance would have materially
affected in an adverse manner the interest rates at which the College Bonds could have been sold. The insurance
policy will be issued for a premium of § , which is net of any credits or rating agency fees. No portion of
the premium represents the indirect payment of costs of issuance, including rating agency fees or the provision of

" additional services by Insurer. The present value of the insurance is less than the present value of the interest
reasonably expected to be saved as a result of using the insurance to secure the College Bonds, using as a discount
rate the yield on the College Bonds, calculated with treating the premiums as interest.]

3. Defined Terms.

VIf Alternative 1 is used, delete the remainder of paragraph 1 and all of paragraph 2 and renumber paragraphs
accordingly.

2 If Alternative 2 is used, delete Alternative 1 of paragraph 1 and use each Alternative 2 in paragraphs 2(a) and
(®).

3 If Alternative 1 is used, delete all of paragraph 1 and renumber paragraphs accordingly.

4 Altsﬂiéﬂ%@g#) of paragraph 2 should be used in conjunction with Alternative 2 in paragraphs 1 and 2(b)
August 17, 2022
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(a) General Rule Maturities means those Maturities of the College Bonds listed in Schedule A
hereto as the “General Rule Maturities.”

®) Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities means those Maturities of the College Bonds listed in
Schedule B hereto as the “Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities.”

©) Holding Period means, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity, the period starting
on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after the Sale Date D,
or (ii) the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity to the
Public at prices that are no higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity.

(d) Issuer means the County of Ocean, New Jersey.

© Maturity means College Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. College Bonds with
different maturity dates, or College Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are
treated as separate maturities.

® Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,
company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party”
for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons who have greater than 50 percent
common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(® Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of a
Maturity of the College Bonds. The Sale Date of the College Bonds is

(h) ‘Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with-the Issuer (or
with the lead Underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the College Bonds
to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person
described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the College Bonds to the Public
(including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale
of the College Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.

Nothing in this certificate represents the Underwriter’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically
Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations
thereunder.

The undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect
to certain of the representations set forth in the Arbitrage and Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance with
the federal income tax rules affecting the College Bonds, and by GluckWalrath LLP, bond counsel, in connection
with rendering its opinion that the interest on the College Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes, the preparation of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice it
may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the College Bonds.

[REPRESENTATIVE, on behalf of itself and each member
of the underwriting group]

By:
Name:
Title:

Dated:

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

ion#; 20220011
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SCHEDULE A
SALE PRICES OF THE GENERAL RULE MATURITIES
(Attached)
Maturity Date Par Amount Rate Issue Price
Total -
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
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SCHEDULE [B]
INITIAL OFFERING PRICES OF THE HOLD-THE-OFFERING-PRICE MATURITIES
(Attached)
Maturity Date Par Amount Rate Issue Price
Total -

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
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SCHEDULE {BJ[C]

PRICING WIRE OR EQUIVALENT COMMUNICATION
" (Attached)

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
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Section 11. Delegation of Power to Award and Sell College Bonds. The County Comptroller is
delegated on behalf of the County the power to award and sell the College Bonds to the successful bidder. The
County Comptroller shall report the results of such sale in writing at the next meeting of the Board of
Commissioners.

Section 12. Adjustment to Maturity Schedule. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated the
authority (if the County Comptroller deems it to be in the best interests of the County) up to 24 hours prior to the
date of advertised sale and within 4 hours after the award of the bonds, to adjust the maturity schedule of the
College Bonds in increments of $1,000, provided that (i) no maturity schedule adjustment shall exceed 10%
upward or downward of the principal for any maturity as specified herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of
advertised sale) and (ii) the aggregate adjustment to the maturity schedule shall not exceed 10% upward or
downward of the aggregate principal amount of bonds as specified herein (or as adjusted prior to the date of
advertised sale) and as adjusted will not exceed the amount authorized by the Ordinance. NOTICE OF ANY
ADJUSTMENT TO THE MATURITY SCHEDULE OF THE COLLEGE BONDS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF
THE ADVERTISED SALE SHALL BE GIVEN BY CAUSING A NOTICE THEREOF TO BE PUBLISHED
ON TM3 NEWS SERVICE. The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder shall be adjusted to reflect any
adjustments in the aggregate principal amount of College Bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect
changes in the dollar amount of the underwriter’s discount and the original issue premium or discount, but will
not change the per bond underwriter’s discount as calculated from the bid and the Initial Public Offering Prices
required to be delivered to the County. Notice of any such adjustment shall be given to the successful bidder in
the manner specified in the Notice of Sale. In the event of any such adjustment, the dollar amount (but not the
interest rate or rates) bid by the successful bidder will be adjusted as provided in the Notice of Sale.

Section 13. Postponement of Sale. The County Comptroller is hereby delegated the authority (if
the Chief Financial Officer deems it to be in the best interests of the County) (i) to postpone from time to time the
sale of the College Bonds from the date specified in the Notice of Sale (or, in the case of a rescheduled sale, from
such rescheduled date), in each case upon not less than 24 hours’ notice, and (ii) to reschedule such sale upon not
less than 48 hours’ notice. Notice of any such postponement and rescheduling shall be given in the manner
specified in the Notice of Sale. In the event of any such postponement and rescheduling, the County Comptroller
may (and shall, if required by the Local Bond Law) cause a revised Notice of Sale and/or a revised summary
thereof to be prepared and published.

Section 14. Agreements with The Depository Trust Company. The Comptroller is hereby
authorized to make representations and warranties, to enter into agreements and to make all arrangements with
DTC, as may be necessary in order to provide that this issue of the County's College Bonds will be eligible for
deposit with DTC, and to satisfy any obligations undertaken in connection therewith.

Section 15. Authorization for Official Statement. The Comptroller, Chief Financial Officer, Clerk
of the Board of Commissioners, auditor, bond counsel and other officers, agents and employees of the County are
authorized to prepare and distribute information with respect to the County in connection with the sale of the
College Bonds in such form as may be approved by the Comptroller. The preparation and distribution of a
Preliminary Official Statement pertaining to the College Bonds is hereby authorized. The Comptroller is hereby
authorized to deem final the Preliminary Official Statement for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The Director of the Board of Commissioners, the County Administrator, the Chief
Financial Officer and the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners are hereby authorized and directed to execute a
final official statement relating to the bonds, with such changes, revisions, insertions and omissions from the
Preliminary Official Statement as may be approved by the Comptroller.

Section 16. Pledge of County. The full faith and credit of the County of Ocean in the State of New
Jersey is hereby pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on said College Bonds and said College
Bonds shall be general obligations of the County payable as to principal and interest from ad valorem taxes which
may be assessed on the taxable property within said County without limitation as to rate or amount.

Section 17. Investment of Proceeds of College Bonds. The County will make no use of the
proceeds of the College Bonds which would cause the College Bonds to be arbitrage bonds; and the County
hereby imposes on itself and all officers having custody or control of the proceeds of the College Bonds,
throughout the term of the College Bonds, the obligation to comply with applicable requirements of Section 148
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and Regulations Sections 1.148-0 through
1.148-11 and 1.150-1 and 1.150-2, and all other applicable regulations of the Internal Revenue Service, so that
the College Bonds will not be or become arbitrage bonds.

Section 18. Tax Covenants. In order to maintain the exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes of interest on the College Bonds, and for no other purpose, the County covenants to comply
with each applicable requirement of the Code, applicable to the bonds, and the County covenants not to take any
action or fail to take any action which would cause the interest on the College Bonds to lose the exclusion from
gross income for federal income taxation purposes under Section 103 of the Code. In furtherance of the covenant
contained in the preceding sentence, the County agrees to comply with the Arbitrage Certificate and Letter of
Instructions (the "Letter of Instructions") as to the Code delivered by Bond Counsel on the date of initial issuance
and delivery of the College Bonds, as such letter may be amended from time to time, as a source of guidance for
achieving compliance with the Code. ‘

The County covenants and agrees with the holders of the bonds that the County shall not take any action
or omit to take any action, which action or omission, if reasonably expected on the date of initial issuance and
delivery of the College Bonds, would cause the bonds to be "private activity bonds" or "arbitrage bonds" within

Introduced on: || thaugesnitig2s@8ections 141(a) and 148, respectively, of the Code, or any successor provision.
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
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Section 19. Bonds Not Federally Guaranteed. The County covenants that it will take no action
which would cause the College Bonds to be federally guaranteed (within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the
Code).

Section 20. Designation of Paying Agent; Acceptance. TD Bank, National Association, Cherry

Hill, New Jersey, is hereby designated to act as Paying Agent for the College Bonds. The County may at any
time or from time to time by supplemental resolution appoint one or more other Paying Agents for such College
Bonds. Each Paying Agent shall be a bank, trust company or national banking association doing business and
having its principal office in the State of New Jersey, having trust powers, willing and able to accept the office
on reasonable and customary terms and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this
Resolution. Each Paying Agent shall signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed upon it by this
Resolution by executing and delivering to the County a written acceptance thereof.

Section 21. Responsibilities of Paying Agent. The recitals of fact herein and in the College Bonds
contained shall be taken as the statements of the County and the Paying Agent assumes no responsibility for the
correctness of the same. The Paying Agent does not make any representations as to the validity or sufficiency of
this Resolution or of any bonds issued hereunder or in respect of the security afforded by this Resolution, and
shall not incur any responsibility in respect thereof. The Paying Agent shall not be under any responsibility or
duty with respect to the issuance of the bonds or the application of the proceeds thereof or the application of any
moneys paid to the County or others in accordance with this Resolution. The Paying Agent shall not be under
any obligation or duty to perform any act which would involve it in expense or liability or to institute or defend
any action or suit in respect of this Resolution or the bonds, or to advance any of its own moneys, unless properly
indemnified. The Paying Agent shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its duties hereunder
except for its own negligence or default.

Section 22. Funds Held in Trust. All moneys held by the Paying Agent, as such, at any time
pursuant to the terms of this Resolution shall be and hereby are assigned, transferred and set over unto the Paying
Agent in trust for the purposes and under the terms and conditions of the Resolution.

Section 23. Evidence on Which the Paying Agent May Act. The Paying Agent shall be protected
in acting upon any notice, resolution, request, consent, order, certificate, opinion, bond, or other paper or
document believed by it to be genuine, and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.
Whenever the Paying Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable that a fact or matter be proved or established
prior to taking or suffering any action hereunder, such fact or matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be
herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a certificate signed
by an employee or officer of the County stating the same, and such certificate shall be full warrant for any action
taken or suffered in good faith under the provisions of this Resolution in reliance thereon, but in its discretion the
Paying Agent may in lieu thereof accept other evidence of such fact or matter or may require such further or
additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, any request,
order, notice or other direction required or permitted to be furnished pursuant to any provision hereof by or on
behalf of the County to the Paying Agent shall be sufficiently executed if executed by an employee or officer of
the County.

Section 24. Compensation and Expenses. Unless otherwise provided by contract with the Paying
Agent, the County shall pay to the Paying Agent from time to time reasonable compensation for all services
rendered by it hereunder, and also reimbursement for all its reasonable expenses, charges, legal and engineering
fees and other disbursements and those of its attorneys, agents and employees, incurred in and about the
performance of its powers and duties hereunder. The County shall indemnify and save the Paying Agent harmless
against any liabilities which it may incur in the exercise and performance of its powers and duties hereunder and
which are not due to its negligence or default.

Section 25. Ownership of Bonds. The Paying Agent may become the owner of or may deal in
bonds as fully and with the same rights it would have if it were not the Paying Agent.

Section 26. Resignation. The Paying Agent or any successor thereof may at any time resign and
be discharged of its duties and obligations created by this Resolution by giving not less than sixty days' written
notice to the County and mailing notice thereof, specifying the date when such resignation shall take effect, to the
bondholders. Such resignation shall take effect upon the day specified in such notice unless previously a successor
shall have been appointed by the County or bondholders as herein provided, in which event such resignation shall
take effect immediately on the appointment of such successor.

- Section 27, Removal. The Paying Agent, or any successor thereof, may be removed at any time
by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the bonds then outstanding, excluding any bonds held by or
for the account of the County, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed and duly
acknowledged by such bondholders or by their attorneys duly authorized in writing and delivered to the County.
The County may remove the Paying Agent at any time, for such cause as shall be determined in the sole discretion
of the County by filing with the Paying Agent an instrument signed by an officer of the County and by mailing
notice thereof to bondholders.

Section 28. Appointment of Successor. In case the Paying Agent, or any successor thereof, shall
resign or shall be removed or shall become incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or
if a receiver, liquidator or conservator of the Paying Agent or of its property shall be appointed, or if any public
officer shall take charge or control of the Paying Agent or of its property or affairs, a successor may be appointed
by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the bonds then outstanding, excluding any bonds held by or
Introduced on: foggaggppp,%gf the County, by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed by such bondholders
Adopted on: orthgirettougss duly authorized in writing and delivered to such successor Paying Agent, notification thereof
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being given to the County and the predecessor Paying Agent. Pending' such appointment, the County shall
forthwith appoint a Paying Agent to fill such vacancy until a successor Paying Agent (if any) shall be appointed
by bondholders as herein authorized. The County shall mail notice to bondholders of any such appointment
within twenty days after such appointment. Any successor Paying Agent appointed by the County shall,
immediately and without further act, be superseded by a Paying Agent appointed by the bondholders. If in a
proper case no appointment of a successor Paying Agent shall be made pursuant to the foregoing provisions of
this Section within forty-five days after the Paying Agent shall have given to the County written notice of
resignation as provided in Section 26 hereof or after the occurrence of any other event requiring or authorizing
such appointment, the Paying Agent or any bondholder may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to
appoint a successor. Said court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as said court may deem proper and
prescribe, appoint such successor Paying Agent. Any Paying Agent appointed under the provisions of this Section
shall be a bank or trust company or a national banking association, doing business and having its principal office
in the State of New Jersey and authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Resolution.

Section 29. Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor. Any successor Paying Agent appointed A
hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor Paying Agent and also to the County, an

instrument accepting such appointment, and thereupon such successor Paying Agent without any further act, deed
or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers, duties and
obligations of such predecessor Paying Agent, but the Paying Agent ceasing to act shall nevertheless, on the
written request of the County or of the successor Paying Agent, execute, acknowledge and deliver such
instruments of conveyance and further assurances and do such other things as may reasonably be required for
more fully and certainly vesting and confirming in such successor Paying Agent all the right, title and interest of
the predecessor Paying Agent in and to any property held by it under this Resolution, and shall pay over, assign
and deliver to the successor Paying Agent any money or other property subject to the trusts and conditions herein
set forth, Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in writing from the County be required by such successor
Paying Agent for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor Paying Agent any such
moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers and duties, any and all such deeds, conveyances and instruments in
writing shall, on request, and so far as may be authorized by law, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by
the County. Any such successor Paying Agent shall promptly notify the other Paying Agent of its appointment
as such Paying Agent. ’

Section 30 Merger or Consolidation. Any company into which the Paying Agent may be merged
or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any merger, conversion or
consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the Paying Agent or a court of competent
jurisdiction may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, shall be the successor to the
Paying Agent without the execution or filing of any paper or the performance of any further act; provided that
such company shall be a bank or trust company or national banking association which is qualified to be a successor
to the Paying Agent under Section 28 hereof and shall be authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed
upon it by this Resolution.

Section 31. Continuing Disclosure. A Continuing Disclosure Certificate in substantially the
following form is hereby approved, and the County Comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to execute and
deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate on behalf of the County in substantially such form, with such
insertions and changes therein as the County Comptroller may approve, such approval to be evidenced by his/her
execution thereof:

(Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Bonds)
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate™) is executed and delivered by the
County of Ocean, New Jersey (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance by the Issuer of $
principal amount of its College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Bonds”). The Bonds are being
issued pursuant to a Bond Ordinance (the "Ordinance") duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the Issuer
(the “Board”) on June 1, 2022, and a resolution duly adopted by the Board on August 17, 2022 (the "Resolution").
The Bonds are dated September _ , 2022 and shall mature on September 1 in the years 2023 through 2027,
inclusive. The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being executed
and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order
to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the provisions of Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may
be amended from time to time ("Exchange Act").

Section 2, Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply to
any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as described in,
Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through
nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax

Introduced on: || PUYRGIEP47, 2022
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"Bondholder" shall mean any person who is the registered owner of any Bond, including holders of
beneficial interests in the Bonds.

“Continuing Disclosure Information" shall mean: (i) the Annual Report; (ii) any notice required to be
filed with the Repositories pursuant to Section 5 hereof; and (iii) any notice of an event required to be filed with
the Repositories pursuant to Sectien 3(c) hereof.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean the Issuer, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in
writing by the Issuer and which has filed with the Issuer a written acceptance of such designation.

"EMMA" shall mean the Electronic Municipal Market Access System ("EMMA"), an internet based
filing system created and maintained by the MSRB in accordance with the SEC Release, pursuant to which issuers
of tax-exempt bonds, including the Bonds, and other filers on behalf of the such issuers shall upload Continuing
Disclosure Information to assist underwriters in complying with the Rule and to provide the general public with
access to such Continuing Disclosure Information.

"Financial Obligation" means a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection
with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee
of (i) or (ii). The term "Financial Obligation" shall not include municipal securities as to which a final official
statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Bonds Rulemaking Board established pursuant to Section 15B(b)(1)
of the Exchange Act.

"National Repository" shall mean the MSRB, through the internet facilities of EMMA, or any other
public or private repository or entity that shall hereafter be designated by the SEC as a repository for purposes of
the Rule.

"Official Statement" shall mean the Official Statement of the County, dated September __, 2022, relating
to the Bonds.

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds required to comply
with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. '

"Repository" or "Repositories" shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository, if any.

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the SEC under the Exchange Act, as the same may be
amended from time to time.

"SEC Release"” shall mean Release No. 34-59062, of the SEC, dated December 5, 2008.

"State" shall mean the State of New Jersey.

"State Repository" shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State as a state
repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized as such by the SEC. As of the date of this Disclosure
Certificate, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The Issuer shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than nine (9)
months after the end of its fiscal year, commencing with the report for the fiscal year ending December
31, 2022 provide to the MSRB in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, an Annual Report
which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report
may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-
reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the
audited financial statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual
Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available
by that date. If the Issuer's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change to MSRB. Any and
all items that must be included in the Annual Report may be incorporated by reference from other
information that is available to the public on the MSRB's Internet Web site, or that has been filed with
the SEC.

(b) Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the date specified in subsection (a)
for making available or providing the Annual Report, the Issuer shall provide the Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent (if other than the Issuer). Ifthe Issuer is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual
Report by the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall, in a timely manner, send a notice to the
MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A, in an electronic format as prescribed by the
MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by identifying information as
prescribed by the MSRB.

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall file a report with the Issuer certifying that the Annual
Report has been provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was

Introduced on: August Pf,oéﬁgfd
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Offictal Resolutibnt A3889011934-63.1077)
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Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or include by
reference the following:

1. The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the prior fiscal year, prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards (GAAS) as from time to time in effect, and as
prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services in the Department of Community Affairs of
the State pursuant to Chapter 5 of Title 40A of the New Jersey Statutes. If the Issuer's audited financial
statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section
3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements and the audited financial statements
shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available.

2, The financial information and operating data set forth in the Official Statement
(including Appendix A thereto) dated 2022 prepared in connection with the sale of the
Bonds, under the captions: “Schedule of Bond and Note Maturities”, “Tax Information”, “Ocean County
Leading Tax Ratables - 2022”, “County of Ocean Statement of Statutory Debt Condition June 5, 2022",
“List of Authorized Debt as of June 15, 2022" and “Debt Ratios™.

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.
(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Issuer shall give, or cause to be given,
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:
1. principal and interest payment delinquencies;
2. non-payment related defaults, if material;
3. unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
4, unscheduled draws on credit enhahcements reflecting financial difficulties;
5. substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final

determinations of taxability. Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or
other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security,
or others material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

7. modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material;

8. Bond Calls, if material and tender offers;

9. defeasances;

10. release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;
11. rating changes.

12. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar events of the Issuer, which shall be

considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver,
fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or
business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing
governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision
and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a
plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or goverrimental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or
business of the Issuer;

13. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer or
the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action
or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material;

14, appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if
material;
15. incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, if material, or agreement to

covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a
Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which affect Bondholders, if material; and

16. default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other
similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer, any of which
reflect financial difficulties.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
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) Whenever the Issuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described
in subsection (a) for which a disclosure obligation is dependent upon materiality, the Issuer shall as soon as
possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities laws.

©) If disclosure of a Listed Event is required, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in
excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB in
an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB. All documents provided to the MSRB shall be accompanied by
identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this Disclosure
Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If
such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice of such termination
in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge
any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination

"Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the Issuer pursuant
to this Disclosure Certificate. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Issuer.

Section 8. Amendment; . Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may
be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Section 3(a), 4 or 5(a), it may
only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect
to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted;

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion
of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of
the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the
Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and

(© The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond
counsel, materially impair the interests of the Bondholders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of
the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting
principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by the Issuer. In
addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing financial statements,
(i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c), and (ii) the
Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a comparison (in narrative form and also,
if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting
principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. '

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this
Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any notice of
occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer
chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this
Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence
of a Listed Event.

-Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate any Bondholder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be
necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the
Issuer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure Certificate
shall not be deemed an Event of Default on the Bonds, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in
the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel
performance. '

Section 11. Duties. Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination
Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the Issuer agrees

to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against
any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers
and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) of defending against
any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's gross negligence or willful
misconduct. The obligations of the Issuer under this Section 11 shall survive resignation or removal of the
Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
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Dated:
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Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

Issuer, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and the Bondholders and Beneficial Owners from
time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY

By:

26

Julie N. Tarrant, County Comptroller




Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resoluti

Res-Pg:k.17-28

EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: County of Ocean, New Jersey
Name of Bond Issue: $ College Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2022
Date of Issuance: , 2022

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Issuer has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named

Bonds as required by Section 3(a) of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate dated , 2022. The
Issuer anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by . 520
Dated: ,20

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NEW JERSEY

By:
Name:
Title:

Section 32. Defeasance. (A) If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid or if there shall be paid
otherwise to the owner of all bonds the principal and the redemption premium, if applicable, and the interest due
or to become due thereon at the times and in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, then, at the
option of the County, the pledge of the County contained herein and all covenants, agreements and other
obligations of the County to the owners of the bonds thereupon shall cease, shall terminate, shall become void
and shall be discharged and satisfied. In such event and upon the request of the County, any paying agent shall
pay over or shall deliver to the County all moneys, funds or securities held by them pursuant to this Resolution
that are not required for the payment of the principal of or premium and interest due or to become due on the
bonds. If the County shall pay or shall cause to be paid or if there shall be paid otherwise to the owners of all
outstanding bonds of a particular maturity the principal of and the redemption premium, if any, and interest due
or to become due thereon, at the time and in the manner stipulated therein and in this Resolution, such bonds shall
cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under this Resolution, and all covenants, agreements and
obligations of the County to the owners of such bonds shall thereupon cease, shall terminate and shall become
void and be discharged and satisfied.

(B) Bonds or interest installments for the payment or the redemption of which moneys shall have
been deposited with any bank, trust company or national banking association serving as escrow agent (the
"Escrow Agent™) by or on behalf of the County whether at or prior to the maturity or the redemption date of such
bonds, shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in subsection (A) of
this Section. All outstanding bonds or any maturity of the bonds shall be deemed to have been paid within the
meaning and with the effect expressed in subsection (A) of this Section if (1) in case any of such bonds are to be
redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the County shall have given to the Escrow Agent irrevocable
instruction to publish notice of redemption of such bonds on such date, (2) there shall have been deposited with
the Escrow Agent either moneys in an amount that shall be sufficient or direct obligations of the United States of
America or securities unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely payment by the United States of America not
redeemable at the option of the issuer the principal of and the interest on which when due will provide moneys
which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with the Escrow Agent at the same time, shall be sufficient, to
pay when due the principal and any redemption premium and the interest due and to become due on such bonds
on and prior to the redemption date or the maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (3) in the event such
bonds are not by their terms subject to redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the County shall
have given the Escrow Agent in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to publish, as soon as practicable,
at least twice, at an interval of not less than seven (7) days between publications, in a publication devoted primarily
to financial news or the subject of state and municipal bonds and published in the City of New York or in New
Jersey a notice to the owners of such bonds that the deposit required by clause (2) above has been made with the
Escrow Agent and that such bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Section and stating such
maturity or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available for payment of the principal of and the
redemption premium, if any, on such bonds. For so long as the book-entry only form remains in effect and the
bonds are registered in the name of DTC or its nominee, the County shall comply with such additional or
supplemental requirements as may be imposed by DTC in connection with any advance refunding of the bonds
whether such additional or supplemental requirements are specified in the Letter of Representations by and
between the County and DTC or otherwise.

Section 33. Application of Proceeds. The proceeds of the sale of the College Bonds shall be paid
to the Treasurer of the College and shall be paid out only in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-
19, subject to such disbursing arrangements as may be agreed to by the County and the College, except that
amounts representing original issue premium, investment earnings and/or accrued interest may be remitted to the
State Treasurer in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:64A-22.7.

Section 34. Prior Actions. Any and all actions taken prior to the date hereof are hereby ratified,
approved and confirmed.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
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Section 33. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption heteof.

The foregoing resolution was adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NAYES:

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
on#; 2022001165
{00329251;v2/ 94-63-/077}
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CERTIFICATE

I, Michelle I. Gunther, Clerk of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Ocean, in the State of New
Jersey, HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing annexed extract from the minutes of a meeting of the governing
body of the County duly called and held on August 17, 2022 has been compared by me with the original minutes
as officially recorded in my office in the Minute Book of the governing body and is a true, complete and correct
copy thereof and of the whole of the original minutes so far as they relate to the subject matters referred to in the
extract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of the County
this day of August, 2022.

Michelle 1. Gunther, Clerk of the Board of Commissioners
[SEAL] |

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolutign#; 3028001185 94631077}
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

Agenda: Authorizing the sale of a vehicle, no longer needed for pub
Borough of South Toms River.

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

lic use by the County of Ocean, to the

Official Resolution# |2022001172
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-18

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board
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RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A.40A:11-34(2) provides that the County, by Resolution of the
Board of Commissioners, may authorize the sale of personal property not needed for public
use to a municipality or other public entity of the State of New Jersey without advertising of
bids; and

WHEREAS, the Borough of South Toms River, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey

requests to purchase from the County of Ocean for $1.00:
1. 2001 Chevrolet Express VIN# 1GAHG39F911214402; and

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the above listed vehicle / equipment is no
longer needed for public use by the County of Ocean.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS, OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that
the Board has agreed upon the purchase price authorizing the execution of any and all
necessary documents to transfer ownership of said vehicle / equipment to the Borough of South

Toms River, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this Resolution shall be made
available to the Ocean County Director of Management and Budget, Department of Finance,
County Auditor, Department of Insurance & Risk Management, Vehicle Services and the

Borough of South Toms River.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

tion#: 2022001172
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RESOLUTION 2022-106
RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF SOUTH TOMS RIVER,

COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, ACCEPTING SURPLUS PROPERTY FROM
OCEAN COUNTY VEHICLE SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Vehicle Services, address of152 Chesinut Street

Toms River, NJ 08753, is the owner of certain surplus property which is no longer needed for public use;
and
'~ WHEREAS, theOcean County Vehicle Services is desirous of donating said surplus property in

an “as is” condition without express or implied warranties, and has requested the Governing Body of the
Borough of South Toms River to authorize the acceptance of such surplus property.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body in the Borough of South
Toms River, County of Ocean, as follows:

§))] The acceptance of the surplus property:

2001 Chevrolet Express 1GAHG39F911214402

2) The surplus property as identified shall be sold in an “as-is” condition without express or

implied warranties with the successful bidder required to execute a Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Agreement concerning use of said surplus property.

CERTIFICATION
1, Joseph A. Kostecki, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of South Toms River, County of Ocean,
State of New Jersey do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Borough
Council of South Toms River at their regular meeting held on the 28th day of March, 2022, at 19° Double

-

Trouble Road, South Toms Riiver, New Jersey. 2 / %
— 3 = -
A - , .

Joserth A Kostecki, MPA, CMC RMC~QPA CMR
Municipal Clerk

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022 )
Official Resolution#: 2022001172
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Adopting the amended OC Housing Rehabilitation Program Policy and Procedural Manual for the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Housing Rehabilitation Program, to reflect the
increased grant subsidy to the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program.

Official Resolution# [2022001173
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-19

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michate \. Guotkar’

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
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RESOLUTION
August 17,2022

WHEREAS, the County has established the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Housing Rehabilitation Program and the HOME Housing Rehabilitation Program to
assist eligible homeowners with necessary repairs to their properties;

WHEREAS, the Ocean County Department of Planning is the lead agency in the
administration of the CDBG and HOME Housing Rehabilitation Programs; and

WHEREAS, this program is administered by a housing rehabilitation consultant,
Affordable Housing Alliance, pursuant to the terms of a Competitive Contract Award; and

WHEREAS, the County has established rehabilitation program guidelines and legal
documents which include maximum subsidy limits, as required by the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development; and

WHEREAS, the project cost cap is $20,000 for the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation
Program and $50,000 for the HOME Housing Rehabilitation Program; and

WHEREAS, the existing limits need to be updated in relation to the increase in
housing and material costs; and

WHEREAS, the County recommends increasing the maximum subsidy limit to
$25,000 for the CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program; and

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation that the County amend the existing program
guidelines and legal documents to reflect the adjustments detailed above. |

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS, of the COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as
follows:

1. The Board of Commissioners, County of Ocean, State of New Jersey hereby adopts
the amended Ocean County Housing Rehabilitation Program Policy and Procedural
Manual for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Housing
Rehapbilitation Program.

2. A certified copy of this resolution shall be made available to: the Ocean County
Planning Department, County Comptroller, County Auditor, US Housing and Urban
Development, and Affordable Housing Alliance.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resoluti
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the revised Fee Schedule for "Out of County" participants of the OC Police Academy.

Official Resolution# [2022001174
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-20

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guotinor”

Clerk Of The Board
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RESOLUTION
August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the Oceap County Police Academy would like to revise the

current out of county participant fee schedule; and

WHEREAS, the revision of said schedule would enable the Ocean County
Police Academy to charge fees for out of county participants which are consistent with

other Police Training Commission approved academies; and

WHEREAS, out of county participants are defined as participants that are
sponsored by agencies that are physically located outside the legal boundaries of

Ocean County; and

WHEREAS, the revised schedule of fees for out of county participants is listed
on Schedule A (attached).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY

hereby authorizes the revision of the out of county participant fee schedule.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this Resolution shall
be made available to the Ocean County Department of Finance and Ocean County
Sheriff's Office.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
tion#: 2022001174
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Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official ResohﬁTon#: 2022001174

SCHEDULE A

Basic Course for Police Officers (BCPO)
Special Law Enforcement Officer IT (SLEO II)

Basic Course for Corrections Officers (BCCO)

'SLEO II to BCPO Waiver Program

Special Law Enforcement Officer I (SLEO 1)

Res-Pg:k.20-3

$1,500.00
$1,500.00
$1,500.00
$ 500.00

$ 250.00
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Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the County Administrator to execute a Site Work Agreement with the New Jersey
Department of Transportation for the proposed improvements to U.S. Route 9, Township of Toms River.

Official Resolution# |2022001127
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-21

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guaor”

Clerk Of The Board
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RESOLUTION

August 17,2022

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Department of Transportation (NJDOT) plans to
undertake certain improvements to U.S. Route 9 in Toms River Township; and

WHEREAS, as part of those improvements, the NJDOT proposes to work within a
1,459 S.F. frontage area and modify the access points to Block 172, Lot 29, Toms River
Township, which is owned by the County of Ocean, to conform to the current requirements of
the New Jersey Highway Access Management Code, and therefore requires a Temporary
Construction Easement from the County; and

WHEREAS, the County Engineering Department has determined that the proposed
modiﬁcations will not adversely affect the County’s use of the property;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY as
follows:

1.  The Ocean County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute the

NIDOT Site Work Agreement on the behalf of the Ocean County Board of

Commissioners.

2. The Ocean County Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to execute any

and all other documents as may be necessary to implement and carry out the intent of

this Resolution.

3. A certified copy of this Resolution, together with a fully executed copy of the

NJDOT Site Work Agreement shall remain on ﬁie and be available for public

inspectién at the office of the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners.

4,  Certified copies of this Resolution shall be made available to New Jersey

Department of Transportation, Ocean County Engineering Department, Finance

Department, and the Transportation Services Department.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutign#: 2022001127




Res-Pg:k.22-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the execution of a Sidebar Agreement with Office and Professional Employees
International Union, Local 32, regarding Vehicle Services Supervisors.

Official Resolution# |2022001128
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-22

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatte \. Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.22-2

RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZING ENTRANCE INTO A SIDEBAR AGREEMENT WITH
OFFICE AND PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL
UNION, LOCAL 32, REGARDING VEHICLE SERVICES -
SUPERVISORS

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean (“County”) is a party to a collective negotiations
agreement with Office and Professional Employees International Union, Local 32 (“OPEIU”),
having a term of April 1, 2020 through March 31, 2023; and

WHEREAS, said collective negotiations agreement sets forth the terms and conditions

of employment for blue collar supervisory employees; and

WHEREAS, there is a need to have a blue collar supervisor on-call within the Vehicle
Services Department for issues which arise outside of normal working hours to not only protect
County property, but also to ensure vehicles are in proper working order for the welfare and

safety of County employees and the residents of Ocean County; and

WHEREAS, the negotiation representatives of the County and the OPEIU have
reached a Sidebar Agreement relative to an on-call stipend for blue collar supervisors within

the Vehicle Services Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, on
this 17% day of August 2022, that the Sidebar Agreement with Office and Professional

Employees International Union, Local 32, attached hereto, is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this Resolution, and the
executed collective negotiations agreement, shall be sent to the Office and Professional
Employees International Union, Local-32, County Vehicle Services Department, Employee

Relations Department, Finance Department, and any individual requesting it.

Introduced on August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resoldtjon#: 2022001128




Res-Pg:k.23-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the execution of a Collective Negotiations Agreement with the OC Office of the Fire
Marshal Local #98 F.M.B.A., for the period of 4/1/2022 through 3/31/2025.

Official Resolution# |2022001129
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-23

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ 0 S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guanor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.23-2

RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZING ENTRANCE INTO A COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATIONS
AGREEMENT WITH THE FIREMEN’'S MUTUAL BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION,
LOCAL 98

August 17, 2022

WHEREAS, the County of Ocean (“‘County”) and the Firemen's Mutual
Benevolent Association, Local 98 (“FMBA") are parties to a collective negotiations
agreement which expired on March 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the FMBA represents regular full-time employees holding the title
of Assistant Fire Marshal; and

WHEREAS, the County and FMBA have engaged in negotiations for a

successor agreement to the one that expired on March 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the negotiating teams of the parties have reached an
understanding, which has been approved and agreed by a majority vote of the

membership of the Firemen’s Mutual Benevolent Association, Local 98.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, on
this 17t day of August, 2022, that the collective negotiations agreement between the
County of Ocean and the Firemen’s Mutual Benevolent Association, Local 98,
representing full-time employees holding the title of Assistant Fire Marshal, for the
period of April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2025, is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Director of the Board of Commissioners is
hereby authorized and directed to execute the collective negotiations agreement
between the County of Ocean and the Firemen’'s Mutual Benevolent Association,
Local 98.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this Resolution, and the
executed collective negotiations agreement, shall be sent to the County Administrator,

Director of Erhployee Relations, Finance Department, and the appropriate union

officials.
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001129




Res-Pg:k.24-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Opposing New Jersey Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control's Special Conditions on Limited
Brewery Licenses.

Official Resolution# [2022001175
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-24

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guottor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.24-2

RESOLUTION
AUGUST 17,2022
WHEREAS, the New Jersey Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (NJABC)

issued new special conditions on each limited brewery licensee in the state beginning Friday,
July 1, 2022; and

WHEREAS, under the license conditions, craft breweries are limited to hold 25 on-
site activities open to the general public annually, as well as 52 private parties. Breweries can

also attend 12 off-premises event, such as town, charitable and holiday celebrations; and

WHEREAS, under these license conditions, craft breweries have restrictions on the
types of live or record music they can play or host, limits what food options they can make
available to customers, bans the sale of coffee, and prohibits the sale of soft drinks and other

non-alcoholic beverages not made onsite at the brewery; and

WHEREAS, according to the national Brewers Association, the one-hundred and
forty-one craft breweries operating in New Jersey in calendar year 2021 contributed almost $2
billion to the state’s economy, creating over 11,000 jobs at an annual income of more than

$55,000 per employee; and
WHEREAS, Ocean County is home to twelve microbreweries; and

WHEREAS, visiting these microbreweries is about each of their unique experience,
and these proprietors have found exciting ways to engage other local businesses, vendors and

artists in their communities; and

WHEREAS, these new conditions will force local, homegrown small businesses to
rethink business models and closely consider which events they should participate in or host,

which will reduce their profits and their opportunities to engage in their communities; and

WHEREAS, On August 8, 2022 NJ Legislative Bill Number S3042 sponsored by
Senator Michael Testa (R-1) was introduced to allow a limited brewery license holder to
engage in certain activities, and establishes farm brewery and winery-brewery license and other

unreasonable regulatory restrictions; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY,
strongly opposes the New Jersey Division of Alcoholic Beverage Control’s Special Conditions
on Limited Brewery Licensees and calls on the NJABC to suspend enforcement until

legislation can be adopted addressing the issue.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that copies of this resolution be forwarded to each
municipality in Ocean County, all the counties of New Jersey, the leaders of the New Jersey

Legislature and Governor Phil Murphy.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutigdn#: 2022001175




Res-Pg:k.25-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the Release of Bonds for Road Opening Permits.

Official Resolution# |2022001149
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem k-25

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:k.25-2

RESOLUTION

August 17,2022

WHEREAS, the County Engineer has approved the release of bonds forroad
opening permits, which bonds were posted according to Resolution, adopted by the Board on
August 16, 1989.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, that
the County Comptroller is hereby authorized and directed to release the following bonds,

which bonds were posted the following road opening permits:

NAME PERMIT NO. ISSUED AMOUNT TYPE

A to Z Site Contractors, Inc. 21-351 7/8/21 $1,000.00 Cash
Bond #1006

(Bond Payable to Baron Builders, 944 East County Line Road, L.akewood, NJ
08701)

Whiting DG, LLC . 21-605 9/10/21 $1,100.00 Cash
Bond #133 .

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that certified copies of this Resolution

shall be made available to the Ocean County Finance Department and the Engineering
~ Department. i

Introduced OA‘ BAUuBISt I AGRZ30NDS\Resolutions\Bond Release Resolutions\2022 Resolutions\August 17, 2022.doc
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Reso|ytion#: 2022001149




Res-Pg:1.1-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey
Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the Clerk of the Board to accept and/or record legal instruments.

Official Resolution# [2022001176
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem I-1

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatte \. Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:1.2-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Approving the Pre-Board Meeting Minutes of 6/29/2022.

Official Resolution# |2022001177
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem -2

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q g %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:1.2-2

MEMORANDUM

To: Members of the Board of Commissioners
From: Carl W. Block, County Adrhinistratow
 Date: July 1, 2022

Subject: Summary of Pre-Board Meeting of June 29, 2022

'Copies to: Michelle I. Gunther, Clerk of the Board
Michael J. Fiure, Assistant County Administrator
Robert Greitz, Director of Employee Relations

Director John P. Kelly opened the meeting at 4:00 PM and read the Statement of
Compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act. The Clerk of the Board called the roll. '

Present:
Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
- Commissioner Gary Quinn

Not Present:
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Carl W. Block, County Administrator
Christine Allen, Recording Secretary
Michelle I. Gunther, Clerk of the Board ~ .
Robert Greitz, Director of Employee Relations
Michael J. Fiure, Assistant County Administrator
John Ernst, County Engineer

- Julie N. Tarrant, Comptroller/CFO
John C. Sahradnik, Jr., County Counsel

Director Kelly and Mr. Ernst reviewed the items listed on the attached Engmeenng y
Department agenda ‘which included the recommendation to advertise for the Ocean -
County underground storage tank removal and upgrade project at the Transportation
Garage and Administration Building in Toms River. Mr. Ernst discussed the
recommendation to award the replacement of the Railroad Avenue Bridge, Structure No.
1508-005, carrying Railroad Avenue over Westecunk Creek in Eagleswood Township to

"Walters Marine Construction, Inc. from Ocean View, NJ in the amount of $2,282,282.65.
This award is contingent upon NJDOT approval. There were no questions or comments
and all items will be listed on the Board Agenda for the July 6, 2022 Board meeting.

Introduced on: Kgmmissiener Haines and Mr. Agliata discussed muitiple Open Space Acquisitions
g?ffggﬁ‘;‘;;‘oqggqmmﬁﬁfﬁi? the Natural Lands Trust Fund Advisory Committee. -Mr. John Kiusman
of Hope Chapel Road in Lakewood Township has offered to donate a 2.49-acre property



Members of the Board of Commissioners Res-Pg:1.2-3

July 1, 2022 .
Summary of the Pre-Board meeting of June 29, 2022
Page 2 ' _

including a house, garage, and greenhouse structures. The Parks Department has
indicated an interest in using the property as an arboretum. Berkeley Township has
supported the acquisition of a 0.16-acre property located on Dorrance Drive in Berkeley
Township adjacent to 700 acres of existing NLTF open space property in the Good Luck
Point Project Area. ,The owner accepted a negotiated offer of $165,000.00. Berkeley

Township also supported the acquisition of a 0.25-acre parcel on Good Luck Drive. The

owner accepted a negotiated offer of $25,000. Acquisition of this property will preserve
the last undeveloped beach front property within the Good Luck Point Project Area. A
0.172-acre inholding lot within the Mill Creek Headwaters project area in Berkeley
Township was also recommended. The property owner accepted a negotiated offer of

'$9,000.00. The Mill Creek Headwaters project area includes approximately 74 acres of

Township owned property recently approved for donation to the County.

Ms. Gunther reviewed the Clerk of the Board’s agenda for the Board meeting of
July 6, 2022 There were no questions or comments. .

Director KeIIy‘asked the Board members for comments.

Commissioner Crea stated that three Household Hazardous Waste Program events
will take place in the Fall of 2022. Lacey Township DPW will host a collection on Saturday,
September 10, 2022. On Saturday October 8, 2022 Toms River will hold one at the FOP
Lot, and on October 29; 2022, Long Beach Township. will host an event at the DPW Lot.

, ' Director Kelly mentioned that the Board members should enjoy the Holiday
weekend while celebrating the birth of our nation..

There were no additional comments.

Ms. Gunther read the resolution to move to closed session.

On a motion by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, the
meeting moved to Closed Session at 4:21pm for personnel discussion, appointments,
reappointments, property acquisition and p055|ble litigation. The motion was unanimously

carried.

The meeting returned to Open Session at 4:35pm. There being no further
business, on a motion by Commissioner Crea, seconded by Commissioner Haines, the

‘meeting adjourned at 4:35pm.

CWB/ca
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adoptedon: = - August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001177
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REVISED - FINAL Res-Pg:l.2-4

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AGENDA

Pre-Board Meeting of: June 29, 2022

For Board Meeting of: : ' ~ July 6,2022°

RECOMMEND ADVERTISEMENT

1.

‘Ocean County UST Removal & Upgrade Project Transportation Garage & Administration Building,
Township of Toms River

RECOMMEND AWARD

Replacement of Railroad Avenue Bridge, Structure No. 1508-005, Carrying Railroad Avenue Over
Westecunk Creek, Township of Eagleswood .

Contractor: Walters Marine Construction, Inc., Ocean View, NJ .

Amount: $2,282,282.65

Award Contingent Upon NJDOT Approval

MISCELLANEOUS
1. - Bond Release Resolution.
2. Resolution amending the Ocean County Annual Transportation Program for Fiscal Year 2018 to include

Introduced on:
Adopted on:

the Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Brookside Drive from NJ State Highway No. 37 East to Cedar
Grove Road, Township of Toms River.

Resolution authorizing a grant extension request for the NJ Department of Transportation FY2020 Annual
Transportation Program for the Reconstruction and Resurfacing-of Portions of Certain County Roads, -
Contract 2020B, Various Townships. :

Resolution authorizing a grant extension request for the NJ Depar&nent of Transportation FY2020 Annual
Transportation Program for the Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Brookside Dnve from NJ State
Highway No. 37 East to Cedar Grove Road, Township of Toms River.

Resolution authorizing the revision of the Traffic Signal at the intersection of County Road #11 (Route
549/Hooper Avenue) and County Road #30 (Madison Avenue) (DVR-24) in the Township of Toms River. -

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a purchase order in an amount not to exceed'$181,217 28t0 T &M
Associates for Construction -Project Management and Inspection Services for Reconstruction and
Resurfacing of Portions of Certain County Roads, Contract 2020D (QP2021-121).

"Resolution authorizing the issuance of a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $350,155.26 to Urban

Engineers, Inc. for Construction Project Management and Inspection Services for Replacement of Duck
Farm Bridge (Structure No. 1506-013);, Hooper Avenue (CR 631) Over Cedar Bndge Branch of the
Met u%%%%kﬁﬁr Brick Township (QP2021-121).

August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001177



8. Resolution -authorizing the- issuance of a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $10,§%§)-@Ptg 'l!ign-gl
& Parrello Associates, P.A. for Consultant Material Sampling, Inspection and Testing Services for
Replacement of Duck Farm Bridge (Structure No. 1506-013), Hooper Avenue (CR 631) Over Cedar
Bridge Branch of Metedeconk River, Brick Township (QP2022-87).

9.  Resolution amending account numbers for a Resolution adopted on February 5, 2020 to Assuncao
Brothers, Inc. for the Construction of Traffic Signal at the Intersection of Prospect Street and
Massachusetts Avenue, Lakevyood Township (B2020-19E). '

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001177



Res-Pg:1.2-6

"MOTION -

June 29, 2022

BE IT RESOLVED, THAT A CLOSED SESSION WILL BE HELD AT THIS TIME TO
DISCUSS:

Personhel. ~ Leaves of absence, change of position, titles and -
' updates on filing of positions and promotional - .
~ appointments. o

Appointments oC Agricul’rure Development Board
OC Mental Health Board

Reappointments None at this time
Discussion None at this fime
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE MINUTES OF THIS MEETING WILL BE MAD'E. '

AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON FINAL ACTION BEING TAKEN IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SAID LAW.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001177




Res-Pg:1.3-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

Agenda: Approving the Board Meeting Minutes of 7/6/2022.

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Official Resolution# |2022001178
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem I-3

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY g - g o lw | yw..
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q g %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:1.4-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Approving the Pre-Board Meeting Minutes of 7/13/2022.

Official Resolution# |2022001179
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem I-4

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q g %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:1.4-2

MEMORANDUM

To: Members of the Board of Commissioners

" From: Carl W. Block, County Administrato%&
Date: Juiy 14, 2022

Subject: = Summary of Pre~-Board Meeting of July 13, 2022

Copies to: Michelle I. Gunther, Clerk of the Board
Michael J. Fiure, Assistant County Administrator . =~
Robert Greitz, Director of Employee Relations

* Director John P. Kelly opened the meeting at 4:00 PM and read the Statement of
Compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act. The Clerk of the Board called the roll.

Present:

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Not Present: . ' ;
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Carl W. Block, County Administrator
Christine Allen, Recording Secretary
Michelle I. Gunther, Clerk of the Board
Robert Greitz, Director of Employee.Relations
Michael J. Fiure, Assistant County Administrator
John Ernst, County Engineer
~ Julie N. Tarrant, Comptroller/CFO
John C. Sahradnik, Jr., County Counsel

Director Kelly and Mr. Ernst reviewed the items listed on the attached Engineering
. Department agenda which included the permission to advertise for Traffic Signal
Upgrades, Contract 2022A in Toms River, Point Pleasant Beach, and Lakewood
Townships. The recommendation to award the Reconstruction and Resurfacing of
Brookside Drive from State Route 37 East to Cedar Grove Road in Toms River Townships
No. II. to Earle Asphalt from Farmingdale, NJ in the amount of $1,438,513.13. Earle
Asphalt was also the lowest bidder for Contract 2020B for the Reconstruction and
Resurfacing of Portions of Certain County Roads in the amount of $3,891,513.13. The
Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Washington Street (C.R. #4) from Lexington Avenue
introduced i@ Whixggeursﬁyggﬁe in the Township of Toms River will also be awarded to Earle Asphalt
Adopted on:iN the ameunt0£2$2,383,513.13. The Replacement of the Duck Farm Bridge (Structure
Official Resopffion# SB80'1), on Hooper Avenue (C.R. 631) over the Cedar Bridge Branch of the



/

Members of the Board of Commissioners ‘ Res-Pg:l.4-3
July 14, 2022 '

Summary of the Pre-Board meetlng of July 13, 2022

Page 2

Metedeconk River in Brick Township. The Contractor is Rencor, Inc. from Somerville, NJ
in the amount of $4,106,036.35. All of these recommendations for.award are contingent
upon NIDOT approval. There were no questions or comments and all items will be listed
on the Board Agenda for the July 20, 2022 Board meeting.

Ms. Gunther reviewed the Clerk of the Board’s agenda for the Board meeting of
July 20, 2022. There were no questions or comments.

Director Kelly asked the Board members for comments.

Commissioner Haines enjoyed atténdihg the Boy Scout Court of Honor where
certificates and awards were presented to Charles Koch, III for becoming an Eagle Scout.

There were no additional comments.
~ Ms. Gunther read the resolution to move to closed session.

‘On a motion by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Quinn, the
meeting moved to Closed Session at 4:15pm for personnel discussion, appointments,
reappointments, property acqmsutlon and possible litigation. The motion was unanimously
carrled

The meeting returned to Open Session at 5:25pm. There being no further
business, on a motion by Commissioner Crea, seconded by Commissioner Haines, the
meeting adJourned at 5:25pm.

CWB/ca
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001179



Res-Pg:l.4-4

FINAL

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AGENDA

Pre-Board Meeting of: ' July 13, 2022

For Board Meeting of: . : ' ' July 20, 2022

RECOMMEND ADVERTISEMENT

1. Construction of Traffic Signal Upgrades Contract 20224, Various Townships

\

RECOMMEND AWARD

1. Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Brookside Drive from NJ State Highway No. 37 East to Cedar
Grove Road, Township of Toms River, No. Il -
. Contractor: Earle Asphalt Company, Farmmgdale NJ

Amount: $1,438,513.13

Award Contingent Upon NJDOT Approval

2. Reconstruction and Resurfacmg of Portions of Certam County Roads, Contract 2020B
Contractor: Earle Asphalt Company, Farmingdale, NJ
Amount: $3,891,513.13
Award Contingent Upon NJDOT Approval

3. Reconstruction and Resurfacing of Washington Street (C R. #4) from Lexington Avenue to
Whittier ~ Avenue, Township of Toms River

Contractor: Earle Asphalt Company, Farmingdale, NJ

Amount: $2,383,513.13

Award Contingent Upon NJDOT Approval -

4. Replacement of Duck Farm Bridge (Structure No. 1506-013), Hooper Avenue (C.R. 631) over -
Cedar Bridge Branch of the Metedeconk River, Brick Township

Contractor: Rencor, Inc., Somerville, NJ

Amount: $4,106,036.35

Award Contingent Upon NJDOT Approval

MISCELLANEOUS
‘1.  Bond Release Resolution.

2. Resolution authorizing the installation of safety measures at the intersection of County Road #55
(Route 618/Veterans Boulevard/Serpentine Drive) and Serpentine Drive in the Township of Berkeley.

J

Introducedon: °  August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001179




Introduced on:

Adopted on:

Res-Pg:1.4-5

Resolution authorizing the installation of safety measures on County Road #10 (Cedar Avenue) in the
Township of Lacey.

.Resolution authorizing the execution of an Agreement between the County of Ocean, the State of New '

Jersey, and the Borough of Point Pleasant for the vacation of a portion of lands bisecting Block 39, .
Lot 1 and Block 169.01, Lot 34, a/k/a Old Route 88, located in Point Pleasant Borough, Ocean County,
New Jersey.

Resolution acknowledging the following twenty (20) firms are qualified and eligible to perform On-
Call Environmental Engineering Professional Services, Where and As Directed by the Ocean County
Engineer on a project specific contract basis: T&M Associates; Dewberry Engineers, Inc.; Mott
MacDonald, LLC; ACT Engineers, Inc.; Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc. (dba Maser Consultmg)
NVS5, Inc.; Greenman-Pedersen, Inc.; CME Associates; BL Companies Architects/Engineers New
Jersey, Inc.; French & Parrello Assoc1ates P.A.; Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc.; Johnson, Mirmiran,
& Thompson Inc.; Suburban Consulting Engineers, Inc.; Environmental Resolutlons Inc.; Churchill
Consulting Engmeers PC; Matrix New World Engmeermg, Land Surveying and Landscape
Architecture, PC; Remington & Vernick Engineers; Engineering & Land Planmng Associates, Inc.;
E2 Project Management LLC and JM Sorge, Inc.

'Resolutlon authorizing the issuance of a purchase order in an amount not to éxceed $176,691.72 to

Dewberry Engineers, Inc. for Construction Project Management and Inspection Services for
Replacement of Railroad Avenue Bridge, Structure No. 1508-005, Carrymg Railroad Avenue Over
Westecunk Creek Township-of Eagleswood (QP2021- 121)

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $7,790.00 to
Atlantic Engineering Laboratories, Inc. for Consultant Material Sampling, Inspection and Testing
Services for the Replacement of Railroad Avenue Bridge, Structure No. 1508-005), Carrying Railroad
Avenue Over Westecunk Creek, Township of Eagleswood (QP2022-87). .

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

~ Official Resolution#: 2022001179



- Res-Pg:1.4-6

MOTION

July 13, 2022

-BE' IT RESOLVED, THAT .A CLOSED SESSION WILL BE HELD AT THIS TIME TO
DISCUSS: C - ‘

Personnel Leoves'of absence, change of posi’rio'n, tittes and -
updates - on filling of positions and. promotional
appointments. :

Appointments  OC Utilities Authority

Reappointiments OC Mental Health Board
. OC Transportation Advisory Board

Discussion | Lease Agreements
Litigation

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE MINUTES OF T_HIS MEETING WILL BE MADE.
AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON FINAL ACTION BEING TAKEN IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SAID LAW.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001179




Res-Pg:1.5-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

Agenda: Approving the Board Meeting Minutes of 7/20/2022.

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Official Resolution# |2022001180
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem I-5

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY g - g o lw | yw..
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michate \. Guotnor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:1.6-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Approving the Pre-Board Meeting Minutes of 7/27/2022.

Official Resolution# |2022001181
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem I-6

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER % @ % ?‘fi Q g %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:1.6-2

MEMORANDUM

To: Members, Board of Commissioners
From: Carl W. Block, AdministratorW
Date: - July 28, 2022

Subject: Summary of Pre-Board Meeting of July 27, 2022

Copies to: Michelle Gunther, Clerk of the Board _
Michael J. Fiure, Assistant Administrator | J
- Robert Greitz, Director, Employee Relations

Director John 'P. Kelly opened the meeting at 4:00 PM and read the Statément of
Compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act. The Deputy Clerk of the Board called the
roll. . ' :

Present:

Director John P. Kelly ‘
Commissioner Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Carl W. Block, County Administrator

Deborah A. Gries, Recording Secretary

Danielle DiStasi-Valdez, Deputy Clerk of the Board
Robert Greitz, Director of Employee Relations
Michael J. Fiure, Assistant County Administrator
John Ernst, County Engineer

Julie N. Tarrant, Comptroller/CFO

John C. Sahradnik, County Counsel

Absent:
Commissioner v,Gary Quinn

A At the request of Director Kélly, Ms. Danieile DiStasi-Valdez, Deputy Clerk of the
Board requested a moment of silence in remembrance of Assemblyman Ron Dancer, who
served the people of Ocean County for nearly 40 years.

Introduced on: Aﬁgust 17,2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolutiori#: 2022001181



' Res-Pg:1.6-3

" Members, Board of Commlsswners
July 28, 2022
Summary of the Pre-Board meeting of July 27,2022
Page 2

Director Kelly introduced County Engineer, Mr. John Ernst to discuss preliminary
engineering and environmental permitting for operation improvements to the Garden
State Parkway (GSP) mileposts 80 to 83. Director Kelly stated that a few weeks ago™ -
Engineering met with the New Jersey Turnpike Authority (NJTA). Mr. Ernst reported - -
these improvements will affect the GSP between mileposts 80 — 83 which includes Rt..
9/Dover Road, Water Street and Lakehurst Roads and Route 37. The purpose will be to
improve accessibility, increase safety and travel times. Currently, this section of the GSP
‘ma|nI|ne and ramps, as well as, the roadways surrounding these exits are very congested
therefore, become unsafe and prone to accidents. The work is expected to include
operational and safety improvements, extended auxiliary lanes, improve substandard
shoulders and complete missing ramp movements, specifically at Interchange 82. This
will be designed similarly to Interchange 89 improvements at Route 70. Commissioner

! Haines reiterated this is a very dangerous area and it is great to hear of these
improvements. Mr. Ernst stated this is projected to be a fo_ur (4) year project. Director
Kelly mentioned it takes quite some time to make such improvements. He then asked
- for Mr. Ernst’s opinion of this project. Mr. Ernst replied that he agrees with the project
and believes it will assist in safety of vehicles and drivers, not only for getting on and off
the parkway, but in the surrounding areas as-well. Director Kelly stated the original idea
of the GSP was to have less exits and today look at how many exits and entrances there
are. Director Kelly then asked if there were any questions. Being none, he then asked
Mr. Ernst to review the Engineering Agenda. -

Mr. Ernst requested permission to advertise for traffic safety improvements on
Whitesville Road from Route 571 to Cox Cro Road. Mr. Ernst then explained a few of the
safety improvements planned such as incorporating a three (3) lane section and traffic
signals. Director Vicari asked if these improvements were considered in the plan from a
few years ago. Mr. Ernst said they were. Mr. Ernst stated there were other miscellaneous
items. Director Kelly thanked Mr. Ernst and asked the Board if there were any questions.
Being none, Director Kelly introduced Commissioner Vicari and Mr. Agliata, Planning
Director.

Commissioner Vicari thanked the Director and said it is all good news. The FAA is
very generous and I do not think Ocean County has ever lost a grant. This award is for
the Airport Apron Rehabilitation Grant Phase 3 and 4. Mr. Agliata showed the Board a
map of the airport area. Commissioner Vicari stated most of the funding stays in Ocean

* County and this work will help in keeping construction workers worklng Approval would
be pIaced on the next Board meeting, August 3, 2022.

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: \  August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001181



Res-Pg:1.6-4

Members, Board of Commissioners

July 28, 2022

Summary of the Pre—Board meeting-of JuIy 27, 2022
Page 3

A discussion ensued about monies received from the FAA over the past years,
.the work that has been done at the airport, including but not limited to twelve (12) new
hangars built and rented, future building of p055|bly seven (7) more hangars and safety
features, such as the crosswinds runway.

All work is built to FAA regulations. Commissioner Vicari explained that the alrport
is basically self-serving financially through its rentals. Mr. Agliata explained various areas
on the map for clarification of the proposed rehabilitation of the airport apron. This is a
four (4) phase project. Mr. Agliata stated,the total cost of all phases of the Apron
Rehabilitation Project is $3,514,399 and the FAA grants will cover $3,497,732 with the
County’s financial contribution of $16,667. The total amount received from the FAA grant
for Phases 3 and 4 is $1,453,652 with $16,667 in matching funds. Construction. began
June 2022 and has a project completion in early Fall 2022.

Director Kelly asked Deputy Clerk of the Board, Ms. DiStasi-Valdez to review the
Preliminary Board Agerida for the Board Meeting of August 3, 2022. Ms. DiStasi-Valdez
reviewed the Preliminary Board Agenda and stated there were seven (7) ordinances for
public hearing. Director Kelly then explained to the Board there will only be three (3)
Commissioners at the August 3, 2022 Board meeting. Ms. DiStasi-Valdez noted this
information and continued the review of the agenda. Director Kelly asked for any
comments. There were none. ' '

The Director asked for Commissioners’ comments.

: Commissioner Vicari commented on the people who had to work outside through
the heatwave. He stated the HVAC systems are breaking down due to the strain on them
due to the heat and that parts are very difficult to receive in a timely fashion. He
suggested buying repair parts and keeping some of them in inventory for such a purpose.
Commissioner Vicari will request a report on the various necessary parts to maintain the
systems’ operation. These parts would be expected to be used within a 2-year period.

Commissioner Vicari then stated that with this prolonged heat, mail order
medications are a concern not only for the senior community. but for anyone using this
service. Some medications tend to lose their strength or can even go bad in intense heat.
A discussion ensued amongst the Commissioners regarding this issue. Commissioner -
Vicari emphasized, the heat can cause a decrease in the drugs’ effectiveness.

introduced on:  ~ August 17,2022
Adopted on: - August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001181




Res-Pg:1.6-5 *

Members, Board of Commissioners.

July 28, 2022 :

Summary of the Pre-Board meeting of July 27 2022
Page 4 .

Commissioner Haines stated she and a group of staff members visited various

farmlands within Ocean County to celebrate 25 years of farmland preservation. Each of

- the farms voiced a difficulty with not having much rain this season. Commissioner Haines
agreed this is a problem for the farmers and spoke about the severity of the drought.
She stated the group did not get to visit all the farms, but she and the staff will be
planning to visit those not visited in the future. Commissioner Haines shared a few of
the more interesting aspects from some of the farm visits. Commissioner Vicari stated: .
Assemblyman Ron Dancer was a strong supporter of farmland for many years.-

~Administrator Block stated Ocean ‘County has received a CAFRA permit for the .
Stafford Library final version. He said there is enough space for the library and parking, -
however that is all. Ms. Julie Tarrant, Comptroller will be coordinating meetings moving
forward on this project. Administrator Block distributed a map explaining the Stafford
Library project and said he and Mr. Ernst are considering recommending bidding the site
work now and the building when the plans are ready.

There were no additional comments.
Ms. DiStasi-Valdez read the resolution to move to closed session.

On a motion by Commissioner Haines, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, the '
meeting moved to Closed Session at 4:39 p.m. for personnel discussion, .appointments,
reappointments, property acquisition and possible lltlgatlon The motion was
unanimously carried.

The meeting returned to Open Session at 5:17 PM. There being no further
business, on'a motion by Commissioner Crea, seconded by Commissioner Vicari, the
meeting adjourned at 5:17 PM. -

CWB/dag
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001181



- REVISED - FINAL _ Res-Pg:1.6-6

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AGENDA

Pre-Board Meeting of: - - ' . July 27, 2022

For Board Meeting of: - August 3, 2022

RECOMMEND ADVERTISEMENT

1. -

‘Traffic Safety Improvements along County Route 527 from C.R. 571 to Cox Cro Road, TOWHShlp of .
Toms River

MISCELLANEOUS

1.

2.

Bond Release Resolution.

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $68,974.39 to Stantec
Consulting Services, Inc. for additional funds for Traffic Engineering Professional Services for Cross

~ Street (C.R. 626) Reconstruction,” Augusta Boulevard to East Veterans Highway (C.R.-528), Jackson and.
" Lakewood Townships (PP2018-60).

Resolution authorizing the issnance of a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $30,000.00 to Paulus,
Sokolowski & Sartor, LLC for additional funds for Professional Engineering Services for Underground
Storage Tanks Site Investigation at the Transportation Garage and County Administrative Building, Toms
River Township (QP2021-64).

Resolution authorizing the issuance of a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $34,894.31 to French
& Parrello Associates, P.A. for additional funds for Bridge Design Services for the Replacement of

Railroad Avenue Bridge, Structure No. 1508-005, Carrying Railroad Avenue Over Westecunk Creek, g

Eagleswood Township (QP2018-170).

Resolution authorizing the execution of a Shared Services Agreement between the County of Ocean and
the Borough of Ship Bottom for the construction and installation of County storm drainage system located
at the 3rd Street Public Works Garage, Ship Bottom Borough.

Resolution authorizing an Agreement between the County of Ocean and the Township of Lakewood for the
purpose of installation and operation of a traffic signal at the intersection of County Road #9 (Route
526/West County Line Road) and Brookwood Parkway in the Township of Lakewood (LKWD-74).

Introduced on: August 17, 2022 . -

Adopted on:

August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001181



Res-Pg:1.6-7

MOTION
July 27, 2022
., BE IT RESOLVED, THAT A CLOSED SESSION WILL BE HELD AT THIS TIME TO

DISCUSS: :

Personnel Leaves of absence, change of position, fitlles and
updates on filling of positions,  promotional -
appointments and other personnel matters.

Appointments None at this time. !

Reappointments None at this time

Discussion None at this fime

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE MINUTES OF THIS MEETING WILL BE MADE

AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON FINAL ACTION BEING TAKEN IN ACCORDANCE W
ITH THE PROVISIONS OF SAID LAW. '

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022
Official Resolution#: 2022001181



Res-Pg:1.7-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Approving the distribution of Requests for Qualifications and/or Requests for Proposals as follows: 1)
Nikon D5 Camera Upgrade for Existing DCS5 Alternative Light System.

Official Resolution# |2022001182
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem I-7

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY ﬁ o = O (B e ’w"
COMMISSIONER i @ g ?‘fi Q é %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v

Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie \. Guotior”

Clerk Of The Board



- Res-Pg:l.7-2

MOTION
. August 17, 2022

Motion approving the distribution of Requests for Proposals and/or Requests for
Qualifications for Professional Services and/or Extraordinary Unspecifiable
Services and approving the selection criteria contained therein for the following
projects in accordance with N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.1.

Requests for Proposals/Qualifications:

Nikon D5 Cél-mera Upgrade for Existing DCS5 Alternative Light System

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022,
Official Resolution#: 2022001182



Res-Pg:1.8-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date:

Location:

Agenda: Approving the plans and specifications and authorizing the

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

County Engineer to advertise for the

receipt of bids for the Improvements to Castlebuono Avenue from Hooper Avenue to Salerno Drive, Township

of Toms River.

Official Resolution# [2022001183
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem -8

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guanor”

Clerk Of The Board



-\

Res-Pg:1.8-2

MOTION

August 17, 2022

* On motion duly made, seconded and carried, the plans and specifications for the
Improvements to Castlebuono Avenue from Hoope’r Avenue to Salerno Drive, Toms River

Township were approved and the proper officers of the Board were authorized and directed to

advertise.
¢
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001183




Res-Pg:1.9-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE
OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Director John P. Kelly

Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea
Commissioner Gary Quinn

Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari

Board Meeting Agenda
Date:
Location:

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, New Jersey
08754-2191

Tel: (732)929-2005
Fax: (732)505-1918

August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM

Administration Building
Room 119

101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Approving the Master Payroll paid on 8/17/2022 for the payroll period of 7/21/2022 through 8/3/2022
and for the payroll period of 8/4/2022 through 8/17/2022, in the amount of $6,195,763.56.

Official Resolution# [2022001184
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem -9

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v v
Crea v v |v
Quinn v v
Vicari v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING

REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatinor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:1.9-2

COUNTY OF OCEAN

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

JULIE N. TARRANT CATHY A. ERNST
County Comptroller & CFO Assistant Comptroller

August 12, 2022

Board of Commissioners
Ocean County Administration Building
Toms River, New Jersey 08754

Dear Board Members:

Accompanying this letter, you will find a copy of the Master Payroll for the payment of
all employees of the County of Ocean, setting forth the amounts to be paid on August 17, 2022.
This is for the payroll period of July 21, 2022, through August 3, 2022, and for the payroll period
of August 4, 2022 through August 17, 2022. These payments were made in accordance with the

Resolution passed by your Board on June 21, 1972.
/\' ery truly yours

Julie N. Tarrant
omptroller

JNT/dmd
Pay 22-17
Pd. 08/17/22

) SJUGQ‘J{)& 30
SR LAY 40 v

FER=RARRL
SERNELEE

Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

PE LRI UCRBMRRSIRAAGN BUILDING, TOMS RIVER, NEW JERSEY 08754-2191 % (732) 929-2127 % 1-800-722-0201 % FAX # (732) 506-5129



08/12/22

COUNTY OF OCEAN, NJ Res-Pg:1.9-3
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

MASTER PAYROLL CERTIFICATION

AMOUNT _$ 6,195,763.56

PERIOD

FROM: July 21, 2022 TO: August 3, 2022
FROM: August 4, 2022 TO: August 17, 2022
FUND BANK # CHECK # AMOUNT
016 01 wire 5,363,225.18
020 07 wire 0.00
1022 09 wire 2,814.76
905 26 wire 6,361.86
" 209 \ 67 wire 727,711.24
210 68 wire 77,108.09
211 62 wire 11,509.64
225 .97 transfer 7,032.82

Julie N. Tarrant

the within County Payroil

person as submitted by the various Department Heads.

Received by the Board of Commissioners

being duly sworn according to law, upon her oath, depose and says that

has been exémined by her and has approved the amount of wagés for each

i la i ) UOURN

N. Tarrant, Comptroller

Clerk of the Board

~

Introduced on:
Adopted on:

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022

Official Resolution#: 2022001184



Res-Pg:m.1-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the installation of safety measures at the intersection of County Road #50 (East Bay
Avenue) and Marsha Drive, Township of Stafford.

Official Resolution# |2022001207
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem m-1

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ g S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v |v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board



Res-Pg:m.1-2

RESOLUTION

August 17,2022

WHEREAS, as a result of an engineering and traffic investigation it is deemed
necessary to install safety measures at the intersection of County Road #50 (East Bay Avenue)
and Marsha Drive in the Township of Stafford.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AS
FOLLOWS:

Traffic striping, signing and a channelizing system is installed as a safety improvement

as follows:
LOCATION DESIGNATED PLAN
CR #50 (East Bay Avenue) Plan # 31 050 0904 — Stage 1
and Marsha Drive Plan Sheet # 1 of 1
Township-of Stafford Date August, 2022

Plan# 31 050 0904 — Stage 2
Plan Sheet # 1 of 1
Date August, 2022

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all former resolutions in conflict, or inconsistent
with the provisions of this resolution are hereby repealed.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution shall be

forwarded to the Ocean County Engineering Department and to the Clerk of the Township of

Stafford.
Introduced on: August 17, 2022
Adopted on: August 17, 2022

Official Resolutign#: 2022001207




Res-Pg:m.2-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing the installation of safety measures at the intersection of County Road #16 (Route
622/0Id Freehold Road/Cox Cro Road) and White Oak Bottom Road, Township of Toms River.

Official Resolution# |2022001208
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem m-2

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ g S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v |v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

Michatie |, Guatiner”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced on:
Adopted on:
Official Resolu

Res-Pg:m.2-2

RESOLUTION

August 17,2022
WHEREAS, as a result of an engineering and traffic investigation it is deemed
necessary to install safety measures at the intersection of County Road #16 (Route 622/01d
Freehold Road/Cox Cro Road) and White Oak Bottom Road in the Township of Toms River.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AS
FOLLOWS:

Traffic striping, signing and a channelizing system is installed as a safety improvement

as follows:
LOCATION DESIGNATED PLAN
CR #16 (Route 622/01d Freehold Plan # 07 016 113
Road/Cox Cro Road) Plan Sheet # 1 of 1
and White Oak Bottom Road Date August, 2022

Township of Toms River

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all former resolutions in conflict, or inconsistent
with the provisions of this resolution are hereby repealed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution shall be
forwarded to the Ocean County Engineering Department and to the Clerk of the Township of

Toms River.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
bn#: 2022001208




Res-Pg:m.3-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Authorizing a revision of the Traffic Signal at the intersection of County Road #8 (Commonwealth
Boulevard) and Northhampton Boulevard (MAN-11), Township of Manchester.

Official Resolution# |2022001209
Meeting Date 08/17/2022
Introduced Date 08/17/2022
Adopted Date 08/17/2022
Agenda ltem m-3

CAF #

Purchase Req. #

Result Adopted
COUNTY fé’ g S £ (W e 55
COMMISSIONER § % g % § % %
Kelly v v
Haines v v

Crea v v
Quinn v v |v
Vicari v v v

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS DOCUMENT IS A TRUE, COMPLETE AND ACCURATE COPY OF THIS
RESOLUTION, ADOPTED BY OCEAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, NJ AT THE MEETING
REFERENCED THEREON

WMichaue, . Guaknor”

Clerk Of The Board



Introduced ¢ l;:

Adopted on
Official Res(

Res-Pg:m.3-2

RESOLUTION

August 17,2022

WHEREAS, as a result of an engineering and traffic investigation it is deemed
necessary to revise the Traffic Signal at the intersection of County Road #8 (Commonwealth
Boulevard) and Northhampton Boulevard (MAN-11) in the Township of Manchester.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT .RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF OCEAN, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AS
FOLLOWS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Public Law 2008, Chapter 110, the following location(s)

shall be controlled by a traffic control signal based on the designated traffic signal plan:

LOCATION DESIGNATED PLAN
(MAN-11) Plan #19 008 101

CR #8 (Commonwealth Boulevard) Plan Sheet #1 of 2

and Northhampton Boulevard Date August, 2022

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all former resolutions in conflict, or inconsistent
with the provisions of this resolution are hereby repealed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a certified copy of this resolution shall be
forwarded to the Ocean County Engineering Department and to the Clerk of the Township of

Manchester.

August 17, 2022
August 17, 2022
tion#: 2022001209




Res-Pg:m.4-1

Ocean County Board of Commissioners

OFFICE OF THE 101 Hooper Avenue

OCEAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS .
Toms River, New Jersey

Director John P. Kelly

] o ) 08754-2191
Deputy Director Virginia E. Haines Tel: (732)929-2005
Commissioner Barbara Jo Crea Fax: (732)505-1918
Commissioner Gary Quinn
Commissioner Joseph H. Vicari
Board Meeting Agenda
Date: August 17, 2022 - 4:00 PM
Location:  Administration Building

Room 119
101 Hooper Avenue
Toms River, NJ 08754

Agenda: Altering the establishment of No Passing Zones along County Road #8 (Princeton Avenue),
Township of B<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>